
Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD GWENER, 20 GORFFENNAF 2018

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED POWYS

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R PANEL 
HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED POWYS A GYNHELIR YN Y SIAMBR, 
3 HEOL SPILMAN, CAERFYRDDIN AM 10.30 AM, DYDD GWENER, 
27AIN GORFFENNAF, 2018 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A 
AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM

Mark James DYB

PRIF WEITHREDWR

 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA
Swyddog Democrataidd: Janine Owen
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224030
E-bost: JanineOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED-POWYS
14 AELOD

CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN  -  3 AELOD
1. CYNGHORYDD KEN HOWELL (Plaid Cymru)
2. CYNGHORYDD JIM JONES (Annibynnol)
3. CYNGHORYDD ERYL MORGAN (Llafur)

CYNGOR SIR CEREDIGION -  3 AELOD
1. CYNGHORYDD LLOYD EDWARDS (Democratiaid Rhyddfrydol 

Cymru)
2. CYNGHORYDD KEITH EVANS (Annibynnol)
3. CYNGHORYDD ALUN LLOYD JONES (Plaid Cymru)

CYNGOR SIR PENFRO  -  3 AELOD
1. CYNGHORYDD MICHAEL JAMES (Annibynnol)
2. CYNGHORYDD STEPHEN JOSEPH (Annibynnol heb gysylltiad)
3. LLE GWAG ROBERT SUMMONS (Ceidwadwyr)

CYNGOR SIR POWYS -  3 AELOD
1. CYNGHORYDD DAVID O. EVANS (Annibynnol)
2. CYNGHORYDD LES GEORGE (Plaid Geidwadol Cymru)
3. CYNGHORYDD WILLIAM POWELL (Democratiaid Rhyddfrydol 

Cymru)

AELODAU ANNIBYNNOL CYFETHOLEDIG  -  2 AELOD
1. YR ATHRO IAN ROFFE
2. MRS HELEN MARGARET THOMAS

 



A G E N D A  

1. PENODI CADEIRYDD AC IS-GADEIRYDD Y PANEL 5 - 6

2. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB A MATERION PERSONOL 

3. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

4. LLOFNODI YN COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 
GYNHALIWYD AR 18 MAI 2018 

7 - 16

5. MATERION YN CODI O'R COFNODION (OS OES RHAI) 

6. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT COMISIYNYDD YR HEDDLU 
A THROSEDDU 

17 - 50

7. PENDERFYNIADAU A WNAED GAN Y COMISIYNYDD 51 - 56

8. POLICE ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD 57 - 170

9. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y CADEIRYDD 171 - 186

10. STRATEGAETH GYFATHREBU'R PANEL 187 - 190



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED-POWYS
27TH JULY 2018

PENODI CADEIRYDD AC IS-GADEIRYDD Y PANEL
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

1. Penodi Cadeirydd y Panel am flwyddyn y Cyngor 2018/2019
2. Penodi Is-gadeirydd y Panel am flwyddyn y Cyngor 2018/2019

Y rhesymau: 

Mae'r penodiadau hyn yn ofynnol yn unol â rheolau'r Panel

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swydd:

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol

Rhif Ffôn

01267 224018

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

rjedgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  1



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DYFED POWYS POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

27TH JULY 2018

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR FOR THE PANEL 

Panel rules require the appointment of a Panel Chair and Vice-chair every year at the Panel’s 
Annual General Meeting.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:-

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Host Authority File LS-0511/31 County Hall Carmarthen

Tudalen 6



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED POWYS

Dydd Gwener 18 Mai 2018

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd A. Lloyd-Jones (Cadeirydd);

Aelodau o Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin:
Cynghorwyr T. J. Jones a E. Morgan;

Aelodau o Gyngor Sir Ceredigion:
Y Cynghorydd K. Evans; 

Aelodau o Gyngor Sir Penfro:
Cynghorwyr S. Joseph a R. Summons;

Aelodau o Gyngor Sir Powys:
Cynghorwyr D. Evans, a W. Powell;

Aelodau Annibynnol:-
Yr Athro I. Roffe;
Mrs. H.M. Thomas;

Yn bresennol o Swyddfa'r Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:-
Mr. Llywelyn - Y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu;
Mrs. C. Morgans - Pennaeth y Staff;
Ms. B. Oeatling - Prif Swyddog Ariannol;

Roedd y Swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod:
R. Edgecombe, Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol;
L Morris, Uwch-swyddog y Wasg;
M.S. Davies, Swyddog y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd.

Ystafell Bwyllgor 2, Neuadd y Sir, Hwlffordd - 10.00 am - 12.50 pm

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB A MATERION PERSONOL
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr L. Edwards 
(Cyngor Sir Ceredigion), L. George (Cyngor Sir Powys), K. Howell (Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin) a M. James (Cyngor Sir Penfro).

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol.

3. COFNODION
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfodydd Panel 
Heddlu a Throseddu Dyfed-Powys a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Ionawr, 2018 a 16 
Chwefror 2018 yn gofnodion cywir.

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN AELODAU'R PANEL I'R COMISIYNYDD:
4.1. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD A. LLOYD JONES:
Cwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd A. Lloyd Jones:
"Mae strategaeth y llywodraeth sy'n ymwneud â Thrais Difrifol a gyhoeddwyd yn 
Ebrill 2018 yn trafod nifer o ffactorau y credir eu bod yn cyfrannu at y lefelau o 
drais difrifol yn ein cymunedau. Yn benodol ar dudalennau 29-30 mae'r 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Rhif  4



strategaeth yn trafod y cysylltiadau rhwng yfed alcohol, safleoedd trwyddedig a 
thrais difrifol. Er ei bod yn ymddangos o'r data yn y strategaeth fod yr achosion o 
ran trais difrifol yn Nyfed-Powys yn gymharol isel, a all y Comisiynydd gadarnhau 
pa gynnydd sydd wedi ei wneud o ran datblygu ymateb ar y cyd i droseddau sy'n 
ymwneud ag alcohol, a hyrwyddo economi hwyr y nos fwy diogel fel y cyfeirir ati 
ym Mlaenoriaeth 1 yn y Cynllun Heddlu a Throseddu a darparu copi o'r ymateb ar 
y cyd hwnnw i'r Panel?”

Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"Lansiwyd Strategaeth y llywodraeth sy'n ymwneud â Thrais Difrifol ym mis Ebrill 
2018, i ddarparu cymorth i'r Heddlu mewn ymateb i'r cynnydd mewn Troseddau 
Treisgar. Diolch byth, mae nifer yr achosion o droseddau treisgar difrifol yn isel yn 
ardal Dyfed Powys; fodd bynnag, nid yw hyn yn golygu ein bod yn ddiogel rhag y 
problemau hyn. Yr wythnos hon, cefais ddiweddariad gan y Swyddfa Gartref 
ynghylch y strategaeth a dywedwyd wrthyf y bydd cronfa ychwanegol o £11 miliwn 
ar gael i'r heddlu wneud cynnig amdani er mwyn cynorthwyo'r gwaith o gyflwyno'r 
strategaeth hon. Mae'n werth nodi, fel Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu Dyfed-
Powys, credaf fod y strategaeth hon yn bennaf ar gyfer ardaloedd trefol mewn 
ymateb i'r cynnydd sylweddol mewn troseddau treisgar difrifol a llofruddiaethau yn 
Llundain.Mae gan Heddlu Dyfed-Powys ddull partneriaeth amlochrog ar gyfer 
mynd i'r afael ag anrhefn sy'n gysylltiedig â chyffuriau ac alcohol yn lleol. Er 
enghraifft, mae gwaith swyddogion trwyddedu ein sir ar y cyd â'r pedwar 
Awdurdod Unedol, a'r mentrau megis y Noson Fawr Allan lle cafwyd adnoddau 
ychwanegol dros gyfnod y Nadolig, yn dangos bod Heddlu Dyfed-Powys yn 
ymateb yn rhagweithiol. Mae hefyd yn werth nodi'r holl waith caled y mae'r 
swyddogion cyswllt cymunedol ac ysgol yn ei gyflawni a'r effaith y maent yn ei 
chael ar bobl ifanc. Mae'r swyddogion hyn yn darparu cwricwlwm safonol ledled 
Cymru gan drosglwyddo negeseuon ynghylch diogelwch personol yn ogystal â 
pheryglon camddefnyddio alcohol a sylweddau. Fodd bynnag mae'n peri pryder 
bod awgrym y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn tynnu'r cyllid yn ôl o'r Rhaglen Graidd 
Cyswllt Ysgolion Cymru Gyfan o fis Ebrill 2019 ymlaen. Rwy'n lobïo ochr yn ochr 
â'r tri Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu eraill yng Nghymru i geisio dylanwadu ar 
safbwynt Llywodraeth Cymru ynghylch y mater hwn, er hynny, nid yw'r negeseuon 
diweddar a gafwyd gan Ysgrifennydd Cabinet Llywodraeth Cymru dros Iechyd yn 
dangos bod y Llywodraeth yn ystyried newid ei safbwynt ynghylch y mater hwn. 
Buddsoddwyd hefyd mewn technoleg. Er enghraifft, fel rhan o'r rhaglen gyfalaf, 
cefnogais y buddsoddiad mewn dros 800 o gamerâu fideo a wisgir ar y corff ar 
gyfer swyddogion mewn lifrai. Ers i'r swyddogion wisgo'r camerâu hyn, rydym wedi 
cael gwybodaeth anecdotaidd yn awgrymu bod cynnydd mewn pleon euog cynnar 
a chynnydd o ran y rhai a ddrwgdybir yn cyfaddef i'w hymddygiad afreolus pan 
ddangosir y dystiolaeth iddynt yn y cyfweliad, fodd bynnag mae'n rhaid gwerthuso 
ymhellach. Yn ogystal â hyn, ceir elfen ataliol hefyd gan fod golau coch yn 
fflachio'n amlwg ar y camerâu pan fyddant yn recordio ac yn atgoffa aelodau'r 
cyhoedd bod eu hymddygiad yn cael ei recordio a gellid ei ddefnyddio mewn llys 
barn." 

4.2. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD A. LLOYD JONES:
Cwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd A. Lloyd Jones:
"Ar dudalen 69 o strategaeth y llywodraeth sy'n ymwneud â Thrais Difrifol a 
gyhoeddwyd yn Ebrill 2018 cyfeirir at ba mor bwysig yw gweithio i feithrin 
gwytnwch yn erbyn trais mewn cymunedau lleol. Mae'r strategaeth yn benodol yn 
cyfeirio at bwysigrwydd gweithio gyda phobl ifanc er mwyn iddynt fod yn 
ymwybodol o'r risgiau yn sgil cario cyllell a'r peryglon y gallai hynny eu peri. A yw'r 

Tudalen 8



Comisiynydd yn gallu rhoi gwybod i'r Panel pa gynnydd sy'n cael ei wneud mewn 
perthynas ag elfennau o Flaenoriaeth 2 yn ei Gynllun Heddlu a Throseddu sy'n 
benodol yn ymwneud â datblygu rhaglenni atal wedi'u targedu ar gyfer pobl ifanc a 
darparu cyllid i brosiectau dargyfeirio i'r ieuenctid?”

Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"Yn bersonol, rwyf yn gwerthfawrogi'r prosiectau dargyfeirio i'r ieuenctid a chredaf 
fod y dystiolaeth ar gyfer y gweithgaredd hwn yn gryf. Rwyf yn falch o'r cyllid 
ychwanegol rwyf yn ei ddarparu i gefnogi eu gwaith yn ein cymunedau. Darperir 
£45,000 i bob un o dimau Troseddu Ieuenctid y sir (cyfanswm o £180,000 y 
flwyddyn), sy'n cyfateb i oddeutu 30% o'r cyllid ar gyfer eu rhaglen ymyriadau ar 
hyn o bryd. Rwyf yn cwrdd â rheolwyr pob Awdurdod Unedol yn chwarterol, ac 
maent yn darparu gwybodaeth er mwyn mesur gwerth y buddsoddiad hwnnw a 
gwerth ychwanegol yr ymyriadau. Diben y buddsoddiad hwn gan fy swyddfa yw 
cael effaith gadarnhaol ar y galw ar y swyddogion a staff rheng flaen drwy leihau'r 
angen i ymateb i fân droseddau ac ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol. Mae'r Timau 
Troseddu Ieuenctid yn ystyried cyfleoedd i weithio gyda'i gilydd yn strategol lle bo 
modd, a rhannu arferion gorau gyda fy nghefnogaeth i, y Comisiynydd Heddlu a 
Throseddu.Yn ogystal â hyn, mae Swyddogion Cymuned Ysgol Heddlu Dyfed-
Powys yn chwarae rôl ganolog o ran darparu cyswllt rhwng ysgolion a cholegau'r 
ardal, a'r heddlu. Mae'r cwricwlwm yn cynnwys codi ymwybyddiaeth o Drais 
Domestig a'r angen i hysbysu'r heddlu am fater yn gynnar, y peryglon sydd 
ynghlwm wrth gamddefnyddio sylweddau, a cham-fanteisio rhywiol. Credaf mai 
dyma sylfaen ein hymgysylltiad â phobl ifanc, ac felly rwy'n lobïo Llywodraeth 
Cymru i geisio sicrhau cyllid parhaus ar gyfer y Rhaglen Gyswllt Ysgolion. Os bydd 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn tynnu y cyllid yn ôl ar gyfer y rhaglen, byddai'n golygu 
gostyngiad o £1.89 miliwn o ran gwasanaethau plismona.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gefnogi'r Comisiynydd Heddlu a 
Throseddu yn ei ymdrechion i geisio sicrhau cyllid parhaus o Lywodraeth 
Cymru ar gyfer y Rhaglen Gyswllt Ysgolion.

4.3. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD K. EVANS:
Cwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd K. Evans:
“Yn y misoedd diwethaf rydym wedi gweld yr hyn sy'n ymddangos yn gynnydd 
sylweddol yn nifer y marwolaethau a'r trychinebau yn ardal yr Heddlu. Mae'r rhain 
yn amrywio o ddamweiniau ffyrdd i ddigwyddiadau sy'n ymwneud â thân a 
bywydau'n cael eu colli heb eglurhad. A yw'r Comisiynydd yn fodlon bod gan yr 
Heddlu y sgiliau priodol a digon o Swyddogion arbenigol i fynd i'r afael â'r 
archwiliadau amrywiol hyn y mae iddynt yn aml nifer o agweddau?”

Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"Mae ymdrin â marwolaeth a thrychineb yn realiti anffodus i'r rhai sy'n gweithio ar 
gyfer Gwasanaeth yr Heddlu.  Bydd gan bob swyddog heddlu a rhai aelodau o 
staff yr heddlu brofiad o ymdrin â marwolaeth a thrychineb.  Ar ddiwedd Wythnos 
Ymwybyddiaeth Iechyd Meddwl yr wythnos hon, mae'n bwysig ein bod yn 
cydnabod yr effaith bersonol y mae hyn yn ei chael ar y swyddogion a'r staff 
hynny, a all fod yn sylweddol ar brydiau. Yr wythnos hon rwyf wedi mynd i 
ddigwyddiad a gynhaliwyd ym Mhencadlys yr Heddlu yn Sir Gaerfyrddin fel rhan 
o'r sioe deithiol wythnos o hyd, i ddangos fy nghefnogaeth.
Defnyddir arbenigwyr yn ôl y math o ddigwyddiad neu ymchwiliad sydd wedi 
digwydd.  Mae gan yr heddlu nifer o Swyddogion Cyswllt â Theuluoedd sydd yn 
bennaf yn ymchwilwyr sy'n cefnogi aelodau teuluoedd ac yn darparu cyswllt 

Tudalen 9



uniongyrchol i dîm ymchwilio. Gall Swyddogion Cyswllt â Theuluoedd arbenigo 
mewn Marwolaethau ar y Ffordd neu Ddynladdiadau ac rwyf wedi cael adborth 
personol ar y rôl gadarnhaol y maent yn ei chyflawni. Mae'r gan yr Heddlu hefyd 
Uwch-swyddogion Ymchwilio hyfforddedig sy'n gyfrifol am oruchwylio yr achosion 
mwyaf difrifol sy'n digwydd yn ogystal ag Ymchwilwyr Gwrthdrawiadau Fforensig 
arbenigol.Yn ogystal â'r adnoddau sydd ar gael yn yr Heddlu, mae adnoddau 
hefyd ar gael drwy'r broses o 'gymorth cydfuddiannol' sy'n galluogi'r Heddlu i ofyn 
am adnoddau arbenigol o lefydd eraill. Mae trefniadau cymorth cydfuddiannol ar 
waith ledled Cymru a Lloegr ac maent yn ein galluogi ni i gynyddu'r adnoddau 
sydd ar gael er mwyn ymateb pan fo digwyddiadau gweithredol anarferol yn 
digwydd. Rwyf wedi trafod y mater â'r Prif Gwnstabl, sydd wedi rhoi sicrwydd i mi 
ei fod yn fodlon bod ganddo ddigon o adnoddau arbenigol er mwyn ymateb ac 
ymchwilio i droseddau a digwyddiadau difrifol sy'n gallu digwydd ar draws ardal yr 
Heddlu."

4.4. CWESTIWN GAN YR ATHRO I. ROFFE:
Cwestiwn gan yr Athro Ian Roffe:
"Mae'r Comisiynydd wedi nodi ei fwriad i wella perfformiad gwasanaeth Heddlu 
Dyfed-Powys. Roedd yr adroddiad PEEL diweddar: Effeithiolrwydd yr Heddlu (gan 
gynnwys arweinyddiaeth) 2017 ar gyfer Heddlu Dyfed Powys wedi rhoi cipolwg o 
safbwynt Arolygiaeth Cwnstabliaeth Ei Mawrhydi ar berfformiad yr Heddlu. Mae 
elfennau cadarnhaol yn bresennol megis dealltwriaeth o'r galw a'r ardaloedd a 
aseswyd fel rhai y mae angen eu gwella – megis cynllunio ar gyfer y galw yn y 
dyfodol a'r angen am archwiliad o sgiliau ac ati. Gwerthfawrogir y bu’n rhaid 
sicrhau arbedion angenrheidiol o ran staff yr heddlu yn ystod y blynyddoedd 
diwethaf. Fodd bynnag, a fyddai modd i'r Comisiynydd egluro sut y bydd yn 
sicrhau bod y pwyntiau gweithredu a nodir yn Adroddiad Cwnstabliaeth Ei 
Mawrhydi yn cael sylw?
Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"I ddechrau mae'n werth nodi'r cynnydd cadarnhaol y mae'r Heddlu wedi'i wneud 
yn ystod arolygiadau PEEL diweddar yr Arolygiaeth Cwnstabliaeth a 
Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub ei Mawrhydi. Mae dau o'r tri arolwg diwethaf wedi 
dod i'r casgliad bod yr Heddlu wedi symud o radd 'Angen Gwella' i radd 'Da' a 
hoffwn bwysleisio eto mai fy uchelgais yw gweld Heddlu Dyfed-Powys yn sicrhau 
gradd 'Rhagorol'. Mae'r newid hwn o ran perfformiad yn rhannol oherwydd fy mod 
wedi blaenoriaethu gweithgaredd Arolygiaeth Cwnstabliaeth a Gwasanaethau Tân 
ac Achub Ei Mawrhydi yn y Cynllun Heddlu a Throseddu ac yn bwysicach oll, 
oherwydd y tîm arweinyddiaeth. Mae'r Dirprwy Brif Gwnstabl, Darren Davies, yn 
arbennig wedi cymryd cyfrifoldeb personol am ei waith. Mae Swyddfa'r 
Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu yn cymryd rhan mewn cyfarfodydd Grŵp 
Llywodraethu Cwnstabliaeth ei Mawrhydi Heddlu Dyfed-Powys. Yn y cyfarfodydd 
hyn, y mae tîm arweinyddiaeth yr Heddlu, dan gymorth a chyfarwyddyd y Dirprwy 
Brif Gwnstabl, yn goruchwylio holl argymhellion arfaethedig Arolygydd 
Cwnstabliaeth ei Mawrhydi ac yn goruchwylio'r paratoadau ar gyfer arolygiadau'r 
dyfodol. Mae strwythur llywodraethu newydd yr Heddlu yn cefnogi gwell cyfathrebu 
a pherchnogaeth dros argymhellion Arolygydd Cwnstabliaeth ei Mawrhydi, ac mae 
pob argymhelliad yn cael ei neilltuo i'r grŵp llywodraethu perthnasol er mwyn rhoi 
sylw iddo. Mae sicrhau llinellau atebolrwydd mwy eglur a chyfnewid gwybodaeth 
yn sicrhau bod gweithrediadau a phenderfyniadau yn cael eu gwneud ar y lefel 
briodol. Mae tîm Llywodraethu a Pherfformiad newydd yr Heddlu yn cynorthwyo'r 
gwaith o gydlynu ac mae fy swyddfa yn gweithio'n agos gyda'r tîm i sicrhau fy mod 
yn ymwybodol o unrhyw gynnydd, camau gweithredu a phroblemau yn gynnar yn 
y broses. Rwyf hefyd yn cwrdd yn rheolaidd â swyddogion Arolygiaeth 

Tudalen 10



Cwnstabliaeth ei Mawrhydi ac rwyf yn llwyr barchu gwerth ychwanegol eu trefn 
archwilio." 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL longyfarch y Prif Gwnstabl ar gynnydd yr 
Heddlu a'i berfformiad.

4.5. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD M. JAMES:
Cwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd M. James:
"A all y Comisiynydd gadarnhau a oes gan Heddlu Dyfed-powys ddata ystadegol 
yn debyg i'r data a nodwyd yn adroddiad Cyngor Cenedlaethol Prif Swyddogion yr 
Heddlu ym mis Chwefror 2018 ynghylch poeni da byw, ac os yw'r data ganddo, a 
all ddarparu'r data hwnnw? Yn arbennig:
Ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 01/09/13 a 31/08/17 
1. Nifer yr achosion cofnodedig o boeni da byw yn ardal yr heddlu 
2. Nifer yr achosion cofnodedig o dda byw a laddwyd o ganlyniad i ddigwyddiadau 
o'r fath 
3. Nifer yr achosion cofnodedig o dda byw a anafwyd o ganlyniad i ddigwyddiadau 
o'r fath 
4. Nifer yr achosion cofnodedig lle saethwyd y ci a oedd yn troseddu 
5. Nifer yr achosion cofnodedig lle nad oedd perchennog y ci yn bresennol 
6. Nifer yr achosion cofnodedig lle'r oedd y ci/perchennog yn gysylltiedig â 
digwyddiad tebyg o'r blaen 
7. Colled ariannol gofnodedig yn deillio o ladd/anafu da byw 
8. Cyfanswm y dirwyon a roddwyd gan y llysoedd i berchnogion a oedd wedi 
troseddu. A oes angen newid Strategaeth Troseddau Gwledig y Comisiynydd i roi 
sylw penodol i'r mater ynghylch poeni da byw, o ystyried nad yw'n sôn am y mater 
ar hyn o bryd?"
Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"Nid yw achosion o boeni da byw yn droseddau hysbysadwy felly nid yw 
gwybodaeth yr heddlu am nifer yr achosion ar gael yn rhwydd.  Yr unig ffordd o 
gasglu data fyddai drwy ddadansoddi data unigol y system Gorchymyn a Rheoli 
(System ar gyfer Rheoli Adnoddau Gweithredol a Thasgau) a fyddai'n cymryd tua 
2000 o oriau (cafwyd y wybodaeth o Gais Rhyddid Gwybodaeth blaenorol). Fodd 
bynnag mae'r heddlu yn gallu dweud y bu 13 o erlyniadau yn ystod y 5 mlynedd 
diwethaf o ran troseddau poeni da byw.  O blith y 13 o erlyniadau, gosodwyd 
cyfanswm o £2525 mewn dirwyon.  Yn ogystal â'r dirwyon, dyfarnwyd iawndal o 
£2975.43 i'r dioddefwyr; roedd cyfanswm o £325 o ran gordal dioddefwr a £1810 o 
ran y costau. Yn gynharach eleni, cymerodd y Prif Gwnstabl, Mark Collins, ran 
mewn cyfweliad radio ar Heart FM i godi ymwybyddiaeth am droseddau poeni da 
byw a'r gwaith sy'n cael ei gyflawni yng Nghymru er mwyn mynd i'r afael â'r mater. 
Y Prif Gwnstabl yw arweinydd Cymru dros Droseddau Bywyd Gwyllt a Materion 
Gwledig ac mae'n gweithio'n agos gyda Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, Llywodraeth 
Cymru, Unedau Troseddau Cyfundrefnol Rhanbarthol a'r Gwasanaeth Tân.  Mae 
darparu gwasanaeth cydradd i gymunedau ynysig yn flaenoriaeth i'r Prif Gwnstabl 
ac mae'r flaenoriaeth hon yn rhan o'r Strategaeth Troseddau Gwledig a lansiwyd 
ar ddiwedd 2017 gyda chymorth arweinwyr cymunedol lleol ac undebau 
amaethyddol. Byddaf yn dwyn y Prif Gwnstabl i gyfrif er mwyn sicrhau bod y 
strategaeth yn cael ei datblygu'n rhywbeth ymarferol ar gyfer ein cymunedau 
ffermio lleol." 

5. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN AELODAU O'R CYHOEDD I'R 
COMISIYNYDD:

Tudalen 11



5.1. CWESTIWN GAN J. ELLIS:
Cwestiwn gan J. Ellis:
"Yng ngoleuni ymrwymiad y Comisiynydd ar dudalen 12 yn y Cynllun Heddlu a 
Throseddu ynghylch diogelwch ffyrdd, a ydyw'n cytuno â phenderfyniad yr AS 
Jessica Morden i greu corff annibynnol ledled y DU i roi cymorth i swyddogion sy'n 
ymchwilio i ddamweiniau ffyrdd, nodi tueddiadau a rhannu gwersi a ddysgwyd o 
ymchwiliadau unigol. Os ydyw'n cytuno beth fydd e'n ei wneud i helpu i weithredu 
hyn? Os nad ydyw'n cytuno â Ms Morden, a fyddai modd iddo egluro pam?”
Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"Yn gyffredinol rwyf o blaid yr hyn y mae'r AS Jessica Morden yn ei awgrymu, fodd 
bynnag mae hwn yn fater sy'n gofyn am gydweithio sylweddol gyda sefydliadau 
datganoledig megis Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer y cefnffyrdd ac Awdurdodau Lleol 
o ran y priffyrdd. Felly, mae modd cwestiynu pa mor ymarferol yw creu corff 
annibynnol ledled y DU yn y cyd-destun hwn. Rwyf yn croesawu'r cyfle i weithio 
gydag asiantaethau partner i wella diogelwch ar y ffyrdd a byddwn yn cefnogi dull 
mwy cydlynol tuag at weithgarwch ledled Cymru. Rwyf wedi codi'r mater hwn â 
Ken Skates, Ysgrifennydd Cabinet Llywodraeth Cymru dros yr Economi a'r 
Seilwaith gan fy mod yn awyddus i asiantaethau gydweithio'n agosach i fynd i'r 
afael â'r mater hwn. Rwyf yn cael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf yn rheolaidd gan yr 
Heddlu ynghylch mentrau diogelwch ar y ffyrdd penodol, megis Ymgyrch Darwen 
a Menter 'Gan Bwyll' Cymru, ac rwyf hefyd yn cefnogi defnyddio 'Cadw Llygad ar 
Gyflymder yn y Gymuned' yn ardal yr Heddlu.

5.2. CWESTIWN GAN A. WILLIAMS:
Cwestiwn gan A. Williams:
"Darlledodd y Comisiynydd blaenorol gyfarfodydd y Panel ar y we o siambr y 
Cyngor yn Hwlffordd. Mae cyfleusterau darlledu tebyg ar gael yn Neuadd y Sir, 
Caerfyrddin. A oes gan Mr Llewelyn unrhyw fwriadau tebyg i ddarlledu ei 
gyfarfodydd 'cyhoeddus' â'r Panel Troseddu? Ble ar y we y gellir darllen cofnodion 
y cyfarfodydd blaenorol?” 
Ymateb y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu:
"Yn wir roedd y cyn-Gomisiynydd yn darlledu ei gyfarfodydd Atebolrwydd â'r Prif 
Gwnstabl, er hynny, rwyf wedi penderfynu  peidio â dilyn yr un drefn ar hyn o bryd 
oherwydd credaf y gall y dull hwn atal trafodaeth. Er hynny, rwyf yn awyddus i 
gynnwys pobl leol mewn gwaith craffu a llywodraethu ac felly cynhelir y 
cyfarfodydd atebolrwydd â'r Prif Gwnstabl mewn llefydd cyhoeddus, a rhoddir 
hysbysiad cyhoeddus ohono ar y wefan a'r cyfryngau cymdeithasol. Rydym hefyd 
yn anfon gwahoddiad i grwpiau e.e. gwahoddwyd disgyblion Ysgol y Strade i 
gyfarfod a gynhaliwyd yn Llanelli.  Wedi dweud hynny, nid wyf yn gwrthod ystyried 
darlledu'r cyfarfodydd hynny yn y dyfodol. O ran darlledu cyfarfodydd y Panel 
Heddlu a Throseddu, penderfyniad y Panel fyddai hynny."
Nodwyd, er eglurhad, y byddai'r mater ynghylch darlledu cyfarfodydd Panel 
Heddlu a Throseddu Dyfed-Powys yn cael ei ystyried yn ei gyfarfod blynyddol. 

6. ADRODDIAD EFFEITHIOLRWYDD AROLYGIAETH CWNSTABLIAETH A 
GWASANAETHAU TÂN AC ACHUB EI MAWRHYDI

Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried adroddiad yr Arolygiaeth Cwnstabliaeth a Gwasanaethau 
Tân ac Achub ei Mawrhydi a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Mawrth 2018 ynghylch 
effeithlonrwydd Heddlu Dyfed-Powys gan ddefnyddio'r meini prawf canlynol:

 Ymchwilio i Drosedd a lleihau ail-droseddu [GRADD: Da];
 Diogelu pobl agored i niwed [GRADD: Angen gwella];
 Galluoedd Arbenigol [GRADD: Heb eu graddio].

Tudalen 12



Mewn ymateb i bryder ynghylch y defnydd o gelloedd yr heddlu wrth ymdrin â 
phobl agored i niwed oherwydd diffyg cyfleusterau priodol, rhoddodd y 
Comisiynydd Heddlu sicrwydd i'r Panel fod y mater yn cael sylw a chyfeiriwyd at y 
ddalfa arfaethedig newydd yn Llanelli. Fodd bynnag, ychwanegodd fod yr heddlu 
yn aml yn gorfod sicrhau cydbwysedd rhwng diogelwch y cyhoedd a gofal yr 
unigolion dan sylw. Nodwyd bod Prif Gwnstabl Heddlu Dyfed-Powys, Mark Collins, 
hefyd yn arweinydd iechyd meddwl Cyngor Cenedlaethol Prif Swyddogion yr 
Heddlu a bod y mater hwnnw wedi hoelio sylw yng Nghynhadledd Dydd Gŵyl 
Dewi Dyfed-Powys eleni a gynhaliwyd ym mhencadlys Heddlu Dyfed-Powys. 
Roedd cefnogaeth ychwanegol hefyd yn cael ei darparu i bartneriaid iechyd, ac 
roedd Swyddogion Cymorth Cymunedol yr Heddlu yn cael eu lleoli mewn ysbytai.
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, cytunodd y Comisiynydd Heddlu i wneud ymholiadau 
ynghylch y rheswm na chafodd 'Galluoedd Arbenigol' eu graddio, er y dywedodd 
yr oedd o bosibl yn ymwneud â'r ffaith bod materion o'r fath y tu hwnt i ffiniau'r 
Heddlu.
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL

6.1 nodi'r adroddiad;
6.2 cefnogi'r Comisiynydd Heddlu yn ei ymdrech i geisio sicrhau 

bod cyfleusterau priodol ar gael i'r heddlu pan fydd yn rhaid 
symud person o fan cyhoeddus i le diogel dan Adran 136 o 
Ddeddf Iechyd Meddwl.

7. PENDERFYNIADAU A WNAED GAN Y COMISIYNYDD.
Er gwybodaeth, cafodd y Panel adroddiad a fanylai ar y penderfyniadau a wnaed 
gan y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu yn ystod y cyfnod 27 Chwefror 2018 - 10 
Mai 2018. Rhoddwyd sylw i'r materion canlynol:

 Gan gyfeirio at y penderfyniad i beidio â phrynu adeilad yn Sanclêr i'w 
addasu i fod yn Amgueddfa'r heddlu, cyfeiriodd y Comisiynydd Heddlu a 
Throseddu at gynnig gan y Prif Gwnstabl i sefydlu cyfleuster tebyg mewn 
lleoliad mwy canolog ym Mhencadlys yr Heddlu. Ychwanegodd fod yr 
arolwg ecolegol ym Mhenprys, Llanelli, yn ymwneud yn bennaf â Chlymog 
Japan a bywyd gwyllt;

 Mewn ymateb i bryder ynghylch y gostyngiad yn y cyllid ar gyfer contract 
camddefnyddio sylweddau 2018/2019, dywedodd y Comisiynydd Heddlu a 
Throseddu fod rhai o'r gweithgareddau cyfeirio eisoes yn rhan o'r Prosiect 
Braenaru;

 O ran y 4 penderfyniad a wnaethpwyd gan y Comisiynydd Heddlu a 
Throseddu ar 10 Mai 2018, dywedwyd wrth y Panel fod y rhain yn 
benderfyniadau statudol y mae'n rhaid eu gwneud bob blwyddyn.  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 

8. BWRDD ATEBOLRWYDD YR HEDDLU
Derbyniodd y Panel agenda, adroddiadau a chofnodion cyfarfod Bwrdd 
Atebolrwydd yr Heddlu a gynhaliwyd ar 13 Chwefror 2018.

Mewn ymateb i bryder ynghylch y nifer o ddamweiniau ffyrdd gan feicwyr a oedd 
yn ymddangos fel pe baent yn cynnwys beicwyr gwrywaidd hŷn ar feiciau pwerus, 
cyfeiriodd y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu at waith Heddlu Dyfed-Powys a 
phartneriaid eraill drwy Ymgyrch 'Darwen' a dargedai pobl ifanc a phob hŷn er 
mwyn eu haddysgu am bwysigrwydd diogelwch a, lle y bo'n briodol, gorfodi'r 
gyfraith. Cyfeiriwyd at y ffaith nad oedd y targed ar gyfer 'Lleihau nifer y beicwyr 

Tudalen 13



modur a gaiff eu lladd a'u hanafu'n ddifrifol gan 25% erbyn 2020' wedi'i gyflawni 
dros 10 mlynedd ac awgrymwyd y dylid gosod targed sy'n gyraeddadwy.
Canmolodd y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu yr holl waith y mae Gwasanaeth 
Dioddefwyr a Thystion Goleudy yn ei gyflawni.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi'r materion a godwyd yng nghyfarfod 
Bwrdd Atebolrwydd yr Heddlu a gynhaliwyd ar 13 Chwefror 2018.

9. GWARIANT Y PANEL 2017-2018
Yn unol â Deddf Diwygio'r Heddlu a Chyfrifoldeb Cymdeithasol 2011, rhoddodd y 
Panel ystyriaeth i adroddiad a oedd yn nodi'r gwariant a wnaed yn ystod blwyddyn 
ariannol 2017-2018. Awgrymwyd y dylid ystyried y posibilrwydd y gallai'r Panel 
ymgymryd â gwaith craffu manylach ynghylch rôl a phenderfyniadau'r 
Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu yn y cyfarfod nesaf. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi'r adroddiad.

10. CYLLIDEB DDRAFFT Y PANEL AR GYFER 2018-2019
 Bu'r Panel yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn manylu ar y gyllideb arfaethedig ar 
gyfer 2018/19. Cafodd gwaith y Panel Heddlu a Throseddu ei ariannu gan grant a 
gafwyd gan y Swyddfa Gartref, a disgwylid grant o £71,000 ar gyfer 2018-2019.
Awgrymwyd y bydd y mater o ddarlledu cyfarfodydd yn cael ei ystyried yn y 
Cyfarfod Blynyddol.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo'r gyllideb ddrafft. 

11. GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
fel y'i diwygiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 
(Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007, orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod tra oedd yr 
eitem ganlynol yn cael ei hystyried, gan fod yr adroddiad yn cynnwys 
gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym Mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 
12A i'r Ddeddf.

12. UNRHYW EITEMAU ERAILL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD, OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG, BENDERFYNU Y DYLID EU HYSTYRIED YN 
FATERION BRYS
Yn sgil gweithredu'r prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD YN 
UNFRYDOL, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y cyfeiriwyd ati yng Nghofnod 11 uchod, 
ystyried y mater hwn yn breifat gan orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod, 
gan y byddai'r drafodaeth yn datgelu gwybodaeth eithriedig ynghylch 
materion ariannol neu faterion busnes unrhyw unigolyn penodol (gan 
gynnwys yr Awdurdod oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno).
Dosbarthodd y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu adroddiad y Prif Swyddog 
Ariannol a oedd yn cynnwys y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am sefyllfa y gyllideb 
amcangyfrifedig o ran yr alldro yn erbyn cyllidebau Heddlu Dyfed-Powys a'r 
Comisiynydd Heddlu ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2017/18 o ran refeniw a chyfalaf. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad.

Tudalen 14



________________________ __________________
CHAIR DATE

Tudalen 15



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED-POWYS
27 GORFFENNAF 2018

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT
COMISIYNYDD YR HEDDLU A THROSEDDU

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Nodi'r adroddiad ac felly gwneud argymhellion i'r Comisiynydd fel y gwêl y Panel yn 
ddoeth.

Y rhesymau: 
Mae Deddf Diwygio'r Heddlu a Chyfrifoldeb Cymdeithasol 2011 yn rhoi dyletswydd statudol 
ar y Panel i ystyried adroddiad blynyddol y Comisiynydd a gwneud argymhellion

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swydd:

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol

Rhif Ffôn

01267 224018

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

rjedgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 17

Eitem Rhif  6



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DYFED POWYS POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
27TH JULY 2018

DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT OF THE 
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 places a statutory duty upon Police and Crime 
Commissioners to produce an annual report and upon Police and Crime Panels to consider that 
report and make recommendations to the Commissioner.

Panel members are therefore requested to consider the attached draft report and make such 
recommendations regarding it as they consider appropriate.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Host Authority File LS-0511/31 County Hall, Carmarthen.

Tudalen 18



 

1 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(DRAFT) DYFED-POWYS 

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 

Annual Report 

2017-2018 

 

Safeguarding our communities together 

Tudalen 19



DRAFT 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Foreword 1 

About this Annual Report 2 

Setting out my priorities 3 

The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 4 

Working with the Chief Officer Team 5 

Keeping our communities safe 6 

Safeguarding the vulnerable 9 

Protecting our communities from serious threats 14 

Connecting with communities 15 

Working together 20 

Spending money wisely 22 

Commissioning  24 

Looking ahead 25 

  

Content 

Tudalen 20



Foreword 
D 

1  

 
 

 

As your Police and Crime Commissioner, it is my privilege to present to you my Annual 

Report for 2017 - 2018. 

This year marks two years since my election as Police and Crime Commissioner.  I am passionate 

about my life’s work and the area that we’re all fortunate enough to call home – Dyfed-Powys. 

I am honoured, with this report, to relay to you the result of twelve further months of hard work and 

dedication from myself and my team, and most importantly, what our work together means for you, the 

public.  Over the past year, we have hosted public meetings across the Force Area in order to hear 

from you directly what is concerning you and your community.  We have also hosted accountability 

meetings with Chief Officers in all four counties for you to have the opportunity to engage with us and 

contribute to policing decisions.   

A focus on public engagement and working together to safeguard the vulnerable has resulted in a 

much needed shift in focus, to what is now recognised nationally as exceptional victim care provided 

by the Goleudy Team.  Effective and efficient policing is, and always will be at the heart of what we do. 

These positive strides are reflected in our most recent 

HMIC inspection, where we were graded as ‘Good’ overall 

for the first time since the HMIC PEEL inspection regime 

commenced.  I am very proud of this positive recognition.  

However, it is still important to recognise that the 

landscape of policing is forever changing, and we still have 

a great deal of work ahead of us. 

As a Force we are a comparatively small organisation 

covering a largely rural area.  It is always my intention 

however for Dyfed-Powys to feature on the national 

policing stage; I have endeavoured to impact upon 

decisions that affect us as a Force, and nationally as a 

country, by sitting on a range of national boards whose 

work is significant for the future of policing in Wales. 

As I mark the halfway stage of my tenure as Police and 

Crime Commissioner, I have taken some time to reflect on 

the challenges and opportunities that I have faced, and 

these have been met.  This annual report provides a 

summary of my activity, my office’s work and how we are 

working constructively with Dyfed-Powys Police to provide 

the best possible policing service. 

 

 

Dafydd Llywelyn 

Police and Crime Commissioner 

Tudalen 21



DRAFT 

2 
 

About this Annual Report 

 

 

In accordance with the Police Reform and 

Social Responsibility Act 2011, Police 

and Crime Commissioners are required to 

produce an annual report. This report 

highlights the key achievements during 

my second year of office. The same Act 

sets out my duty to issue a Police and 

Crime Plan, which was published in 

March 2017. 

 
I was clear at the beginning of my term of 

office that the security and safety of Dyfed- 

Powys comes first. I am committed to 

represent and engage fully with communities 

and to act as the voice of the public on all 

police and crime matters. I have advocated 

for strong partnership working and a joined- 

up approach in tackling matters relating to 

crime and anti-social behaviour. 

 
This report is a synopsis of my second year 

and highlights some of my key plans for 

2018/19. 
 
 

 
 

 
12 things to know about my role. 

I am responsible for: 

 setting the priorities for Dyfed-Powys 

Police; 

 publishing a Police and Crime Plan; 

 engaging with communities and 

representing the public’s voice on 

policing matters; 

 working closely with community safety 

and criminal justice partners; 

 supporting victims and bringing people 

to justice; 

 commissioning services to make 

communities safer and to support the 

vulnerable; 

 appointing and, if necessary, 

dismissing the Chief Constable; 

 dealing with complaints and 

disciplinary matters against the Chief 

Constable; 

 holding the Chief Constable to 

account; and 

 setting the annual Police budget and 

precept level. 

 
I am not responsible for: 

 
 day-to-day deployment and delivery of 

police services known as ‘operational 

policing’; or 

 investigating complaints against police 

officers below the rank of Chief 

Constable. 

Tudalen 22



Setting out my priorities 

 

3  

 
 

My Police and Crime Plan 

 
My Police and Crime Plan was published in 

March 2017 and is available here.  It sets 

out my priorities and how progress is 

measured. 

 

My priorities: 

 

 Keeping our communities safe; 

 Safeguarding the vulnerable; 

 Protecting our communities from 

serious threats; and 

 Connecting with communities 

 

These priorities are the cornerstone against 

which all progress is evaluated.  The 

priorities were created in direct response to 

feedback from you the public, along with 

input from the private sector, police staff and 

officers and partners. 

 

My progress as Commissioner can therefore 

be held to account by you the public whose 

contribution forms the basis of these 

priorities. 

 

They are underpinned by the following 

principles: 

 
 supporting victims; 

 engaging with the public; 

 working together; 

 providing strong leadership; and 

 delivering value for money. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 23

http://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/the-commissioner/the-police-and-crime-plan/


DRAFT 

4 
 

The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 

 

 
I am supported by a team of professionals 

who bring a wealth of specialist knowledge 

to the office.  Following my pledge not to 

appoint a Deputy Commissioner I rely on 

my staff to advise me on matters ranging 

from financial affairs to co-ordinating 

volunteers.  

 
In 2017/18 my office was restructured to 

ensure that it provides efficient and 

effective support to enable me to 

discharge my statutory responsibilities.   
 

As Commissioner I am responsible for 

the Dyfed-Powys Police Estate and the 

dedicated staff who maintain the land 

and buildings.  The team were brought 

under my direct supervision from the 

Force in April 2017 in order for me to 

implement the Estates Program whose 

aim it is to enable our services to support 

the community effectively. 

 

Upon transference of the estates 

function from the Force to the Office of 

the Police and Crime Commissioner 

(OPCC) in April 2017 a review of the 

efficiency of the estates operation was 

instigated giving consideration to staffing 

requirements.  The findings informed the 

review of the overall structure of the 

OPCC which sought to bring the two 

areas together thereby providing a 

greater level of resilience particularly in 

relation to performance management 

and business support. 

 

The new structure will work alongside a 

new corporate governance structure for 

Dyfed-Powys Police and will be aligned 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

to the my partnership approach of 

developing constructive professional 

relationships both within the Force and with 

external partners involved in the delivery of 

local services.  In this regard, the OPCC 

will be a catalyst to positive change that 

delivers effective and efficient services for 

our local communities. 

Investment in Local People   

 

The restructure provided an opportunity 

to establish new opportunities at my 

office.  In November 2017 I became the 

first Police and Crime Commissioner in 

Wales to employ an apprentice and 

intern.  Apprentices and interns have 

been shown to add value, provide a 

skilled workforce for the future, increase 

staff loyalty and retention, change work 

prospects and open up interesting new 

pathways for both employer and 

employee.  In September 2017 Ms 

Teleri Thomas started in her role as 

paid intern through the Coleg Cymraeg 

Cenedlaethol.  Teleri studies History 

and International Politics at 

Aberystwyth University and has been 

instrumental in helping to achieve many 

objectives that I set at the start of the 

year.    19 people applied for the 

position of Business Support 

Apprentice, and the successful 

candidate Ms Anwen Howells is 

currently developing well in her role, 

guided by her tutor from the University 

of Wales Trinity St David’s. 

 

 

Tudalen 24

https://www.bing.com/images/search?q=university+of+wales+trinity+st+david's&FORM=IARRTH&ufn=University+of+Wales,+Trinity+Saint+David&stid=e14b86f9-271f-7374-d9c4-335ec2528f08&cbn=EntityAnswer&cbi=0&FORM=IARRTH


Working with the Chief Officer Team 

 

5  

 

I hold the Chief Constable to account for the 

Force’s Performance against the Police and 

Crime Plan.  At fortnightly Policing Board 

meetings and quarterly Police Accountability 

Board meetings I focus on different areas of 

the Force, providing support and challenge to 

overall performance against agreed priorities.  

Minutes from these meetings are published on 

my website. 

 

 

Under the Chief Officers’ leadership Dyfed-

Powys Police have seen marked 

improvements in the results of Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and 

Rescue Service (HMICFRS) inspections.  In a 

recent Dyfed-Powys Chief Officers’ roadshow, 

HMIC Wendy Williams publicly complimented 

the work Dyfed-Powys Police had undertaken 

to improve its practices. 

 

 

I have had the pleasure of attending various 

community engagement events with both Chief 

Constable Mark Collins and his Deputy, Darren 

Davies, including quarterly Policing 

Accountability Board meetings in Aberystwyth 

University (July ’17), Pembrokeshire College 

(Nov ’17) and Llanelli Library (Feb ’18).  In 

November 2017 I instigated a series of 

evening meetings with Chief Officers in public 

locations around the Force Area.  The Chief 

and his Deputy’s attendance at these events 

have been extremely beneficial to the Force in 

order to hear first-hand the issues that are 

affecting different communities.  Further details 

of these public meetings are provided on my 

website. 

“As Chief Constable I am responsible for 
safeguarding our communities through the 
delivery of efficient, effective and responsive 
policing. Supporting the Police and Crime Plan 
is our Police and Crime Delivery Plan that sets 
out how we will deliver policing against the 
Police and Crime Plan priorities.” 

 – Mark Collins BSc. 

Tudalen 25

http://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/accountability/policing-board/


DRAFT 

6 
 

Keeping our Communities Safe 

 

Community Funding Programme 
 

As a Commissioner of services for the 

communities of Dyfed Powys, exclusively 

for 2017/18, I made available a funding 

programme for the community, which saw 

£75,000 available for projects that 

supported the priorities within my Police & 

Crime Plan. I invited bids that would 

supplement activity already underway 

across the communities of Dyfed-Powys. 

 

The fund was inundated with applications 

from community groups, charities and 

organisations across Dyfed Powys. 106 

applications for funding totalling £460k 

were received! Following some very 

difficult decisions on what all were worthy 

causes, 11 applications were successful. 

A total of £49,855 was awarded in the 

first instance to a variety of projects that 

supported initiatives such as tackling 

online child sexual exploitation and 

diversionary activities for young people. 

Details of those who were awarded 

funding are available on my website. I 

look forward to working with the 

successful bids through the 

developments of their projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Anti-Social Behaviour 

 
2017/18 was the final year of the contract 

with Gwalia who during 2017/18 continued 

to provide their service across the Dyfed-

Powys area to reduce the impact of Anti-

social Behaviour (ASB).  Throughout the 

year, 472 referrals were made, 330 of these 

were for enforcement activity, 121 were for 

support and 21 requested mediation. 5 of 

these cases saw a positive agreement 

being reached between the two parties 

undertaking mediation.  

 

Gwalia were commissioned to deliver a 

victim led service across the Force area. 

Based on feedback from partners, they 

have continued to flex arrangements to 

provide a service that works best for all. 

This flexible approach has allowed real time 

improvements to be made to the service for 

victims. During the year, discussions on the 

future of the service took place and from 

April 2018, the management of ASB will 

form part of the service provided by the 

Goleudy Team.  Goleudy whom currently 

offer the victim support and referral service 

for the people of Dyfed-Powys will now also 

be responsible for ASB. 

 

 

Did you know? 

In June 2017, Dyfed-Powys Police Officers in 

Welshpool secured their first guilty plea directly 

linked to Body Worn Camera evidence following  

the role out of this technology to officers and staff 

across the Force. 

Tudalen 26

http://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/the-commissioner/commissioners-community-funding/


Keeping our communities safe 

 

7  

 

Substance Misuse Services                                         Assaults on Emergency Workers  
 
I currently invest in jointly commissioned 

services across the Health Board 

footprints of Hywel Dda and Powys.  This 

service provides support services and 

onward referrals for those both within and 

outside the criminal justice system 

identified as having substance misuse 

needs. 

The services received approximately 846 

referrals throughout the year, 509 

commenced treatments and 53% of clients 

who exited the treatment services were 

classed as a positive closure.  The 

contract with Kaleidoscope (covering 

Powys) ceases in March 2019.  I 

recommended that Hywel Dda Area 

Planning Board utilised the option to 

extend the current contract with Dyfed 

Drug and Alcohol Service (DDAS), 

covering Dyfed for a further 12 months to 

31st March 2019.  This would allow some 

amendments to be made to the existing 

service model for criminal justice and 

reconsideration of the funding envelope 

which accompanies this work in particular.   

 

By extending the contract with DDAS to 

31st March 2019, plans will be brought into 

line with Powys Area Planning Board who 

have the first break clause in their contract 

at 31st March 2019, this way discussions 

can take place during the coming financial 

year regarding potential future 

developments at Dyfed-Powys level. 
 
 
 

You said… tackle drug problems including 

the cultivation, dealing and trafficking of 

drugs. 

 

 

In March 2018, I wrote to the 7 local 

Members of Parliament within the Dyfed-

Powys 

area to encourage them to support the 

upcoming Assaults on Emergency 

Workers (Offences) Bill. 

 

This is an important initiative which seeks 

to underline the importance of protecting 

emergency workers from assault. 

Emergency workers do their utmost to 

deliver invaluable services, day in day out 

no matter the circumstances. 

 

Last year, Dyfed-Powys Police recorded 

187 assaults against police officers, of 

which 48 were serious. This is 

unacceptable. I stand in solidarity with 

colleagues and officers, and 

indeed all blue light emergency workers 

alike in supporting this Bill. 

Tudalen 27



DRAFT 

8 
 

Keeping our Communities Safe 

 
 

Pembrokeshire Community 
Safety Team 

 
In my desire to support 

Community Safety Teams across 

Dyfed-Powys I invested £34,890 

over 3 years to Pembrokeshire 

Community Safety team to fund the 

KiVa Anti-bullying project.  Over the 

grant period, the project will aim to 

deliver a program to prevent 

bullying and tackle cases of bullying 

effectively.   To do this, 

Pembrokeshire Community Safety 

Team will establish the project in 

primary and secondary schools, 

with a view to achieving the 

following –  

 Set a baseline measurement on 

the level of bullying in 2016; 

 Understand the level and type of 

cyber bullying that takes place; 

 Assess the awareness of pupils 

of sources of help with bullying 

problems; 

 Assess pupils’ views on the 

effectiveness of their schools’ 

response to bullying; 

 Provide empirical evidence for 

policy development and 

recommendations to improve; 

 Provide opportunities to 

demonstrate exemplar equalities 

practice and provide evidence to 

support. 

 
 

Tudalen 28

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=x8dt8WwQ&id=6B41C049FC387B562F74882BADF99CAE60E5917C&thid=OIP.3NNYw8gSpccnfNWBjj9SYQHaQW&mediaurl=https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/en/thumb/c/ca/Pembrokeshire_County_Council_Logo.svg/464px-Pembrokeshire_County_Council_Logo.svg.png&exph=1024&expw=464&q=pembrokeshire+county+council&simid=608032260471327008&selectedIndex=0


Safeguarding the vulnerable 

 

9  

 

Research 

 
St. David’s Day Annual Conference  

‘Mental Health and Policing’ 

 
Following the success of my 2016 Conference 

on Coercive Control, my team enlisted the help 

of partner organisations, commissioned 

services and representatives from other Police 

Forces to host a Mental Health Conference in 

2017, focusing on “Mental Health in Policing”. 

 

Informative and often moving presentations 

were given by Chief Constable Mark Collins, 

Professor John Williams, Michael Brown OBE 

and Mr. Tony Herbert.  Tony’s son, James 

Herbert, tragically died in Police custody in the 

Avon and Somerset area in 2010.  Tony’s 

speech was a poignant remembrance of his 

campaign for social justice since James’ 

avoidable death in 2010, with dignified 

retrospection of the impact of James’ death on 

the officers involved in his detainment. 

 

 
 

 
During the event, I was delighted and 

honoured to launch a wonderful new service 

for the NHS named ‘IAWN’.  ‘IAWN’ has been 

developed by Hywel Dda Health Board in 

partnership with West Wales Action for 

Mental Health.  The website provides 

valuable quality and easily accessible 

information to those in need of mental health 

support in our communities.  Partnership 

working is an approach that is essential to 

addressing and tackling the issues that lie 

ahead of us. 

Tudalen 29



DRAFT 

10 
 

Safeguarding the Vulnerable 

 

Supporting Victims 

 
During 2017/18, I worked closely with 

community safety and criminal justice 

partners to safeguard children and young 

people, families and vulnerable adults. 

 

Child protection Youth Offending Teams (YOTs) 
 

Llamau provides direct support to children 

and young people offering the opportunity 

to talk about their experience and to 

ascertain why they went missing.   

Throughout 2017-18, 1230 young people 

were reported as missing; of these, 339 

were referred for debriefing interviews of 

which 304 were first time debriefs and 59 

cases identified child sexual exploitation 

with 44 being referred to safeguarding 

teams. 

The service costs a maximum of £245 per 

debrief compared with the cost of £1300-

£2400 to investigate a single missing 

person episode.  The contract is extended 

to 31st March 2020 at current value. 
 

 

Supporting young people is very important to 

me. Working with young people in a targeted 

and preventative manner can achieve a 

reduction in offending and risk of harm 

amongst young people.   

This year I increased the amount I invested in 

Youth Offending Teams (YOTs) by 60% from 

£110,000 (2016/17) to £180,000. YOTs are 

multiagency teams that bring together Police, 

Health, Social Services, Probation and 

Education. Along with my contribution, YOTs 

are funded by Welsh Government and Local 

Authorities. They work to reduce the risk of 

young people aged 8-17 years from offending 

and improving their safety and wellbeing. This 

is done by using targeted interventions and it 

is voluntary for the young people to engage. 

426 individuals were referred throughout 

2017/18 – 70% of these were male and 85% 

were under the age of 16. Further analysis 

work will be completed in the coming year to 

quantify the positive outcomes being 

achieved by these interventions. This work 

will include the cost saving benefits of this 

programme and how intervention can provide 

a long term sustainable reduction in offending 

rates, both by young people, but also 

reducing the risk of a young offender 

becoming an adult offender, therefore 

breaking the offending cycle.  

 

 

 

 
‘I want to ensure that victims of crime have 

access to a support system which provides a 

single point of contact and a streamlined 

service provision.’ – Dafydd Llywelyn (PCC) 

Tudalen 30



Safeguarding the Vulnerable 

 

11  

Domestic Abuse Sexual Abuse 
 

Domestic Abuse continues to be one of the 

most serious issues facing our community 

and thus, continues to be a high priority of my 

Policing Plan. It affects both men and women 

and reaches far and wide into our 

communities, affecting not only those who 

are subject to Domestic Abuse, but also their 

families and friends. 

During 2017/18, Hafan Cymru were providing 

an independent Domestic Abuse service 

across the four counties of Dyfed Powys. The 

service continued to support those affected, 

in particular, those who are vulnerable or at 

high risk of abuse. The Independent 

Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs) work 

closely with victims of Domestic Abuse and 

supports them both practically and 

emotionally from the point of reporting 

through the entire criminal justice process. 

In 2017-18, 801 clients were referred to the 

service from across the Force area with 543 

referrals taken onto caseload, equating to 

almost 70% of the total referrals; 263 of these 

reported increased feelings of safety upon 

case closure. 

Hafan Cymru’s contract ceased on the 31st of 

March 2018 however I have extended the 

contract for 3 months to ensure continuation 

of service was secured whilst the successful 

tender was being embedded. 

 
 

New Pathways continue to provide 24 hour 

access to crisis support for victims and on-

going support in a safe environment that offers 

safeguarding and specialist clinical and 

forensic care. 

The number of referrals for 2017/18 was 356; 

nearly 40% of referrals to New Pathways 

during this year were historic cases; 77% of 

clients reported feeling less depressed after 

receiving treatment, with 83% feeling that they 

were better able to cope. 

The current contract consists of £32,000 for a 

crisis worker at the Newtown and Aberystwyth 

sites, £42,339 for victims of Child Sexual 

Abuse and £63,000 contribution to the crisis 

worker and Independent Sexual Violence 

Advisor at the Carmarthen site. 

 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
‘I want victims to feel confident that when 

they report a crime they will be listened to 

and believed. All crime and incidents 

should be recorded accurately and at the 

point of reporting. I want Dyfed-Powys 

Police to work with victims to reduce the 

number of non-reported crimes, 

particularly those that can have a 

devastating effect on the vulnerable, such 

as domestic abuse, hate crime and 

sexual offences.’ – Dafydd Llywelyn 

(PCC) 

Tudalen 31



DRAFT 

12 
 

Safeguarding the Vulnerable 

 

Victim Satisfaction 

 
During 2017/18, 836 interviews were 

conducted with victims of crime. The results 

showed that 77% of these victims were 

satisfied with the service provided as a ‘whole 

experience’ and 91% were satisfied with the 

treatment received by the police. Dyfed-Powys 

Police conduct the surveys with a Domestic 

Abuse Officer completing the surveys with 

victims of domestic abuse. In cases where 

victims are not satisfied with the level of contact 

they received, the callers can look into each 

case and advise officers of this. Cases can be 

re-opened if necessary and having this service 

in-house allows lessons to be learnt from past 

experiences to ensure a continuously improved 

service for victims of crime. 

 
Restorative Justice 

 
A victim-led restorative justice service is 

provided by Wales Community Rehabilitation 

Company. Trained and accredited facilitators 

work with individuals to improve the access to 

restorative justice to collectively resolve how to 

deal with the aftermath of an offence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Throughout 2017/18 26 referrals were 

received with 2 restorative justice 

conferences completed.  

 

The Pathfinder Project 

 

2017/18 has seen us prepare for the launch 

of The Pathfinder Project which is a project 

being delivered with our voluntary sector 

partners Pobl.  A launch is planned in April 

2018.  The culture changing initiative seeks 

to tackle the root causation of offending and 

associated health and community related 

issues.  It is a multi-agency programme 

which seeks to address offending behaviour 

at a much earlier stage in an individual’s 

offending journey and improve the 

awareness of and access to health based 

services.  The initiative will work with a third 

sector provider to identify why an individual 

has offended and what the best 

interventions are so that the appropriate 

services can be utilised to support the 

individual away from crime.  The initiative 

aims to identify those at greater risk of low 

level offending, and reduce the number of 

victims of crime by offering eligible offenders 

a 4 month long contract to engage with 

support as an alternate to prosecution.  The 

contract will offer interventions to address 

the underlying reasons why the offender 

committed the crime, and to prevent them 

from committing crime again. 

 

My office and Dyfed-Powys Police will be 

working with Pobl to implement the scheme 

as a pilot in Haverfordwest for 12 months, 

from April 2018.      

  

 
‘Safeguarding the vulnerable is a key priority 

for me. I believe that everyone, particularly 

those who are most vulnerable to crime and 

abuse because of their age, ethnicity, 

disability, health, sexual orientation and any 

other factor deserves to live safely, free from 

harm and abuse.’ – Dafydd Llywelyn (PCC) 

Tudalen 32



Safeguarding the Vulnerable 

 

13  

 

 

Goleudy 

In September 2017 Baroness Newlove the 

Victims’ Commissioner visited Dyfed-Powys 

Police Headquarters to launched the Dyfed-

Powys Victims’ Engagement Forum.  

Embarking on various stages of the criminal 

justice process is a daunting prospect for 

victims however with engagement and support 

we can break down the barriers that they face.   

As Commissioner I believe it is vital that we 

work together with victims to ensure that their 

voices are welcomed and carefully listened to.  

Goleudy is a commissioned service which 

provides anyone affected by crime, regardless 

of whether they’ve reported it to the police, with 

the support they need to recover from their 

experience.  Victims and witnesses from across 

Dyfed-Powys Force area will be offered support 

and assistance.  One of the important aspects 

about Goleudy is that victims of crime can 

speak to a representative about their options if 

they haven’t reported the crime, allowing 

victims to talk through their experience at their 

own pace before moving forward. 

 

Tudalen 33



DRAFT 

14 
 

Protecting our communities from serious threats 
 

 

 

Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE’s)  – 

Home Office Police Transformation Fund 

 

The ACE’s project is a collaborative approach 

to policing vulnerability in Wales: developing a 

multi-partner ‘ACE’ informed approach for 

early intervention and root cause prevention.   

This is an all Wales collaborative project 

between the four Police and Crime 

Commissioners across Wales. The project is 

also being jointly led by working in partnership 

with Public Health Wales.  

The project falls within a bigger ambition to 

break generational cycles of ACEs, reducing 

the risk of poor outcomes by creating a multi-

agency platform for early intervention and 

prevention, and provides the potential to 

significantly reduce events and issues that are 

demanding of police time and the wider 

Criminal Justice System. In total, the project 

was awarded £7 million over 3 years from the 

Home Office Police Transformation Fund. 

 

 

Financial Investigator investment 

 

A financial contribution of £37,000 plus training 

costs of £3,000, was made to the CID from the 

Proceeds of Crime Act budget.  The 

contribution went towards increasing the 

establishment of Financial Investigator’s within 

the Financial Crime Team, adding to the 

resilience of the team and increasing their 

ability to investigate financial crime.   

 

 

Community Impact Evaluation 

 

I invested £5,000 in Dyfed-Powys Police and 

the University of South Wales to allow them to 

conduct an evaluation  

 

 

 

on a recent Police Operation conducted in  

Llanelli.  The nature of the Operation was 

combat the level of drug supply within several 

Llanelli communities and the investment in 

funding was to evaluate the impact of these 

Operations on the communities and how 

effective they had been.   

  

Council for Wales Voluntary Youth 

Services (CWVYS) 

 

I invested £33,000 into a 12 month pilot with 

CWVYS.  The pilot will assist me in achieving 

the aims expressed in my Police and Crime 

Plan specifically Priority 3: Protecting our 

communities from series threats. 

 

The aims of the project are to –  

 Harness the skills and 

resourcefulness of voluntary youth 

work organisations in support of 

young people; 

 To enhance life chances and 

prospects for young people aged 11-

24 in specific hot spots of 

disadvantage and greatest need in 

Carmarthen and Fishguard; 

 To engage 4 sessional outreach 

youth workers to provide practical 

support to young people; 

 CWVYS members organisations to 

provide diversionary activities for 11-

24 year olds in Carmarthen and 

Fishguard. 

 

The outcomes of the project are to increase 

young people 11-24 years old being 

contacted through outreach services and 

increase in young people engaged in 

meaningful diversionary activities. 

Tudalen 34



Connecting with communities 

 

 

15  

 

Volunteers 

 
I have continued to host a number of 

volunteer schemes including the Animal 

Welfare Scheme, Independent Custody 

Visiting Scheme and the Quality Assurance 

Panel. We currently have 48 volunteers 

working with me to help monitor and ensure 

professionalism within Dyfed-Powys Police. 

The range of volunteer schemes available 

within my Office play an important part in 

supporting me with my vision and the 

delivery of my Police and Crime Plan.  

 

 
Volunteer Training 

 
My office teamed up with Dyfed-Powys 

Police to deliver a volunteer training day in 

December 2017. Members from the 

Independent Advisory Group, Quality 

Assurance Panel, Animal Welfare and 

Independent Custody Visiting Schemes 

came together in Police Headquarters for a 

day full of development sessions, including 

mental health, effective scrutiny, stop and 

search, data protection and chairing meeting 

skills. 

Animal Welfare Scheme 

 
Volunteers in my Animal Welfare Scheme 

look at the welfare and conditions under which 

Dyfed-Powys police dogs are housed, trained, 

transported and deployed.  Our Animal 

Welfare visitors are independent members of 

the local community, this increases the 

public’s confidence that police dogs are being 

cared for and trained humanely, ethically and 

transparently. 

Over the last year our Animal Welfare Visitors 

made 26 visits to dog handlers and within 

these visits they saw 54 dogs. No concerns 

have been raised over the last year in relation 

to the welfare of Dyfed-Powys Police dogs. 

In September 2017 an annual training/ thank 

you day was organised. Within the training 

day the Animal Welfare visitors received an 

update from the dog Section on their work 

over the last year and they also had the 

opportunity to observe new Handlers going 

through their training with their dogs. 

 

 

 

 

 
Volunteers’ Week  

Volunteers’ Week between the 1st 

and 7th of June will be an opportunity 

to celebrate volunteering in all its 

diversity.  There are currently 48 

volunteers working for my office and 

this will be my opportunity to thank 

each and every one of them. 

 

Tudalen 35



DRAFT 

16 
 

Connecting with communities 
 

 

Quality Assurance Panel 

 
My Quality Assurance Panel, 

established in December 2016, has 

continued to develop and now reviews 

a wide variety of police contact with 

the public. Throughout 2017/18, they 

considered a selection of: 

1. Local resolution complaint 

cases 

2. Calls handled through the Force 

Communication Centre i.e. 999, 

101 and switchboard calls 

3. Low-level dissatisfaction cases 

4. Stop and search encounters 

The Panel Members’ observations are 

fed back directly to the relevant 

department for comment and/or action, 

as well as being reported directly to 

the Chief Constable and me via our 

quarterly Police Accountability Board 

meetings. The Panel are increasingly 

invited by the Force to review 

additional areas of police contact, 

which is testimony to the value of their 

feedback in supporting customer 

focussed service improvements. 

To date the Panel’s feedback has: 

 Identified areas of good 

practice, resulting in praise and 

recognition for staff 

 Suggested areas for supervisor 

reviews to ensure standards are 

being maintained (by seeking 

supervisor’s views on how 

certain interactions have been 

handled) 

 Provided assurance on the 

efficiency of processes (by  

  

 

 

 

 identifying and querying delays 

in cases) 

 Supported the dissemination of 

learning points through and 

between departments  

 Provided an independent view 

on how the Force 

communicates, ensuring the 

public remain at the centre 

(through jargon busting and  

suggesting improvements to 

written communications) 

My office has recently recruited an 

additional four Members to the Panel, 

bringing additional resilience and 

breadth of experience to the group. I 

am extremely grateful of the support 

the Panel provides to me in order to 

ensure our communities receive a first 

class service. 

 

Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny 
Panel 

 
Representatives from across the 
criminal justice system are charged 
with reviewing the appropriateness of 
out of court disposals on my behalf. 
2017 saw Mr. David Parry-Williams, 
Chair of Carmarthenshire Magistrates 
Bench, handing over the Chair of the 
Panel to Mr. Nick Powell, Chair of 
Montgomeryshire Magistrates Bench. I 
am grateful for the support and 
leadership David has shown over the 
years and welcome Nick to the role.  
 
Throughout the 2017-18 year, the 
Panel has reviewed: 
 

1. 10 cases of assaults on police 

Tudalen 36



Connecting with Communities 

 

17  

 

 

 

 

2. 18 cases of possession of controlled 

drugs 

3. 19 cases of domestic / firearms related 

incidents 

4. 16 cases of public order 

Members of the Panel discuss the 
circumstances of each case in detail in 
order to pass a judgement on whether 
the crime(s) has been appropriately 
disposed and consequently the 
suspect being dealt with 
proportionately. The Panel are 
increasingly reviewing how the victim’s 
views are being incorporated into 
decision making. Over the past year, 
the Panel has influenced: 
 

 Additional guidance, feedback and 
training to officers, staff and 
supervisors regarding decision 
making and recording practices. 

 Process improvements between 

agencies such as the Police and 

Youth Offending Teams 

 Alterations to crime records to 

ensure outcomes are correctly 

recorded 

 The initiation of an internal 

review of all out of court 

disposals for youth sexual 

offences. This review resulted 

in five recommendations to 

improve how cases of this 

nature are handled. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Custody Visitors 

It is a statutory requirement for me to 

have an Independent Custody Visiting 

Scheme. These volunteers visit police 

custody areas to check on the wellbeing 

of detainees and to ensure that their rights 

are being upheld. They provide me with 

an independent assurance on the 

conditions in which detainees are being 

held within custody; providing the public 

with reassurance that detained persons 

are treated appropriately and fairly within 

Dyfed-Powys. 

In September 2017, my office organised 

an annual training day for all Independent 

Custody Visitors (ICVs).  Inputs during the 

day included, a session on the ‘Street 2 

Suite’ van and a review on what is 

recorded within a detainees Custody 

record.  

7 new ICVs were recruited and joined the 
ICV rota in October 2017. All new ICVs 
received induction training and visited 
custody for a shadow visit with an 
experienced ICV before commencing in  
their role.  The scheme had 3 resignations 
in December 2017, which therefore 
means that the scheme currently has 27 
active ICVs.  In 2017/18, a total of 199 
visits were made across the Force area,  
with 178 detainees being visited. Issues 

raised over this period include 

maintenance and cleanliness concerns 

i.e. peeling paint, cracks in flooring and 

inaccurate CCTV timings etc. All issues 

raised were reported to the Custody 

Inspector and passed on to the relevant 

individuals for actioning.  

 

Tudalen 37



DRAFT 

18 
 

Connecting with communities 
 

 

 

 

Over the last year a member of my office 

along with an ICV have been invited 

along to deliver an input on the role of the 

ICV within new custody staff training and 

within Custody staff refresher training. 

This ensures that all staff within custody 

are aware of the ICVs and their role. 

 

  

Tudalen 38



Connecting with Communities 

 

19  

 

 

 

Strategic Equality Plan 

 

 

 

 

I believe everyone deserves to live 

safely, free from harm and abuse.  To 

outline my commitment to promoting 

equality and fairness in everything we 

do, I launched a strategic equality plan 

in March 2017 which we have 

implemented during 2017/18.  An 

update on progress made against the 

Equality Plan Objectives is detailed 

below: 

 

Objective 1 

All members of our communities are 

provided with an opportunity to engage 

with me as the Commissioner through 

a variety of means. 

 

Over the past year I have held several 

public engagement events, six public 

meetings with the Chief Officer team 

and my quarterly Policing 

Accountability Board meetings with the 

Chief Constable in community venues 

across Dyfed-Powys.  Varying 

numbers of the public attended and 

were given the opportunity to ask me 

and the Chief Officers direct questions, 

raise local concerns and hear first-

hand how Dyfed-Powys Police are 

working to improve how they serve 

you. 

 

My office has established a quarterly 

interactive newsletter which is sent out 

to Dyfed-Powys residents and 

organisations.   

 

My staff and I attended the Royal 

Welsh Agricultural Show and 

Pembrokeshire Show over the summer 

months, promoting the services 

available to you and providing you with 

an opportunity to discuss issues 

affecting you.  We will be at both of 

these large events and the Urdd 

Eisteddfod during 2018 and look 

forward to sharing our further progress 

with you. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 39



DRAFT 

20 
 

Connecting with communities 
 

 

 

 

Objective 2 

My office provides and promotes 

alternative communication formats for 

accessing information and services 

provided by my team. 

 

The Force and my office launched our 

new-look websites early in 2018, 

making them easier to navigate and 

improving how we tell people about 

what I’m doing.  My Police and Crime 

Plan has been published in various 

forms, including British Sign 

Language, Easy Read and an Audio 

version in order to meet the needs of 

our diverse population.  The Plan has 

also been developed into a visual 

‘Delivery Plan on a Page’ in order to 

see how our and the Force’s action 

makes a difference in our 

communities. 

 

Objective 3 

Individuals with protected 

characteristics, such as age, disability, 

gender reassignment, marriage and 

partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 

race, religion or belief, sex or sexual  

orientation are supported to contribute  

to the work of the OPCC 

 

My volunteers have been  

supported to engage in additional 

personal development through a joint 

training day with the Force and I have 

recruited additional members to both 

my Independent Custody Visitors  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scheme and Quality Assurance Panel 

in order to increase the diversity of the 

membership. 

 

Objective 4 

Employees and representatives of the 

OPCC have received appropriate 

training in equality and diversity issues 

in order to improve services offered to 

the public. 

 

Towards the end of the financial year, 

the majority of my staff attended a 

disability awareness course in order to 

improve their understanding of 

additional needs and to improve our 

services’ accessibility.

Tudalen 40



Connecting with Communities 

 

21  

 

Welsh Government  

 
I meet regularly with the Cabinet Secretary 

for Children and Communities along with 

Chief Constable Collins and the other 

PCCs in Wales.  These are great 

opportunities to update the Government on 

the ongoing work in Dyfed-Powys, and 

seek support on issues we wish to raise to 

a national level.  Through these meetings I 

regularly have an opportunity to speak with 

the Cabinet Secretary for Health Vaughan 

Gething and the Cabinet Secretary for 

Economy and Transport Ken Skates to 

discuss inter-related issues. 

 
 

Safer Communities Roadshow Event 

 
In September 2017 I and other Welsh 

Police and Crime Commissioners hosted a 

Community Safety Partnership Roadshow 

in collaboration with Welsh Government.  

The event promoted our ongoing 

commitment to community safety and our 

work with partner organisations, local 

councils and Welsh Government. 

 

Domestic Abuse Consultation Event 

 

During May 2018, I attended a Welsh 

Government consultation process, looking 

into the way that Domestic Abuse is 

addressed throughout Wales. This 

consultation was open to the public and 

allowed the views of victims and survivors of 

domestic abuse, the police, criminal and 

family justice practitioners, front line service 

providers, social workers, amongst others to 

have their say on Domestic Abuse, and to 

help shape the way that services are offered 

and supported in the future.  

 

Through my Commissioning Team, I 

organised a thematic event aimed at 

addressing the needs of Older People in 

Dyfed Powys and how Domestic Abuse 

affects them. This involved focus group 

sessions which were attended by local 

Domestic Abuse providers, representatives 

from the Older People’s Commissioner, 

Swansea University representatives involved 

in the Dewi’s Choice programme, as well as 

survivors of Domestic abuse. The Event was 

supported and attended by members of the 

Home Office team, to allow first-hand 

experience of the people of Dyfed Powys to 

be heard and used to shape the future of 

services for the most vulnerable. 

 

All Wales Criminal Justice Board 

 

The Board was established in May 2011 with 

the aim of connecting representatives from the 

Police, Her Majesty’s Court Service, Youth 

Justice Board, Victim Support, NHS Wales, 

Crown Prosecution Service, Natinal Probation 

Service, Welsh Government, National 

Offender Management Service, Ministry of 

Justice, and the Legal Services Commission.  

Clear and close partnership between criminal 

justice agencies and Community Safety 

Partnerships are promoted in quarterly 

meetings which also monitor performance. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Tudalen 41



DRAFT 

22 
 

Working together 
 

 

 

 

Local Criminal Justice Board 

 

As the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Dyfed-Powys, I Chair the Local Criminal 

Justice Board (LCJB). The Board is 

comprised of key partners and senior 

representatives of Criminal Justice 

Agencies operating within the area, 

allowing for collaboration and cross-agency 

partnership working. It is responsible and 

accountable for the service provided to 

victims and witnesses the delivery of 

criminal justice in the area, and the 

improvements in the delivery of justice and 

securing public confidence. The Board’s 

membership includes: 

 

 Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime 

Commissioner (Chair) 

 Youth Offending Team Manager 

 Dyfed-Powys Police Assistance Chief 

Constable 

 Her Majesty’s Court Service Deputy 

Justices’ Clerk 

 National Probation Service Assistant 

Chief Executive 

 Crown Prosecution Service Deputy 

Chief Crown Prosecutor  

 Wales Community Rehabilitation 

Company: Assistant Chief Executive 

 Court Witness Service Wales Manager 

 Hywel Dda Health Board: Head of    

Strategic Partnership Development 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Dyfed-Powys LCJB 

reports directly to All Wales Criminal Justice Board.  
 
 
 
 

Welsh Language Standards  

I have continued to develop my staff’s Welsh 

language ability in order to provide a bilingual 

service as far as possible. All of my vacancies 

state that the ability to speak Welsh is 

desirable. The front facing staff in my Admin 

and Engagement teams are all Welsh 

speakers in order for the public to engage in 

their preferred language on the phone on at 

public events.  Currently 41% of my staff are 

confident at speaking through the medium of 

Welsh and 2 of my staff participated in 

training opportunities to improve their Welsh 

language skills. 
 

My office has worked with the Force in order 

to ensure that we adhere to the Welsh 

Language Measure of 2011 which states that 

Welsh and English must be treated equally.  

The OPCC has adopted the Force’s ‘Dau 

Iaith Dau Ddewis’ logo on its correspondence 

to ensure that the public know they have the 

option of communicating with us in either 

language.   

 

All OPCC led conferences and public events 

have a translator on hand and all 

documentation is available in Welsh and 

English.

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 42



Spending money wisely 

 

23  

 

In January 2017, I set a net budget of £96.6million to deliver policing services for the 
communities of Dyfed Powys during 2017/18.  This budget assumed a planned use of 
reserves to fund day to day services and included a 6.9% in January 2017 increase in council 
tax precept which, once again, was the lowest in Wales. 

 

Together, my office and the Chief Constable delivered these services largely in line with the 
budget, although I agreed the additional use of reserves to meet the costs of the tragic fire in 
Llangammarch Wells and the costs of the unconsolidated pay award which arose from the 
unforeseen lifting of the Government’s public sector pay cap.   The following table summarises 
the position: 
 
 

  2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 

  
Revised 
Budget 

Actual Variance 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 

Commissioner 
  

  

Office and Commissioning Costs 1,975 1,725 -250 

Estates Costs 3,481 3,691 210 

Total Commissioner 5,456 5,416 -40 

Chief Constable 94,302 94,573 271 

Other activities from reserves 286 136 -150 

Net contributions to/(from) reserves -3,428 -3,509 -81 

Group total (including reserves) 96,616 96,616 0 

Funded by grants and precepts -96,616 -96,616 0 

 

In addition to this revenue expenditure, £5.2m was also spent on capital investment to ensure 

that estate, vehicle and technology provision can adequately meet policing demands. 

At the end of 2017/18, reserves totalled £20.5m which included a general reserve of £4m to 

meet costs of unforeseen events, £4.1m to support costs of policing over the next three years 

along with £12.4m to fund future vital capital investment predominately in estates and 

technology. 

For further information on the 2017/18 financial position, please see the Group Statement of 

Accounts for 2017/18 published on our website. The Narrative Report at the beginning of the 

Accounts provides a helpful summary of the financial position. 

 

 

Financial Outlook  

Dyfed Powys Police Service has faced significant financial challenges since 2010 due to 

reductions in funding from central government along with costs pressures and continual 

changes in the demand for policing services.  The Government have indicated that a  

 Tudalen 43

https://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/what-i-do/official-documents/finance/
https://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/what-i-do/official-documents/finance/


DRAFT 

24 
 

Spending Money Wisely 

 

Comprehensive Spending Review will be conducted next year, the implications of which 

remain to be seen.   There are also uncertainties around the potential impact of Brexit and 

renewed Government priorities which may present future challenges for the policing sector. In 

addition there is also uncertainty around the Formula Funding Review which the Home Office 

may look to implement from 2020 which could see Dyfed Powys losing a significant proportion 

of the central funding that it currently receives. 

  

With my priorities and these uncertainties in mind, I consulted with the Chief Constable, the 

public and other stakeholders towards the end of 2017/18 before setting my budget for 

2018/19 and outlining my Medium Term Financial Plan. I will continue to engage and consult 

with communities and will work closely with the Chief Constable to ensure that the residents of 

Dyfed Powys receive the best possible services during 2018/19 and for the rest of my term of 

office.  

 

 

Tudalen 44

http://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/the-office/finance/precept-and-medium-term-financial-plan/


Spending money wisely 

 

25  

 

The commissioning budget for 2017/18 was £1,409,893 of which £604,715 was funded by the 

Victims’ Grant from the Ministry of Justice. The graph and table below show the detail of this 

allocation and expenditure by service area. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

£624,965 

£350,000 

£229,806 

£180,122 

£20,000 

Services for the Vulnerable -  
Amount spent on contracts 2017/18 

Victims Services

Substance Misuse

Management of ASB

Youth Offending Teams

Women's Pathfinder

 350,000  

 229,806  

 228,031  

 203,000  

 180,122  

 79,595  

 74,339  
 25,000   20,000  

 20,000  

Commissioning Spend for 2017/18 
Substance Misuse

Antisocial Behaviour

Domestic Abuse

Victims and Witnesses

Prevention of Youth Offending

Support for Missing Young People

Sexual Abuse

Restorative Justice

Victim Satisfaction

Women's Pathfinder

Tudalen 45



DRAFT 

26 
 

Commissioning 

 
Estates Project 
 
As Commissioner, I am responsible for 

the Dyfed-Powys Police Estates and 

the dedicated staff who maintain the 

land and  

buildings.  The estates program whose 

aim it is to enable our services to 

support the community effectively has 

continued in its aim to deliver a fit for 

purpose and cost effective estate. 

Aligned to this, further environmental 

improvements have been carried out 

(listed below) across the following 

properties where practicable, along 

with essential fabric improvements.  

This work will continue in the next 

financial year, and will prolong the  

 

 

 

 

lifespan of the estate and reduce our 

carbon footprint and operating costs on 

an ongoing basis. 

 

Loft insulation, LED lighting, Double 

Glazed Window and door installations, 

and increased zoning of building heating 

systems. 

 

During this period the following locations 

were focussed upon: 

 

Aberystwyth, Milford Haven, Pembroke 

Dock, Fishguard, Newcastle Emlyn, 

Ammanford, Crosshands, Llandysul, 

Haverfordwest, Narberth, Llandovery, 

Crymych and Aberaeron.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 46



DRAFT 

20 
 

Looking ahead 
 

 

 

Delivering on pledge to reinvest in 

CCTV 

 
I am currently working towards reinvesting in 

CCTV in 17 towns throughout Carmarthenshire, 

Ceredigion, Pembrokeshire and Powys.  116 

state of the arts CCTV cameras will be placed 

in towns identified as priority camera locations.   

These have been determined through analysis 

of crime and stakeholder consultation.  CCTV 

was a key election pledge of mine, and I 

promised I would invest in a modern CCTV 

infrastructure.  I am pleased to be able to say 

that this will soon be the case. 

 

Llanelli Police Station and Carmarthenshire 
Custody Project 
 
The new Llanelli Police Station and 

Carmarthenshire Custody Facility project 

continues and anticipated to gain significant 

momentum in the communing year. Land has 

been identified, ecological surveys have been 

completed, and we are currently working with 

the land owner to confirm next steps relating to 

the geotechnical surveys, aligned with the 

proposed building footprint on the site.  It is 

anticipated that a full public consultation 

process will commence in Q2/3 of the financial 

year followed with the planning application 

process. The building programme is estimated 

to take 18 months from successful planning 

application being received. 

 

 

 

 

Charity Bike Ride 

 
Between April 29 and May 4 I will be 

spending 5 days on my bike as part of a 

challenge dubbed #TourdeForce.  I will be 

cycling 500 miles with a team of supportive 

Dyfed-Powys Police officers to promote the 

Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel Charity. 

We will be cycling more than 3000 miles in 

order to visit 43 police stations across the 

Force area and hosting engagement events 

each evening to meeting with members of 

the public to raise awareness of the Charity. 

 

Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel 

 
Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel is the Commissioner’s 

Charity aimed at making a difference to 

communities within the Force Area.  Applications 

for funding will open on May the 10th and close on 

June the 29th, and is open to all communities 

groups and/or charities within the Force Area to 

apply for a maximum grant of £1000. 

 
 
 

 

  

 

Tudalen 47



Tudalen 48



 

 

Looking Ahead 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
21 

 

Tudalen 49



DRAFT 

22 
 

Looking ahead 

191
4  

 
 
 
 
 

 

If you require any further information or would like this document in 

an alternative format please contact us. 

This Annual Report is also available on our website in Welsh. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact the PCC 

Tel: 01267 226440 

Email: opcc@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 

OPCC, PO Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen, SA31 2PF 

 
Tudalen 50

mailto:opcc@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk


PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED-POWYS
27 GORFFENNAF 2018

PENDERFYNIADAU A WNAED GAN Y COMISIYNYDD
Yr argymhellion/penderfyniadau allweddol y mae eu hangen:

Ystyried y penderfyniadau a wnaed gan y Comisiynydd a gwneud y fath adroddiad neu 
argymhellion ag y gwêl y Panel yn briodol. 

Rhesymau: 

Mae dyletswydd statudol ar y Panel i wneud hyn.

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swydd:

Rheolwr Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol

Rhif Ffôn:

01267 224018

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

rjedgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 51

Eitem Rhif  7



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DYFED – POWYS POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

27TH JULY 2018

DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE COMMISSIONER

Section 28(6) of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 requires the Panel to 
review or scrutinise decisions made and actions taken by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner in connection with the discharge of his functions and make reports and 
recommendations to the Commissioner in relation to the discharge of those functions.

Any such reports or recommendations must be published by the Panel.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

Host Authority File LS-0511/31 County Hall, Carmarthen

Tudalen 52



OFFICIAL 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

Decisions made by the Commissioner (including those made at Policing 
Board) 19th December 2017 – 16th July 2018 

Title & Summary Date 
Funding for research into domestic abuse 

The Commissioner approved £22,172 be awarded for an 18-
month outcome evaluation of the Priority Perpetrator 
Identification Tool pilot which has been running in Dyfed-Powys 
since December 2016. The research will be conducted by Cardiff 
University and the University of South Wales.  
 

Dec 19 

Quality Assurance Panel expansion action plan 

The Commissioner approved the plan detailing how the Quality 
Assurance Panel’s membership, reach and remit will be 
expanded. 
 

Dec 19 

Encryption tender award 

The Commissioner approved the award of a contract to 
ComputaCentre Ltd for the supply and 5 years support and 
maintenance of an encryption overlay at the cost of £667,256.12. 
 

Dec 19 

National Units Collaboration 

The Commissioner signed a Section 22A Collaboration Agreement 
regarding National Units. 
 

Jan 16 

Joint Corporate Governance Framework 

The Commissioner and Chief Constable agreed on their 2018-19 
Joint Corporate Governance Framework. 
 

Jan 16 

Force Executive Board 

The Commissioner and Chief Constable agreed that the Chief of 
Staff would represent the OPCC at Dyfed-Powys Police’s quarterly 
Force Executive Board meetings. 
 

Jan 16 

Charitable contribution towards the WAAT4 Challenge 

The Commissioner approved a financial contribution of £2,000 
towards the WAAT4 Challenge on the basis of reputational benefit 
for Dyfed-Powys Police and the significant involvement of local 
officers in this community and charitable enterprise. 
 

Jan 22 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen 53



OFFICIAL 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

 
Service for Victims of Sexual Abuse 

The Commissioner approved a contract extension for New 
Pathways for the provision of services for victims of sexual abuse 
at a cost of £136,570 for 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2020. 
 

Jan 30 

Domestic Homicide Reviews 

The Commissioner agreed with the Chief Constable that the Force 
would commit to making a financial contribution to Domestic 
Homicide Reviews alongside other statutory partners. 
 

Jan 30 

CCTV contract 

The Commissioner approved the award of a contract to Baydale 
Control Services Ltd for the supply, installation, commissioning 
and maintenance of public space CCTV at a cost of £984,961 
(capital) and £259,130 (revenue) across a five year period. 
 

Apr 27 

Donation to Mentrau Iaith ‘Ras yr Iaith’ 

The Commissioner approved a donation of £500 from the Police 
Property Fund to Mentrau Iaith for their Ras yr Iaith event taking 
place throughout Dyfed-Powys. 
 

May 16 

Donation to Ammanford Football Club 

The Commissioner approved a donation of £196 from the Police 
Property Fund to Ammanford Football Club for their community 
event. 
 

May 16 

Donation to Central Beacons Mountain Rescue Team 

The Commissioner approved a donation of £2,000 to the Central 
Beacons Mountain Rescue Team to support the replacement of 
equipment following a fire at their base. 
 

May 17 

Road Safety Support Annual Membership 

The Commissioner approved the award of a contract to Road 
Safety Support Ltd for the provision of expert advice, reports and 
witness statements across the GoSafe partnership at a cost of 
£41,200. 
 

May 22 

ICT Backup Solution Professional Services contract 

The Commissioner approved the award of a contract to Tectrade 
for the continued provision of ICT backup support at a cost of 
£31,157 for one year. 
 

May 22 

Tudalen 54



OFFICIAL 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

Policing Board standing agenda items 

The Commissioner agreed that Human Resources and Finance 
would be discussed each month at the Policing Board meetings.   
 

May 22 

Vetting policy for Llanelli custody and station new build 
site contractors 

The Commissioner approved the decision to establish a specific 
vetting policy for the new site due to the size of the project and 
the number of contractors who will be involved. 
Package contractors working on the project will not need to be 
vetted; this includes trades working on grounds work, main 
frame/structure, internal structure layout and first fix works. 
There will be another meeting held in advance of the second fix 
to evaluate the vetting requirement, as this stage will involve 
sensitive information such as where the security systems and 
fittings will be installed. 
 

Jun 1 

Relocation of Haverfordwest Vehicle Maintenance Unit 
(VMU) 

The Commissioner approved the decision made at the Estates 
Project Board to relocate Haverfordwest VMU to the neighbouring 
Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service (MAWWFRS) site. 
Benefits identified include reduced costs; increased operational 
efficiency; reduced lone worker risk; and increased resilience by 
sharing work with MAWWFRS technicians when necessary.  
 

Jun 1 

Discontinuation of Overnight Security Guard service at HQ 

The Commissioner has approved the decision made at the Estates 
Project Board to discontinue the service. The decision was made 
on a number of key changes: installation of CCTV around HQ site; 
relocation of Carmarthen Police Station to its current 
neighbouring site; and the out of hours cover provided to the on-
site facilities by the Force Communication Centre. 
 

Jun 1 

Student internship with the Open University in Wales 

The Commissioner approved the advertisement of a Student 
Internship opportunity working with the assurance team in the 
OPCC for a 10 week placement. The placement is in partnership 
with the Open University in Wales and funded by Santander, who 
will pay the student’s first two weeks wages. The remainder of 
the weeks will be funded 50% by the OPCC and 50% by 
Santander, costing the OPCC £1,200 for the 10 week placement. 
 

Jun 6 

Mobile SIMS contract 

The Commissioner approved the award of a contract to EE for 
mobile SIMS at a cost of £237,000 for a period of 3 years. 

Jun 19 

Tudalen 55



OFFICIAL 
 

OFFICIAL 
 

e-Notebook software contract 

As part of the Force’s Mobile Data Programme, the Commissioner 
approved the extension of the existing contract with Airwave 
Solutions Ltd for an additional two year period for the provision of 
e-Notebook software at a cost of £178,532. 
 

Jun 19 

Revision to Quality Assurance Panel handbook 

The Commissioner approved the amendments to the Quality 
Assurance Panel’s handbook in line with the decision of 19th 
December. Changes include: the Panel’s remit is extended to any 
area of police contact with the public; the removal of the 
introduction to complaints handling; the maximum Panel 
membership is increased from 12 to 15; the inclusion of a specific 
reference to the OPCC welcoming applications from diverse 
backgrounds; the increase in Panel activities to include diverse 
community groups in the Commissioner’s scrutiny work; and 
improvements to how the Panel’s findings are reported to the 
Commissioner and Force. 
 

Jul 12 

Sale of redundant former police buildings – Phase 2 

The Commissioner approved a private treaty sale for two 
properties on behalf of the OPCC, with support from BP2 
Chartered Surveyors and Carreg Law Solicitors. The first site is at 
St David’s and second is a former police house in Heol Tyn y 
Fron, Aberystwyth. Properties will be offered to Local Authorities 
prior to going to the open market. 
 

Jul 16 

Carmarthen Neighbourhood Policing Team (NPT) base 

The Commissioner has approved the decision made by Force 
representatives and the Director of Estates on the relocation of 
Carmarthen NPT. The facility requires moderate investment in the 
form of decoration, fitting out and installation of a Public Call 
Point. 
 

Jul 16 

 

 

Tudalen 56



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED-POWYS 
27 GORFFENNAF 2018

                        BWRDD ATEBOLRWYDD YR HEDDLU
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Nodi agenda, adroddiadau a chofnodion y Bwrdd Atebolrwydd ar 8fed Mai 2018 a 
holi'r Comisiynydd amdanynt. 

Y Rhesymau: 
Un o ddyletswyddau statudol y Comisiynydd yw dwyn y Prif Gwnstabl i gyfrif am roi'r 
Cynllun Heddlu a Throseddu ar waith. Un o'r dulliau o wneud hynny yw drwy gyfrwng 
cyfarfodydd Bwrdd Atebolrwydd yr Heddlu.

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Robert Edgecombe

Swydd:

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol

01267 224018

Awduron yr Adroddiad:

Y Cyng. William Powell

Robert Edgecombe

Swyddi:

Pencampwr Panel Perthnasol

Legal Services Manager

Rhif Ffôn

01267 224018

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

rjedgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

 

Tudalen 57

Eitem Rhif  8



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DYFED – POWYS POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

27TH JULY 2018

POLICE ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD

On the 8th May 2018 a Police Accountability Board was held in Crickhowell school at which 
the Police and Crime Commissioner sought to hold the Chief Constable to account.

One of the roles of the Panel is to scrutinise how the Commissioner performs this function.

Panel members are requested to note the agenda, reports and minutes of that meeting and 
question the Commissioner accordingly.

Panel members are reminded that the purpose of this report is to enable to the Panel to 
scrutinise how the Commissioner holds the Chief Constable to account. Panel 
members should therefore not seek to question the Commissioner about operational 
policing matters.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref 
No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Host Authority File LS-0511/31 County Hall, Carmarthen

Tudalen 58



                                     
 

23rd of April 

 

TO: The Police and Crime Commissioner, Chief Constable, Deputy 

Chief Constable, Assistant Chief Constable, Director of 
Finance, Chief Finance Officer and Director of Resources 

 

Copy to: ACPO and Senior Officers/Staff 

  OPCC Staff 

  Press  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

A meeting of the Dyfed-Powys Policing Accountability Board will be held on 

Tuesday the 8th of May at Crickhowell School between 10:30 – 13:30 for 

the transaction of the business on the attached agenda. Members of the Press 

and Public may attend this meeting.  Those wishing to do so are asked to 

contact the OPCC in advance to inform us of any requirements, or if they wish to 

contribute to the meeting through the medium of Welsh.   

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Carys Morgans 
Chief of Staff 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 59



                                     
 

AGENDA 

 

Opening with an informal session with students from Ysgol 

Crickhowell. 

1. Welcome and Apologies 

2. Minutes of the Accountability Meeting held on February the 13th 

2018.  

 

3. Force Performance Report Quarter 4 

 

4. Financial performance during quarter 4 

 

 

5. Update on the Police and Crime Delivery Plan, focusing on: 

a) Victim Satisfaction 

PAB VICTIM 
SATISFACTION APRIL 18.docx

 

b) Public Confidence 

PAB April 2018 
v2.docx

 

Tudalen 60



                                     
 

c) Organisational Health and Wellbeing 

PAB- Organisational 
Health  Wellbeing 19.4.2018.docx

 

d) HMICFRS 

PAB HMICFRS.docx

 

e) IPCC 

PSD - Policing 
Accountability Board Final Version April 2018 dg.docx

 

 

6. Update on Policing Board focus areas during quarter 4. 

a. Crime Data Integrity 

 

b. Victim Services 

 

7. Scrutiny activity feedback 

 

2018-01  OOCD 
report - Draft.doc

 

8. Action and Risk Summary from Meeting 

9. AoB 

 

Tudalen 61



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

     

Members: Mr Dafydd Llywelyn, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
Chief Constable Mark Collins (CC) 
Mrs Carys Morgans, Chief of Staff, OPCC (CM)
Mrs Jayne Woods, Chief Finance Officer, OPCC (CFO)
Deputy Chief Constable Darren Davies (DCC)
Mr Edwin Harries, Director of Finance (DoF)

Also 
Present:

Ms Emma Northcote, Corporate Communication (EN)
Staff Officer Gwyndaf Bowen (GB)
Miss Mair Harries, Executive Support, OPCC (MH)

Apologies:

1 Welcome and apologies

The Commissioner welcomed sixth form students from local secondary school Ysgol 
y Strade and their teachers.  The Board members each took a turn introducing 

ACTION SUMMARY FROM MEETING ON 03/11/2017
Action No Action Summary Progress:
PAB 068 DPP to provide an update on the OPCC website in 

Policing Board on November 21, 2017.
Complete

PAB 069 Police Accountability Board meetings to be re-
arranged.

Complete

PAB 070 IPCC Reports to be provided to the OPCC Complete
PAB 071 Chief of Staff Carys Morgans to represent the 

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner in 
the drafting of future Force Management 
Statements.

Complete as 
of 14/2/2018

PAB 072 Joanna Thomas to link with Kerrie Phillips to 
discuss Victim Engagement Forum developments

Ongoing

PAB 073 Carys Morgans to liaise with Emma Northcote 
and Steve Cockwell following a public 
conference.

Complete

PAB 074 Breakdown of language profile to be provided to 
the OPCC.

Complete

PAB 075 IPCC report to be provided to the OPCC. Complete

Meeting: Police Accountability 
Board

Venue: Llanelli Library, Llanelli
Date: 13th of February, 2018  
Time: 10:00 – 13:00

Tudalen 63



2

themselves to the students and describing their role within Dyfed-Powys Police 
(DPP) or the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC). 

A brief question and answer session ensued which included the PCC asking the 
students about their social media preferences.  References were made to twitter 
stories from DPP's communication team regarding local news and events 
particularly useful.  The class asked the Board about DPP's emergency planning 
measures.  They were advised that planning work is completed with a multi-agency 
approach whereby local authorities, police, fire and rescue organise responses for 
emergencies based on what services were required.  The Board were questioned 
regarding the Force's policy for recruiting officers from a range of cultural and racial 
backgrounds.  The CC stated that
2% of the Dyfed-Powys Force area is made up of black and minority ethnic 
inhabitants therefore that 2% should be reflected and represented in the DPP 
family.  It was stated that DPP regularly host recruitment drives in mosques, 
universities and community groups.  The PCC stated that 41% of the Force area is 
made up of Welsh speaking inhabitants which should also be represented in the 
DPP family and Welsh speakers are actively recruited for positions within the Force 
and the OPCC.  Currently 1600 DPP officers and staff out of 2000 have ‘some Welsh 
ability’.  The class were informed that DPP employs a Diversity Officer whose role 
consists of organising diversity events, some of which have already been planned 
for 2018.  The PCC acknowledged the Polish community in Llanelli and stated that 
representation of similar small communities within the Force area is desirable.  The 
DCC also noted the consistent recruitment of female officers to the Force.  

The PCC acknowledged the passing of a Dyfed-Powys Police officer who had 
recently retired during his 50th year of service to the Force.  The PCC extended the 
Board’s condolences to the officer’s family.

2 Minutes of the Accountability Meeting held on the 3rd of November 
and Matters Arising

With an amendment of an error in a date the minutes from the previous meeting 
held on the 3rd of November were felt to be a true and accurate reflection of the 
meeting.

PAB 066 – Website launch – The PCC was informed that the DPP and OPCC 
websites would be launched the following day, Wednesday the 14th of February.

PAB 067 – Public Service Bureau (PSB) – The PCC requested that a meeting be 
arranged between himself and Professional Standards Department (PSD) staff, the 
Chief of Staff and the DCC to discuss the transition of the PSB currently housed 
within the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) into the PSD.  

PAB 068, 069 and 070 were all acknowledged as complete.

Tudalen 64



3

PAB 071 – Force Management Statement – The CoS stated that a meeting would be 
taking place tomorrow, the 14th of February to take the drafting of the Force 
Management Statement forward.

PAB 072 – Victim Satisfaction – It was decided that further engagement is required 
to assess how satisfied victims are with their ongoing relationship with the Force.  

PAB 073 and PAB 074 were both acknowledged as complete with an action for the 
breakdown of the Language Profile to be discussed at Policing Board.

Action: The Breakdown of the Language Profile provided to the PCC at November 
2018 PAB to be discussed at a future Policing Board.

PAB 075 was acknowledged as complete.

3 - Force performance report – Quarter 2

The Report reflected that the overall position of the Force was a positive one, with 
73.9% of user satisfaction survey participants providing positive feedback of their 
relationship with DPP.  The PCC stated that the survey noted that DPP was the 
highest achiever of England and Wales Forces in terms of public perception of 
whether the Police do a ‘good’ job or an ‘excellent’ job.  The PCC reflected that 
these levels of those satisfied in user satisfaction surveys remained lower in relation 
to follow up engagement from the police.  The CC stated that this was being 
addressed with sergeants and inspectors tasked to ensure that follow up work is 
completed on cases.  The matter has been raised at the Chief Officer Group (COG) 
and the DCC stated that the PB meeting on the work of the Commissioned Service 
Goleudy (supporting Victims and Witnesses of Crime) taking place on the 16th of 
February would emphasise three layers of assurance.

Action: Timeline of meetings to discuss assurance to be provided to the 
PCC.

The Board acknowledged low public satisfaction levels for violent crime police 
involvement and concluded that in assault cases pleasing both parties in an affray 
is difficult.  The DCC stated that a Performance Event was hosted in DPP in January 
where a focus was placed on closing enquiries and investigation quicker; that is 
within 30 days.  The discussion moved on to legacy cases within the Professional 
Standards’ Department (PSD) which are monitored monthly; the DCC stated that 
cases which are ongoing for longer than six months are actively scrutinised.

The discussion moved on to Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary Fire and 
Rescue Service (HMICFRS) inspection of the Force’s Hate Crime strategies which 

Tudalen 65



4

was estimated to take place in May 2018.   The DCC stated that recent  work 
undertaken internally suggested that DPP’s hate crime satisfaction record is 
positive.  A discussion ensued about a HMIC custody inspection which are 
unannounced.  The Custody Inspection took place in November 2017 and a 
response is expected in shortly. 

A discussion ensued regarding reporting crimes with a focus on rural crime.  The CC 
acknowledged that with the launch of the DPP/OPCC Rural Crime Strategy more 
rural and farming crimes would be encouraged to report crime whereas previously 
this wasn’t being done.  The PCC stated that there had been an increase in  
reported crimes between 2016 and 2017 and the Board acknowledged that better 
recording processes may be responsible for this.

Action: Force to provide a breakdown of reported crime including rural 
crime for PAB in summer 2018.

The PCC highlighted reductions in drug offenses in the Force Performance Report 
however was unclear regarding what kind of offenses the document referred 
towards.

Action: Force to provide a breakdown of drug offenses specifically the 
number of drug trafficking offences by PAB in Spring 2018.

The PCC moved the discussion on to the possession of weapons and knife crime in 
particular.  DPP’s ‘possession of a weapon’ offences have reduced 4% and the PCC 
questioned whether the reduction had been emphasised in the media following 
perceived increase in knife offences in Merseyside and London areas.  The PCC 
suggested that crime recorded data and performance be reviewed at PAB in 
summer 2018.

Action: Crime recorded data and performance to be reviewed at PAB in 
summer 2018.

A discussion ensued regarding sexual offences; the PCC accepted that there did not 
seem to be a pattern in the recorded sexual crime figures.  

The PCC noted that theft currently counts for 20% of total recorded crime in DPP.  
The PCC questioned what operation activity is being done to target lower level theft 
and was informed that there is no current data to differentiate between the various 
kinds of petty theft e.g theft of mobile phones, wallets etc.

Action:  Force to provide data regarding lower level petty theft offenses.

The PCC raised concerns regarding the high level of violence against the person and 
questioned what the Force is doing to combat the problem.  The CC stated that 41 

Tudalen 66



5

out of 43 UK Forces have seen an increase in violence against the person which 
suggests a national trend.

Action: Review of violence against the person to take place at PAB in 
summer 2018.

Ysgol y Strade students and pupils left the meeting.

The PCC moved the discussion to Roads Policing and the update received from the 
Force.  The PCC requested more information broken down into separate months 
and raised concerns in relation to targets set by Welsh Government regarding 
policing the roads by 2020.  The PCC enquired how future plans for Roads Policing 
is operationalised in order to try and meet the targets.  

Action: The Force to provide the OPCC with a current update on Roads 
Policing and provide quarterly figures of operational action for Roads 
Policing for Policing Board (PB) in May 2018.

The discussion moved on to DP Crown Court Conviction Rate which is below the 
national average.  The DCC stated that DPP’s charging rate is low and queried 
whether the Force may be risk averse.

Action: DPP’s low Crown Court Conviction Rate to feature on Local Criminal 
Justice Board agenda.

A discussion ensued around Stop and Search with positive searches is currently 
40%, the best in the country.  The PCC noted that young people are stopped and 
search seemingly every day.  The PCC suggested obtaining a breakdown of the 
ages of young people being stopped.  A discussion ensued regarding the level of 
scrutiny of stop and searches.  

Action: OPCC to be involved in scrutiny activity of DPP stop and searches.

The discussion moved on to domestic incidents.  The PCC noted that since 2016 
there has been a reduction in the number of re-offending regarding domestic 
incidents.  The DCC stated that DPP’s Performance Board has been tasked with 
scrutinising domestic incidents numbers in January 2018, and officers have been 
tasked with maintaining performance to ensure quality of outcome in domestic 
cases.

The PCC praised the positive answer times for 101 calls to DPP in Welsh and 
English.  The average waiting time for calls has decreased from 40 seconds to 20 
seconds, resulting in a higher percentage of calls being answered, the figure being 
currently at 98%.  The PCC stated he would find it useful to receive a breakdown of 
the data.

Tudalen 67



6

4 – Financial Performance

The PCC praised the overall positive outlook of the Financial Performance Report 
taking into consideration recent estate activity around Police Headquarters.  

The CFO asked the DoF what the final position would be.  The DoF stated that the 
Force is down to £283,000 which he suspects will come down again due to 
recruitment plans and recruals.  Mentions are made of operational pressures.  DoF 
stated that everyone is aware of the Financial pressures.  The CFO stated that 
predicted overspend was £280,000 before Christmas, and has come back to 
£90,000 since that time.  The PCC stated that from a quarter ago there has been a 
great step in the right direction.

The CFO questioned what the final position of the 2017/18 financial year will be.  
The DoF stated that several factors including staff retirement and operational 
pressures made predicting the final position difficult.

The PCC acknowledged a considerable amount of work by the DoE to minimise 
spending by the Estates Department who have now come under the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s Office.

At the end of the discussion the PCC asked whether there was anything he should 
be worried about within the data.  The DoF stated that when he assessed the data 
there was £406,000 overspent; he stated that half of costed operations had income 
attached or were one-off incidents such as the Brechfa Force escort.  He also stated 
that terrorist attacks in London and Manchester would also have impacted upon 
operational costs.  He stated that there is £200,000 which needs to be pushed 
back.  Staff levels were low at the beginning of the year which had a knock on 
effect, but following recruitment that has impacted the budget.  The CFO stated 
that it would be useful to see the data without the items that have income 
attached.  The DoF stated that income recovery was made from both operations.  

The PCC also questioned the monitoring of potential frequent claimants of overtime 
opportunities; this point was felt to have both financial implications and officer 
welfare implications.  The DCC stated that overtime activity is being consistently 
monitored.  The CC stated that the cost of overtime has decreased significantly 
since August 2017 due to officer numbers having been improved during the last 6 
months.  The DoF stated that the Force adhered to the European Working-time 48 
hour rule and subscribed to clocking in systems in order to monitor the hours 
officers are working.

The CC stated that overall the Force is in a good position.

5 – Update on the Police and Crime Delivery Plan

Tudalen 68



7

The DCC confirmed that the Chief Officers had had the opportunity to discuss the 
outcome reports with their authors and that a rating for each had been jointly 
agreed.

a) Victim Satisfaction

The PCC was presented with 6 months’ worth of data.  The PCC acknowledged the 
length of some of the cases, and that PSD had promised a conclusion for those 
cases by the end of the financial year.

b) Public Confidence 

The discussion moved on to updates submitted from the Press Office.  The PCC 
raised concerns regarding making the most of opportunities afforded by Operation 
Cynefin.  The PCC questioned how this engagement with the public fed into 
operational policing.  A discussion ensued regarding the synergy between various 
department with the PCC suggesting a scoping exercise of the overlay between 
PSD, Force Command Centre, Customer Centre and Operation Cynefin to provide a 
consistent service.

c) Organisational Health and Well-being

The Board reviewed a report supplied by the Operational Health and Well-Being 
department.  A discussion ensued about the quality of leadership coaching and 
Calon activity.  The CC stated that he was part of the Evaluation Board of such 
activity and found it to be very positive, so much so that North Wales Force and the 
Police Federation Nationally has expressed interest in adopting the same 
transformational leadership models.  The DCC stated that unlike previous models, 
the current one is embedded in the DPP structure.  The discussion moved on to the 
Personal Development Recording (PDR) process which a proportion of DPP staff has 
described as ‘tick-boxing’.  The CC stated that the Force is looking to amend the 
PDR system and improve it to meet the expectation of staff.  

d) HMIC

The Board considered the report regarding Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Service (HMICFRS).  The PCC announced that a 
meeting will take place between the Chief Officers and representatives from HMIC 
regarding the most recent inspection.  A consultant is currently working with DPP in 
relation to HMIC work and the Board discussed an exit strategy for the consultant 
following the Autumn Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy (PEEL) 
inspection by HMIC.  

e) IPCC

The Board acknowledged some long-standing cases with the PCC having previously 
been informed that the cases.  The CoS highlighted concerns regarding the LQCs 

Tudalen 69



8

whereby the current payment structure does not include preparation time and 
referred to a previous All Wales Policing Group where PCCs had decided to adopt 
the model used in English Forces and Gwent Force.  The new model would allow 
payment for preparation time, allow consistency across the Forces and allow DPP 
access to College of Policing Training.  This is scheduled to commence in-Force on 
the 1st of April 2018.

The PCC acknowledged recommendation by the Home Office with regard to moving 
the Public Service Bureau from the Commissioner’s Office to ownership of DPP.  The 
Bureau will formally transfer on the 1st of April 2018 although a transition plan was 
in place to ensure this was a smooth process.  This included PSD taking line 
management responsibility from the 1st of January 2018.

6 – Update on Policing Board focus areas last quarter

Wynne Jenkins from Llamau, a charity specialising in Young People attended PAB to 
give an input on the organisation’s work.  Llamau is commissioned by the OPCC for 
Dyfed-Powys Police to provide specialist support on missing children across the 
Force Area.  There are currently three members of staff across the Force Area 
located in Ystradgynlais, Ammanford and Newtown.  Children who had previously 
been reported missing are referred to the service by DPP while complying with 
current data protection laws.  The CoS questioned whether Llamau had access to all 
the information they require from DPP and was informed that while the charity 
regularly have access to information there are occasions when they are forced to 
contact a school or a parents for pertinent information.  

The Board questioned on response times to cases of missing children and the 
organisation’s relationship with DPP the response to which was positive.  Llamau 
face while working with families of missing children, children previously reported 
missing and organisations such as care homes.

EN questioned Mr. Jenkins regarding perceived seasonal change in the number of 
missing young people.  Mr. Jenkins stated that during summer school holidays 
there seem to be fewer children reported missing, potentially because some 
children go missing due to problems arising in school during terms time.  The DCC 
suggested that work could be done to liaise with schools regarding peak times for 
children to go missing.  

The Board learned that information regarding children who go missing due to 
factors such as sexual exploitation or drug abuse is fed back to the Police while 
protecting the child’s personal information.  

Tudalen 70



9

EN requested feedback for how DPP’s social media pages can assist with missing 
child cases.  Mr. Jenkins stated that reaction from children varied e.g children 
experience stigmatism from being labelled as a ‘missing child’ after being found, 
and find that once they have been labelled so on social media it could affect other 
factors.

Mr. Jenkins left the meeting.

7 - Scrutiny activity feedback

The Board discussed scrutiny activity of the Force by the OPCC, supported by the 
OPCC’s Scrutiny Panel.  

Action:  The PCC to meet with the OPCC’s Policy and Assurance Advisor in 
relation to ongoing scrutiny activity.

The PCC raised a specific issue regarding a domestic incident whereby the Out of 
Courts Disposal Scrutiny Panel deemed that the offender in that case should have 
been charged by Police.  The Board found that all charges in domestic cases are 
done through the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) not the Force.

9 – Action and Risk Summary from Meeting

10 - Any other business

a) Mental Health Update

The Board briefly discussed the Mental Health Update provided by the Force.  The 
CC stated that the Strategic Mental Health Plan is regularly monitored by him, and 
the ACC Chaired the previous Strategic Mental Health Board in January 2018.  
Street Triage will be available to the public seven days a week from April 2018.  
The CC is currently overseeing a project to refresh the Force’s Mental Health 
Training Day and link it up with Hywel Dda Health Board.  

Action: Public Service Bureau to attend the Force’s Mental Health Training 
Day.

b) Precept Letter

The Police and Crime Panel unanimously supported the 5% rise of the precept for 
the next financial year.

The CFO stated that the total budget for the Force has increased to £99.1 million 
for 2017/18 from £96.6 million the previous financial year.  

Tudalen 71



10

ACTION SUMMARY FROM MEETING ON 13/02/2018
Action No Action Summary To be 

progressed 
by:

PAB 076 Force to provide a breakdown of reported crime 
including rural crime for PAB in summer 2018.

IID

PAB 077 Force to provide a breakdown of drug offenses 
specifically the number of drug trafficking 
offences by PAB in Spring 2018.

IID

PAB 078 Crime recorded data and performance to be 
reviewed at PAB in summer 2018.

MH

PAB 079 Force to provide data regarding lower level petty 
theft offenses.

IID

PAB 080 Review of violence against the person to take 
place at PAB in summer 2018.

MH

PAB 081 The Force to provide the OPCC with a current 
update on Roads Policing and provide quarterly 
figures of operational action for Roads Policing for 
Policing Board (PB) in May 2018.

GB

PAB 082 DPP’s low Crown Court Conviction Rate to feature 
on Local Criminal Justice Board agenda.

BD

PAB 083 OPCC to be involved in scrutiny activity of DPP 
stop and searches.

CB

PAB 084 The PCC to meet with the OPCC’s Policy and 
Assurance Advisor in relation to ongoing scrutiny 
activity.

CB

PAB 085 Public Service Bureau to attend the Force’s Mental 
Health Training Day.

PSD

Date of next meeting

May the 8th 2018

Tudalen 72



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

Policing Accountability Board outcome report

Date of meeting: 8 May 2018
Author: Insp Stuart Bell
Outcome (please tick the outcome  you are reporting on) 

Public confidence
Victim satisfaction
Organisational health and well-being
HMICFRS 

Office of Police Conduct

Inadequate Requires improvement    Good           Outstanding

What is working well? How will we build on this?

The force has well embedded practices in place to deal with the various types of HMICFRS related work: 
preparation for inspections, response to HMICFRS requests/publications, HMICFRS governance etc.

As part of the annual PEEL process, HMICFRS inspect all forces in England and Wales with regard to their 
Effectiveness, Efficiency, Legitimacy and Leadership. 

All areas, with the exception of Leadership are subject to graded judgments. Forces are awarded one of 
four grades: Inadequate, Requires Improvement, Good or Outstanding.

In both 2015 and 2016, the force was graded as follows:

Effectiveness Requires Improvement
Efficiency Requires Improvement
Legitimacy Requires Improvement

In both years the force was one of only two forces in England and Wales to not achieve Good in any PEEL 
category (along with Cleveland in 2015 and South Yorkshire in 2016).

In 2017 the force has been graded as follows:

Effectiveness Good
Efficiency Requires Improvement
Legitimacy Good

The Effectiveness and Legitimacy grades represent the first awards of Good received against these 
categories. Although graded as Requires Improvement for Efficiency, the report outlines a marked 
improvement on the 2016 report and makes it clear that the direction of travel is positive.

HMICFRS governance is working well in the force. Each of our recommendations and AFIs are fed into a 
board within the new governance structure, where they are overseen and progressed accordingly; updates 
are fed into the HMIC governance group, at which AFIs and recommendations are signed off or tasked out 
for further work.

The new process is in its early stages and it is acknowledged that there is room for improvement to the 
process. The DCC and the inspection and review team are meeting in May 2018 to discuss the process with 
a view to making it more efficient.

Rating

Tudalen 73



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

Most outstanding AFIs and recommendations are to be captured on the HMICFRS ‘recommendations 
register.’ The register will be available of the HMICFRS web-page and will summarise the causes for 
concern, AFIs and recommendations of each force in England and Wales. We are working with our new 
force liaison lead, Sarah Cooper to ensure that our recommendations and AFIs are as up to date as 
possible prior to the publication of the register. The number outstanding in force is reasonable and is not 
likely to cause any public confidence concerns.

What is not working well? How will we manage this?

The force has been graded as Requires Improvement for Efficiency. We have been given some key areas 
for improvement though and are confident that if they are met, that a grade of Good is achievable for 2018.

Against the Effectiveness and Legitimacy pillars of PEEL the force has been assigned areas for 
improvement (AFIs) by HMICFRS. All such AFIs are monitored and progressed by the relevant group within 
the new governance structure, with a further level of oversight provided at the HMICFRS governance group, 
chaired by the DCC.

What are our opportunities?  How will we exploit them?

The aforementioned AFIs are exactly that – areas for improvement. They each represent an opportunity for 
improved performance for the force. They are being prioritised and progressed appropriately.

The force is in the process of completing its first official Force Management Statement (FMS) having taken 
part in the HMICFRS pilot in 2017.

The completed document is due for submission to HMICFRS by 31 May 2018 with the early stages 
overseen by the respective Chief Superintendents and the Force Inspection and Review Team.

The FMS represents an opportunity for the force to build the demand analysis work into the annual planning 
cycle to enhance preparedness for the future. The FMS also feeds the new PEEL process; this is discussed 
in more detail under ‘threats.’

What are our threats?  How will we manage them?

The force has featured in the HMICFRS series of thematic fraud inspections. HMICFRS were in force 24-25 
April to carry out a series of interviews, to hold focus groups and to carry out reality testing. HMICFRS 
visited the ROCU on 23 April.

The Inspection & Review and fraud teams have worked closely to manage preparations for the inspection to 
ensure that HMICFRS get the fullest appreciation of the great deal of work ongoing across the force in this 
regard: e.g. operation signature, the banking protocol, the fraud risk matrix etc.

The Crime Data Integrity (CDI) inspection remains outstanding. This inspection seeks to understand how 
effective our crime recording processes are: essentially, are we recording the crime that is reported to us in 
an effective and efficient manner.

Improvement work as well as QA and audit are being led by the force crime and incident registrar (FCIR), 
the deputy FCIR and an appointed DI.

Tudalen 74



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

HMICFRS’s PEEL process has changed for 2018. In previous years the inspection regime was split into two 
tranches: the spring tranche focussed on efficiency and legitimacy whereas the autumn tranche focussed on 
effectiveness.

Under the new Integrated PEEL Assessment (IPA) approach, each force will be subject to one, larger 
inspection which will focus on all areas of PEEL. The inspections will take place in three tranches: 

Tranche 1:  3 September 2018 to 14 December 2018
Tranche 2:  14 January 2019 to 12 April 2019
Tranche 3:  29 April 2019 to 19 July 2019

Dyfed-Powys will feature in tranche 1, with other Welsh forces featuring in tranches 2 (South Wales) and 3 
(North Wales and Gwent).

The IPA will more than likely involve a two week inspection visit to the force and so we can expect a period 
of intensive activity. 

As with previous PEEL inspections, there will be a requirement for a great deal of data and a large number 
of documents to be collated and submitted ahead of the inspection. Utilising the data and documents 
submitted, and considering the information included in our first FMS, HMICFRS will determine their key lines 
of enquiry (KLOE) for the inspection: that is, the areas that they believe are vulnerabilities foe the force that 
will require a degree of scrutiny during the inspection.

The FMS therefore, presents a degree of risk to the force. HMICFRS advise that in compiling the FMS, 
honesty will be rewarded; however, we must be cognisant of the fact that whatever areas we highlight as 
requiring improvement, are likely to be subject of focus during the IPA.

Resource implications
Finance – revenue funding, capital 
investment, external funding, 
commissioning, collaboration 
opportunities etc.

The Force Inspection and Review Team comprises of 1.75FTE members 
of staff. The team is led by an Inspector (1.0FTE) and supported by a 
member of admin staff (0.75FTE).

The team is currently supported by a consultant (0.6FTE) who, as a 
former member of HMICFRS staff, is able to bring a great deal of 
expertise to the force.

Assets – estates, facilities, IT etc. The FIRT shares an office at police HQ with the Assistant Director of 
Collaboration and Efficiency and his team.

Staff - knowledge & skills, capacity, 
capability, training etc.

The FIRT have the requisite skills and experiences.

Due consideration should be given to the appointment of the successor 
to the FIRT Inspector. Although no date has been set for his departure 
from the team, he is likely to move on in the second half of 2018. A 
replacement should be identified ahead of this move and it would be of 
benefit if a handover period was allowed to ensure that the gains made in 
the last year are not undermined.

Timescales Key pieces of work in the calendar are:

The annual PEEL inspection – the aforementioned IPA – will next take 
place in autumn 2018. This will test all pillars of the process: 
Effectiveness, Efficiency, Legitimacy and Leadership. 

Tudalen 75



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

Force Management Statements: due 31 May 2018 for the first FMS, and 
then by 31 March annually thereafter.

HMICFRS carry out thematic inspections throughout the year also. 
Currently they are inspecting hate crime and fraud.

Leadership Leadership is a key theme of the HMICFRS analysis of forces. Every 
force receives an annual report on its leadership performance. 

Feedback in 2017 suggests that we have made great improvements 
since the 2016 inspection.

Partners The FIRT liaises with HMICFRS and other forces on a regular basis. 
Wider partnership work, although crucial to force performance, is not 
routinely undertaken by the FIRT.

Impact considerations
Risk HMICFRS performance is subject to public scrutiny and so there are 

reputational risks involved regarding force performance.

Post every inspection, HMICFRS publishes a report and an 
accompanying press release, which if unfavorable can damage the 
reputation of the force.

The manner in which the force progresses AFIs carries a degree of risk. 

They need to be progressed effectively and in a timely manner to mitigate 
risks to the force and to individuals.

The FIRT and the Governance Group work together to progress AFIs in a 
proportionate manner; AFIs carrying the greatest degree of risk are 
prioritized.

HMICFRS are in the final stages of developing their ‘recommendations 
register’ – a summary of how many recommendations are outstanding for 
each of the 43 forces in England and Wales. Whereas prior to the 
establishment of the FIRT the force was in a vulnerable position, the 
number of outstanding recommendations is now far lower.

Legal HMICFRS have the power to inspect forces to secure information, but no 
powers to give orders for change. AFIs and COCs are recommendations, 
not orders.

Chief Constables and Police and Crime Commissioners are given the 
responsibility by HMICFRS to take any necessary action regarding AFIs 
and COCs.

Police and Crime Commissioners are required to publish their comments 
on each HMICFRS report within 56 days of its publication, and must 
include an explanation of the steps to be taken in response to each 

Tudalen 76



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

HMICFRS recommendation or an explanation why no action has been or 
is to be taken in that respect.

Police and Crime Plan HMICFRS activity and the work undertaken by the FIRT is relevant to all 
four of the Police and Crime Plan priorities.

Demand As outlined above, the compilation of the Force Management Statement 
will aid the force’s understanding of demand.

Governance The HMICFRS Governance Group is chaired by DCC Davies.

Equality

Reputation – confidence and 
satisfaction

Environmental and 
sustainability

Media, communication and 
engagement

Press releases are arranged post publication of all HMICFRS reports 
relevant to the force.

Senior officer approval
Name: Signature: Date:

Tudalen 77



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Policing Accountability Board outcome report

Date of meeting: 8th May 2018
Author: Det Supt. David Guiney
Outcome (please tick the outcome  you are reporting on)
Public confidence
Victim satisfaction
Organisational health and well-being
HMIC
Office of Police Conduct 

Inadequate Requires improvement    Good           Outstanding

What is working well? How will we build on this?

The latest available IOPC data is for Q3 and sets out the Year To Date figures for the period April to 
December 2017 (inclusive).

The Q3 data continues to show improvements in the timeliness for finalising allegations by means of Local 
Resolution. In Q2, the average number of days to finalise allegations by way of local resolution was 74 days. 
By comparison, the Q3 statistics show that this figure has reduced further to just 66 days. This is a significant 
improvement when one considers that the SPLY figure was 117 days. At the end of Q3, our position in the 
national rankings for this particular performance indicator stands at 23rd out of 44 Forces – up from 29th 
position at the end of Q2. The extent of the improvement becomes apparent when one considers that at the 
end of Q4 last year (31st March 2017), Dyfed-Powys was sitting in 43rd position. The improved performance 
against this key performance indicator is all the more remarkable when one considers the notable increase in 
the number of complaints now being finalised through Local Resolution. The Q3 data shows that Year To 
Date, 46% of complaint cases have been finalised through Local Resolution compared to just 25% at the end 
of the last calendar year. 

The Q3 figures indicate that 94% of complaints were recorded within 10 working days. This is higher than 
both the national average (82%) and the MSF average (91%). It also marks an improvement on the 
percentage of complaints recorded within 10 working days in the SPLY (89%).

In terms of allegations dealt with by Local Investigation, the Q3 statistics showed these were being finalised 
in an average of 251 working days - higher than the national average of 173 days and the MSF average of 
177 days. However this is not reflective of the true performance as the average figure has been skewed by 
the completion of a small number of legacy cases.  51 of the 71 cases finalised through Local Investigation 
for YTD (i.e. 75%) were completed in less than the national average of 173 days.

The completion of the outstanding legacy cases continues to be a priority for PSD and they are subject of 
regular updates to the Deputy Chief Constable.  

PSD performance data has now been incorporated into Qlikview. This data is available to BCU managers and 
to officers of Inspector rank and above. The data available includes: -

 Number of complaints per BCU
 Number of allegations per BCU
 Finalisations and timeliness for local investigations
 Finalisation and timeliness for local resolutions
 Details of all outstanding cases to include BCU, complainant’s details, number of allegations and days 

active
 Top 10 complainants
 Top 10 officers / staff subject of complaints

Rating

Tudalen 79



In the interests of transparency, PSD is currently reviewing what additional performance data it can publish 
on the Dyfed-Powys Police public site.

What is not working well? How will we manage this?

There remains a backlog of checks to address the percentage of the workforce that do not hold an up to date 
vetting status which is in non-compliance with national standards. In order to address this backlog and to 
maintain business as usual, one member of the Vetting Team has been assigned to work through the backlog 
whilst the remainder of the Vetting Team deal with the incoming requests.

The significant numbers of transferees and new recruits joining the organisation has had a considerable 
impact in terms of vetting application workloads for the Department. According to the Work Force Plan, Dyfed-
Powys Police intends to recruit a further 52 Police officers during the 2018 / 2019 financial year. Having liaised 
with Dylan Davies (Senior Manager Human Resources), it is anticipated that there will be uplift in Police staff 
establishment in the coming financial year comprising 38 new staff. In addition, two PCSO intakes are 
scheduled for August 2018 and February 2019 respectively – each comprising 6 – 8 new PCSOs. 

It is also worthy of note that in January 2018, the Estates Team notified Vetting that there are potentially 176 
contractors who will need prioritised vetting checks. 

Furthermore, following an agreement between the NPCC and Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service, 
individual Forces are being approached by HMPPS to process vetting applications for Probation staff residing 
in their Force area. PSD recently updated the Probation Service that it would not be possible to undertake the 
vetting of Probation staff until the Force had cleared its own backlog. The Probation Service has 
acknowledged the challenge we currently face with vetting backlog and has now secured the agreement of 
North Wales Police to take on the DPP Probation ViSOR vetting (comprising 35 Level 2 vetting applications 
for Probation staff).    

On a positive note, the overall percentage of Dyfed-Powys Police employees currently without vetting has 
reduced from 28% three months ago to 24% (486 staff out of a total of 2055). However, based on current 
resources and the anticipated future demand over the coming financial year (2018 / 2019), the Force is 
unlikely to clear its vetting backlog by the HMIC target date of December 2018.

On 15th March 2018, D. Guiney and G. Lemon attended the ‘Wales Regional Heads of PSD Meeting’ in North 
Wales. During this meeting, each Force provided an update on their vetting situation and on the structure of 
their respective Vetting Units. It was apparent from this discussion that Dyfed-Powys Police has comparatively 
low numbers of vetting staff. North Wales Police and South Wales Police had both increased staffing levels 
and had recently succeeded in clearing their vetting backlogs. Gwent had recently increased their staffing 
levels but had not yet cleared their vetting backlog. Both North Wales Police and South Wales Police stated 
that in the course of clearing their backlogs they had identified significant potential issues (predominantly 
financial) which could have left those staff members and in turn their Forces vulnerable / susceptible to 
corruption.

Whilst the Vetting Unit staffing levels will be evaluated as part of the imminent Departmental Review of PSD 
scheduled to commence in May, it has been decided to prioritise the allocation of additional temporary 
resources to the Vetting Unit on an interim basis. This will address the Force’s current vulnerability in this area 
and increase the likelihood of achieving the HMIC deadline for clearing the vetting backlog (December 2018). 
Pending completion of the Departmental Review, our intention is to identify two Police officers on long term 
restricted duties to assist the Vetting Unit in clearing the backlog.   

Following a procurement process, the Force has acquired a bespoke vetting system – ‘Core Vet’. On 13th 
February 2018, PSD and IS&T met with the service providers (WPC) to help plan the installation and roll out 
Tudalen 80



of the new system by July 2018. Once this has been introduced and embedded into the Department, the 
Core-Vet system will greatly assist the effective management of the vetting process. 
The recent increase in the frequency and gravity of conduct matters being dealt with by the Anti-Corruption 
Unit has placed a significant increased demand on this small team and has highlighted the need to consider 
increasing capacity in this area. The current staffing levels limit the proactive capability of the unit. The HMIC 
feedback received in October 2017 highlighted the need for the unit to be more proactive.

A Departmental Review will be undertaken in the coming months – commencing with a three day Continuous 
Improvement Event on 15th – 17th May 2018 at Llanarthne hall, which is being facilitated by the Force’s 
Continuous Improvement Team.

What are our opportunities?  How will we exploit them?

The Public Service Bureau has now come under the management of PSD providing the opportunity for PSD 
to oversee the entire front end of the complaints’ process. This will benefit the Force and members of the 
public - particularly in terms of clarity of remit and role between PSD and the relevant appeal bodies. The 
current work practices of the Public Service Bureau will form part of the Departmental Review which will seek 
to ensure greater cohesion and streamlining of our processes to maximise efficiency and effectiveness  

This transition also pre-empts the changes expected in Phase 3 of the reforms to the Police Complaints and 
Discipline systems - which for the first time will recognise a process for resolving complaints outside of the 
formal complaints process. Forces have been updated that there is to be a further delay in respect of the 
legislative changes. Implementation has now been pushed back to mid-2019.

PSD is continuing to provide a considerable number of inputs to various courses including ‘new starters’, 
Sergeant and Inspector Courses, transferees and custody refreshers. These inputs provide an opportunity for 
the Department to play more of a ‘preventative’ role - raising awareness of the standards expected and 
cascading organisational learning.

In recent months, numerous Misconduct Meetings have been chaired by Chief Inspectors who had never 
previously performed this role. PSD has been providing one to one training to these officers as well as ongoing 
support during the process. This support has resulted in well-run meetings and positive feedback from the 
Chief Inspectors concerned.

What are our threats?  How will we manage them?

As mentioned earlier, the most significant current threat to the Professional Standards Department relates to 
the vetting backlog.  The ongoing management of this threat has been set out above.

Resource implications

Finance – revenue funding, capital 
investment, external funding, 
commissioning, collaboration 
opportunities etc.

As mentioned earlier in this report, the imminent Departmental Review 
may result in bids being made for increased staffing levels in both the 
Anti-Corruption and Vetting Units. Clearly, any such bids would 
necessitate additional funding.

Assets – estates, facilities, IT etc.

Tudalen 81



Staff - knowledge & skills, capacity, 
capability, training etc.

As highlighted above it has been identified there is a potential lack of 
capacity in certain areas of PSD. A full Departmental Review will address 
these issues and also consider whether there is any scope for reallocation 
of resources within the Department.

Timescales

Leadership As mentioned earlier, PSD continues to provide a range of inputs to various 
courses.

Det Supt Guiney and Complaints and Misconduct Officer James Lewis are 
currently responsible for the ‘O’ in Calon which covers ‘Operating with 
Fairness, Values and Trust’.

Partners

Impact considerations
Risk

Legal

Police and Crime Plan Priority 4 – connecting with communities
Providing a professional response to dealing with complaints

Demand

Governance

Equality

Reputation – confidence and 
satisfaction

Environmental and 
sustainability

Media, communication and 
engagement

Name: D/Supt Dave Guiney

Signature: Date: 27/04/18

Tudalen 82



1

Policing Accountability Board outcome report

Date of meeting: 8th May 2018
Author: Steve Cadenne De Lannoy
Outcome (please tick the outcome  you are reporting on) 

Public confidence
Victim satisfaction
Organisational health and well-being 

HMIC
Office of Police Conduct

Inadequate Requires improvement    Good           Outstanding

What is working well? How will we build on this?

 Staff Survey 2018 – following discussion at Peoples Board and Calon Group it has been agreed that to further 
build on the 2017 staff survey we will use the ‘Durham Survey’ for 2018. This survey is provided by Dr Les Graham 
of Durham University. There will be a cost of £7500 to the force but analysis and reporting of the results are 
provided in this cost. The additional benefit of using this survey is that it is used by a significant proportion of 
police forces in England and Wales, as a result there will be the opportunity to compare results directly with other 
forces.  

 The roll out of a Transformational Leadership Programme to managers and leaders not included in the initial 
senior leader’s cohort will be included in the training plan for 2018/19. The initial programme will continue to be 
evaluated with a second feedback event planned later this year. 

 Results of the IIP Amnesty Review have been published with Dyfed Powys Police achieving ‘Standard 
Accreditation’. This review focused on specific areas which weren’t sufficiently met from the previous assessment 
and also captured further development work undertaken. The review commented that ‘the progress made in 12 
months is exemplary and the changes made are already having a positive impact both in terms of results and 
perceptions by those interviewed’.   

 HR Support Officers on divisions are now dealing with the majority of attendance and performance issues relating 
to their officer and staff in their areas. This has allowed us to reallocate the HR Support Officer Attendance & 
Performance to be the HR Support Officer for Headquarters Departments. This has begun with engagement with 
CID and Operations and will extend to other departments shortly.  

 Police Officer recruitment continues to be an important part of our workforce plan for 2018/19, with the focus 
being to maintain a full establishment throughout the year. To ensure this occurs the force have 3 intakes 
scheduled, the first in June 2018 (for 6 transferees to be appointed to fill vacancies in Ceredigion and Powys), 1 
intake of 22 new recruits in September 2018 and 1 intake of new recruits in March 2019. Projected establishment 
for the first quarter of 2018/19 taking into account leavers and new starters, is shown below:

April 2018 July 2018
Authorised Establishment 1165.08* 1163.08*
Current / Projected Actual Establishment 1176.92 1166.92
Vacancy Factor +11.84 +3.84

* Please note that this figure takes account of the DRR2 decreases (8.4), 2 Inspector decreases (1Carms and 1 
Pembs with effect from the 1st April and decreases of 2 constable posts for workforce modernisation reasons in 
July.)

 Police staff numbers continue to be at or near to our authorised establishment. Our focus in the first three months 
is to ensure that we recruit into the new established posts that were part of workforce modernisation or growth 
bids, whilst at the same time ensuring that we replace any leavers. 

Rating

Tudalen 83



2

 The force is participating in Direct Entry Programmes for both Inspector and Superintendent. The number of 
applicants for each has been high with Dyfed Powys Police receiving 10 Direct Entry Superintendent applicants 
and 32 Direct Entry Inspector applicants. All these applicants are currently being progressed through a series of 
selection processes with the College of Policing. Once the outcome of this process is known the remaining 
applicants will undertake an in force selection process with Chief Officers. Up to two Inspectors and one 
Superintendent will be recruited through this process. 

 The iTrent Skills project is continuing with the review and updating of police officer skills and training records 
expected by May 2018. This work includes the development of an online questionnaire to officers and staff to 
ensure skills and training records are complete. 

 Funding has been made available to recruit 7 new to organisation apprentices. Apprentices will be working in the 
following business areas: Business Support Unit; Procurement; Fleet; ICT; HR; Health & Safety; Governance & 
Change. Work is progressing to plan and progress recruitment and selection during May and June.  

 The rates of sickness absence are reducing. The overall percentage of establishment absent between 1st October 
2017 & 31st March 2018 was 4.50%.  As per previous reports, rates of sickness absence remain above our 4% 
target. A snapshot of absence on 19th April 2018, shows an improvement with the rate decreasing to 3.50%.

1st August and 
25th October 

2017   
(PAB Report)

20th 
November 

2017

4th January 2018 19th April 2018

Police Officers 4.88% 5.84% (68) 6.62% (79) 3.18% (39)

Police Staff 3.92% 3.88% (30) 4.55% (49) 3.94% (41)

Total 4.13% 5.06% (98) 5.78% (128) 3.50%  (80)

What is not working well? How will we manage this?

 Despite sickness absence reducing, as described above, the increasing proportion of sickness absence attributed 
to psychological disorders continues to be a worrying trend both in force and nationally. The analysis of 
psychological disorders commissioned from IID has been provided to help understand this pattern in more detail. 
Some headlines from the analysis are provided below with further work being taken forward at a local level :

1. Between 2017 and 2016 the Force had seen a 4% increase in the number of absences for psychological 
disorders. However, in the same period there has been a 28% increase in the number of days lost to 
sickness for psychological disorders

2. During the review period a total of 23,041 days have been taken due to Psychological Disorders. 
3. Of the 351 recorded absences for the review period only 5 (1%) have been recorded as ‘Injured on Duty’
4. Increases in absences recorded as psychological disorders aren’t evenly distributed across ranks or 

divisions/departments.

 Performance Development Review (PDR) 

The PDR lifecycle for the year 2017/2018 was due to end on 31st March 2018, however a decision was made at 
the Peoples Board on 4th April 2018, that this should be extended until 13th May 2018 and this has been 
communicated to the force. The completion figures for the PDR process to date are as follows:- 

Stages in the PDR Responsibility of :- Completion 
figures per stage

1a – Self Assessment Individual 78%
1b – Objective Setting Line Manager 69%
2a – Half year review Individual 52%
2b – Half year review Line Manager 47%Tudalen 84



3

Feedback from the Investors in People report dated 7th February 2018, states that “PDR is difficult to navigate; 
onerous for managers and considered to be cumbersome. There are very similar comments from the two 
previous internal staff survey’s and from a group of 14 newly promoted sergeants. 

There is clear evidence from a number of sources, that the current PDR process is not fit for purpose, and its 
relevance and benefit to both the force and individuals remains uncertain. 

Work is currently on-going between HR, IT and Supt Roderick, to look at ways to improve the current PDR 
process and user experience for staff and managers and to make it a more meaningful process that individuals 
will engage with and see the benefits of completing. 

In February, Supt Roderick and Meriel Lewis attended Thames Valley Police to see their Talent Performance 
system designed by a company called “Headlight”, which has recently received praise from the HMICFRS, for 
the way the system has been designed as it prevents favouritism and ensure everyone has equality of 
opportunity.  Following discussions with the IT team, we are planning on replicating some of the key features 
of the Thames Valley PDR process into a DPP bespoke process, these include:- 

 For individuals to demonstrate “how” they achieve their objectives, in line with the College of Policing’s 
Competency Value Framework (CVF). It was agreed by the DCC at a recent Peoples Board meeting that the 
next cycle of PDR’s will include the CVF and colleagues within L&DS team are working on a delivery plan 
for this to happen. 

 Functionality for managers to identify “talent” from within their team. This will require a new force 
strategy on Talent Management.  

 Incorporating a TNA option, to ensure opportunities for development are apportioned “fairly” throughout 
the force.  

 To create a CPD document to operate alongside the PDR as a way of recording examples of “good work”. 
 To have a “creditable” system that individuals engage with and see benefits from.  

It was agreed at the Peoples Board meeting that the next cycle of PDR (i.e. year 2018/2019) will start in June 
2018, this will allow for the creation and development of a new bespoke PDR process, outside of iTRENT to take 
place.

 Flexible Working Annual Reviews – reference to annual reviews has been made in previous updates, with 
concerns over the impact of abstractions and working patterns prompting the need to reintroduce such reviews. 
An updated policy has been drafted following consultation with Chief Superintendents and Staff Associations. It 
has also been discussed with the Deputy Chief Constable who has suggested some further changes to the format 
of the policy and process so that it aligns to other processes. This work is on-going, and will hopefully be 
completed by May 2018, so that the policy can be approved at the JNCC meeting and the annual review can take 
place during the summer months.  

3a – Year end Individual 38%
3b – Year end Line Manager 30%
3c – Comments Individual 24%
3d – 2nd Line manager 2nd Line Manager 19%

What are our opportunities?  How will we exploit them?

 Workforce Transformation – the College of Policing is working in partnership with the National Police Chiefs 
Council on a broad range of national initiatives supporting workforce transformation in policing.  The programmes 
include: 

Tudalen 85



4

Entry Routes - Reform of initial recruitment systems and processes, Apprenticeships.
Role Definition and Comparison – Competency Value Framework (CVF), Role Profiles
Professional Development - PDR & CPD, PEQF
Linking pay to recognition of skills, competence and contribution - Foundation ARC (Assessment & Recognition 
of Competence), Advanced Practitioner and License to Practise (underpinned by ARC)

Each of these initiatives can contribute towards a professional framework which unlock people’s full potential 
and enables them to provide the best service to the public. We are working on an All Wales basis particularly in 
the areas of initial recruitment and PEQF.

 With the HR Support Officers on division now established there is an opportunity to expand the support provided 
to line managers. This will include CPD events on People Management related topics, helping us move away from 
centrally delivered inputs in headquarters. 

 Occupational Health has been operating with reduced staffing levels over the last 9 to 12 months. For part of 
this period there have been 2 Occupational Health Adviser vacancies. This has significantly reduced the capacity 
of the team but they have continued to provide a comprehensive service. This period has provided an 
opportunity to review the services being provided and realign provision to meet changing needs of the 
organisation. One of the Occupational Health Adviser vacancies is now in the process of being filled and we are 
considering options for the second role.

What are our threats?  How will we manage them?

 Workforce Transformation – the programmes included in workforce transformation are extensive in their scope. 
They require changes to policies, processes, systems, and in some cases training development and accreditation 
of staff. Complex and often interdependent programmes it is a significant challenge to implement all 
programmes. 

We are collaborating with other forces where the sharing of resources and expertise makes sense. We will also 
need to prioritise areas of work to balance competing demands. 

 If iTrent Skills profiling is not completed this will impact on the use of this data for both succession and workforce 
planning and the training plan for 2018/19. 

 If the PDR process and it’s relevance to staff isn’t developed as described above it won’t contribute towards 
workforce transformation as is hoped. This will negatively impact on the ability of the force to manage talent and 
influence performance through development. 

Resource implications
Finance – revenue funding, capital 
investment, external funding, 
commissioning, collaboration 
opportunities etc.

Funded and in the budget(s)

Assets – estates, facilities, IT etc. Nil

Staff - knowledge & skills, capacity, 
capability, training etc.

Covered above

Timescales Covered above as applicable

Leadership Covered above

Tudalen 86



5

Partners Some of this work does involve partners, but the arrangements are covered 
either through existing working arrangements or through specific project plans 
for new initiatives

Impact considerations
Risk Governance issue covered above

Legal Nil

Police and Crime Plan Key outcome area, at the heart of delivering an effective Policing Service

Demand
No additional points to raise

Governance Covered above

Equality Working closely with Force equality and diversity colleagues on positive action

Reputation – confidence and 
satisfaction

Covered above

Environmental and 
sustainability Nil

Media, communication and 
engagement

The Comms team will be engaged with for launch of flexible working review. 

Senior officer approval

Name: Steve Cadenne De Lannoy Signature:

Date: 24th April 2018

Tudalen 87



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Tudalen 89



Tudalen 90



Tudalen 91



Tudalen 92



Tudalen 93



Tudalen 94



Tudalen 95



Tudalen 96



Tudalen 97



Tudalen 98



Tudalen 99



Tudalen 100



Tudalen 101



Tudalen 102



Tudalen 103



Tudalen 104



Tudalen 105



Tudalen 106



Tudalen 107



Tudalen 108



Tudalen 109



Tudalen 110



Tudalen 111



Tudalen 112



Tudalen 113



Tudalen 114



Tudalen 115



Tudalen 116



Tudalen 117



Tudalen 118



Tudalen 119



Tudalen 120



Tudalen 121



Tudalen 122



Tudalen 123



Tudalen 124



OFFICIAL
January 2018

SCRUTINY PANEL REPORT
QUARTER 3 

OFFICIAL

Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys

Scrutiny Panel

Dip Sampling Exercise

Review of Public Order Incidents (Oct-Dec 2017)

Out of Court Disposals

Panel Members’ Findings & Feedback

January 2018

Tudalen 125



Tudalen 126



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 1

Contents

1.0 Overview .........................................................................................2

2.0 Background, Purpose and Methodology ................................................2

2.1 Background data ............................................................................2

3.0 Approval by Panel Chair .....................................................................4

4.0 Actions taken following previous Panel meeting .....................................5

5.1 Observations ....................................................................................5

6.0 Firearms and Domestic Incidents – adult suspects ....................................7

6.1 Observations ....................................................................................7

7.0 Panel’s assessments to date ................................................................12

7.1 Good practice .................................................................................16

7.2 Areas for improvement.....................................................................16

8.0 Future Panel focus..............................................................................16

Tudalen 127



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 2

1.0 Overview

At a meeting of the Dyfed-Powys Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny Panel held on 
30th January 2018, Members reviewed a selection of Public Order incident cases 
which had been dealt with by way of an out of court disposal. 

The Panel considered a total of 16 cases, seven involving youth suspects and 
nine involving an adult suspect.

2.0 Background, Purpose and Methodology 

Panel Members collectively agree an area of focus for each meeting. They 
receive relevant case files two weeks prior to each meeting which have been 
randomly selected by the Panel Chair.  The Panel then meets to discuss each 
case and where possible reach a conclusion as to the appropriateness of the 
disposal. In deciding which category the case falls, the panel consider the 
following criteria:

• The views and feedback from the victim and the offender; 
• Compliance with force policy;
• Rationale for the decision and outcome;
• Potential community impact; 
• Circumstances and seriousness of the offence; and
• Potential alternative options that may have been available. 

The Panel discuss each case and categorise them as one of the following:

• Appropriate use and consistent with policy;
• Appropriate use with panel Members’ reservations;
• Inappropriate use or inconsistent with policy; and
• Panel fails to reach a conclusion.

2.1 Background data

The following graphs show the change of Dyfed-Powys Police’s use of different 
out of court disposal types over time.

Tudalen 128



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 3

Tudalen 129



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 4

3.0 Approval by Panel Chair 

I ____________________________________ (print name) can confirm that I 
have read the report, and that it fully represents the views expressed by the 
Panel during our dip sampling exercise dated 30th January 2018. 

Signed: _______________________________

Date: _________________________________

Tudalen 130



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 5

4.0 Actions taken following previous Panel meeting 

As a result of the Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny Panel’s work, the following 
actions have been taken since the last meeting:

 Custody training has now been amended to incorporate consideration of 
crimes against hospital staff when officers have been called to assist with 
violent patients. 

 Reminders / guidance have been sent out to all Custody Pool Sergeants 
and Supervisors in relation to the appropriate use of the ACPO gravity 
matrix.

5.0 Consideration of Public Order cases – youth suspects

Two of the youth cases considered had been dealt with by way of Youth 
Community Resolution, three cases by a Youth Restorative Disposal and two had 
been issued with a Youth Caution. Members’ assessments were as follows:

Members’ assessment Number of cases

Appropriate 4

Appropriate with reservations 2

Inappropriate 1

5.1 Observations

Panel Members’ observations on each case are detailed below.

Case 1

Members felt  a Conditional Caution may have been more appropriate, as there 
was a concern whether the individual had learnt from the incident, as there were 
no consequences for not complying with the conditions attached to the Caution.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate use with reservations

Tudalen 131



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 6

Case 2 

Members identified that the suspect had received 3 Community Resolutions in 
the last 6 months. As such, the Panel felt that the individual was not taking 
responsibility for their actions and learning from past mistakes. It was felt that 
the outcome of the previous incident should have been escalated to a Youth 
Caution and therefore this incident should have been escalated further.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate use with reservations

Case 3

The Panel were satisfied with the suspect receiving a Youth Community 
Resolution for the offence recorded, however queries were raised as to whether 
the crime had been recorded appropriately. 

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 4

Members expressed no concerns with the rationale contained within the case file 
and subsequent outcome decision. The suspect had no previous convictions, 
good school attendance and appeared to have a strong and stable background 
for extra support.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

 Case 5

Due to the suspect having no previous convictions, members expressed no 
concerns with the rationale contained within the case file and subsequent 
outcome decision. 

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 6

It was found that the date of birth for the suspect had been recorded incorrectly 
on the PNC record and the outcome therefore was an Adult Community 
Resolution. Members expressed no concerns with the rationale for the outcome 
decision but requested the PNC record be updated with the relevant outcome.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Tudalen 132



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 7

Case 7

Panel Members came to the decision that this case had been inappropriately 
disposed. Members felt that due to the incident involving a knife, the offender 
should have received a minimum of a Caution. The Panel felt that this was 
inconsistent with the outcomes of similar cases. 

Panel’s Assessment: Inappropriate

6.0 Consideration of Public Order cases –– adult suspects

Panel Members reviewed 9 adult cases, 2 of which had been dealt with by way of 
Caution and 7 via Adult Community Resolution (ACR). Members’ assessments 
were as follows:

Members’ assessment Number of cases

Appropriate 7

Appropriate with reservations 1

Inappropriate 1

Panel Failed to Reach Conclusion 0

6.1 Observations

Panel Members’ observations on each case are detailed below.

Case 8 

Members considered a Caution was appropriate in this case as the offender had 
no previous convictions, admitted responsibility and had given a full apology.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Action 1

Case 6 suspect’s PNC record to be updated to accurately reflect the 
outcome as per the admission of guilt form.

Tudalen 133



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 8

Case 9 

Members were satisfied with the rationale contained within the case file and 
subsequent outcome decision. 

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 10

It was agreed by the Panel that an Adult Community Resolution was the correct 
form of disposal, as the victim was happy with this outcome and previous 
conviction was 2 years ago. 

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 11 

Panel Members agreed that an Adult Community Resolution was appropriate for 
this case as the suspect fully admitted to the offence and had no previous 
history of offending.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 12

Panel Members agreed that Adult Community Resolution was appropriate for this 
case as this outcome had been discussed and agreed with victim.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 13 

Panel members felt that a Caution would have been a more appropriate outcome 
as the suspect had assaulted a Police Officer and had resisted arrest.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate with reservations

Case 14

It was agreed by the Panel that Adult Community Resolution (ACR) was an 
appropriate outcome as both parties involved in the incident had agreed and 
signed the ACR.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Tudalen 134



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 9

Case 15

Members expressed no concerns with the rationale contained within the case file 
and the subsequent outcome decision. Both parties involved in the incident had 
been addressed regarding the issue and a face to face apology had occurred.

Panel’s Assessment: Appropriate

Case 16 

Panel Members came to the decision that this case had been inappropriately 
disposed. The full submission was taken into consideration and the willingness 
by the victim for an ACR to be issued, however the Panel felt that a minimum of 
a Caution would have been more appropriate, due to the offender showing no 
remorse, having previously been banned from the premises, the offender’s 
abusive actions towards the Police and that the incident had occurred in the 
presence of school children. 

Panel’s Assessment: Inappropriate

Other Matters Arising

A detailed discussion took place in relation to feedback from the Youth Bureau 
regarding the referral (RJ1) form and the need for the Youth Bureau to receive 
this form within 24 hours from the Force. It was raised that not all relevant 
information was being completed within the form, especially the previous 
convictions section. It was noted that this appeared to be a Force-wide issue.

A concern was also raised that victims were being updated by both the Youth 
Justice Team and the Force, resulting in a duplication of information for the 
victim. It was agreed by the Panel that this issue would be raised with the 
Partnership Chief Inspectors for a resolution to be sought.

Action 2

Victims receive an update from both the Force and the Youth Justice Team 
which results in a duplication of information and contact for the victim. 
Issue to be discussed amongst the Partnership Chief Inspectors to see if a 
solution can be found.

Tudalen 135



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 10

Panel Members noted that although there has been a decrease in the number of 
Cautions, this did not appear to be reflected in the amount of incidents dealt 
with through the Court.

It was also discussed that there is a concern regarding the amount of time it 
takes for feedback to be fed into training and procedures. 

Action 3

Data to be included within the future Panel reports showing how the 
overlaying crime trend relates to the Out of Courts Disposal outcomes.

Action 4

Force to consider how Panels findings are fed back into training and 
procedures in a timelier manner.

Tudalen 136



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 11

7.0 Panel’s assessments to date

The graph below demonstrates the Panel’s assessment of the cases considered 
at the most recent meeting.

Since April 2013 the Panel has considered a range of disposals, as displayed in 
the graph below. 

Tudalen 137



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 12

       

Of the 200 cases examined between April 2013 and January 20181, 53% were 
assessed as appropriate, 26% as inappropriate, 19% as appropriate with 
reservations and the panel failed to reach a conclusion in 2% of cases.

Overall there has been an increase in the number of cases the Panel have 
deemed as having appropriate disposals. This change over time can be seen in 
the graph below.

1 Covering the Panel’s activity from November 2013 to January 2018. 

Tudalen 138



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 13

The graph below shows the breakdown by crime type as a percentage of cases 
considered between November 2013 and January 2018. 

The following graph displays the actual number of cases assessed within each 
crime type and the resulting Panel opinions at their meetings between November 
2013 and January 2018. 

Tudalen 139



OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL 14

7.1 Good practice

The following examples of good practice were identified as a result of the Panel’s 
work this quarter:

 Generally, the Panel was satisfied with the rationale noted within the 
majority of case files, which resulted in the appropriate disposal outcome.

 It was evident on a number of the cases that the victims’ wishes had been 
taken into consideration when deciding on the outcome for the offender 
and the case. 

7.2 Areas for improvement

One particular area for improvement was identified as a result of the Panel’s 
work this quarter:

 There should be greater communication between the Youth Justice Teams 
and Dyfed-Powys Police to ensure referral forms are received in a timely 
and accurate manner and that an agreement be reached as to the efficient 
updating of victims following Youth Bureau decision making.

8.0 Future Panel focus

On recommendation of the OPCC, Members agreed to consider out of court 
disposals relating to Criminal Damage incidents at the next meeting of the Out of 
Court Disposal Panel.

Tudalen 140



Policing Accountability Board outcome report

Date of meeting:
Author: Emma Northcote
Outcome (please tick the outcome  you are reporting on)
Public confidence 

Victim satisfaction
Organisational health and well-being
HMIC
Office of Police Conduct

Inadequate Requires improvement    Good           Outstanding

What is working well? How will we build on this?
We continue on an upward trajectory in relation those who feel ‘police do a good or excellent job’ according 
to the Crime Survey of England & Wales (73.9%).  This is the highest rating nationally and at our highest 
point since recording began.

We have supplemented the CSE&W with a pilot community consultation programme (OpCynefin), which 
has now been undertaken in three wards across Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion.    
OpCynefin has enabled us to get a more distilled understanding of how our communities feel about issues 
local to them, factors impacting on whether people choose to report incidents and crime to police, how they 
prefer to be engaged with and how they prefer to contact us.  A report is being prepared on the initial 
findings now and these will be commented upon here next quarter.

Analysis of news cuttings continue to demonstrate we are achieving the headlines we are aiming for when 
proactively issuing news and, are achieving our desired mix of crime and appeal related articles vs 
information promoting engagement.  We also see consistent reinforcement of our primary key messages, 
and that of being a service of our communities and for our communities. Corporate Communications Senior 
Manager has now set individual challenges to the team to convert neutral coverage to useful, valuable 
stories demonstrating innovation, use of tech, positive attitudes in preventing and tackling crime.

We are especially focused on developing media and social media features which close the loop on some of 
our appeals/incidents reported on in the media.  Our roads policing units are very good at doing this via 
Twitter.  Over the next six to eight months, we will look at an effective model to bring more of this content 
over from Facebook to Twitter. 

A recent survey run by Corporate Communications on Facebook asking why people follow us and how they 
rate our content, suggested they were happy overall with the content posted and wanted to see more of the 
operational activity.  The majority of those who follow us on Twitter don’t follow us on Facebook too – but 
given the volume of accounts we have on Twitter, or presence is larger with more area specific content. This 
can be used differently and we think to better effect on Facebook.

Total number of Facebook followers mid-April is 44,443 – an increase of approx.5,000 in last quarter.
Total number of Twitter followers mid-April is 42,502 – an increase of approx. 1,850 in last quarter.

In January, we launched our first Facebook Group, in response to a request from the rural community in 
north Pembs/south Ceredigion. This group now has 1,229 members, 1,031 of whom are active (84%). 
Corporate Communications presented the Group to the Rural Crime Board in February and it was received 
positively.  Discussions are now ongoing in relation to how we develop the group concept, whilst 
maintaining quality and control.  Evaluation of this group is underway (internally and externally).  

Rating

Tudalen 141



The CSE&W figures at June 17 showed that 68.5% of people felt ’police or council deal with crime’ – a drop 
of 2.6% compared to the previous year.  The most recent CSE&W figures show an improvement on the last 
position, with 72.2% feeling that ‘police or council deal with crime’.  Nationally, this is the highest percentage 
by force area.

What is not working well? How will we manage this?
When CSE&W asks residents if they feel ‘police deal with community priorities’, 68.5% of people agreed.  
This is the highest approval rating nationally when communities were asked this question, but has dropped 
by 3.9% on the previous year’s figure (72.4%). Nationally there has been movement with many forces 
seeing a drop in this area.  We know that community issues that matter most to communities are those 
which aren’t necessarily matters for police to resolve.  

We have completed the first OpCynefin stage of our community consultation exercise in Tycroes, Tregaron 
and Milford Haven.  We are confident that activity to develop our understanding of community priorities will 
help us drive improvement in this measure and will inform the roll out of a wider consultation programme 
forcewide.

In addition to increasing our focus on pushing local messages out for print media, we are also making 
moves to increase our presence on Facebook, recognising that our communities are predominantly 
engaging with us via Facebook. (The Rural Watch group and the Crime Prevention group mentioned earlier 
form part of this). We anticipate that this will increase the ability of teams to demonstrate local action being 
taken to tackle quality of life issues and, assist us in closing the loop on appeals and incidents.  

What are our opportunities?  How will we exploit them?
Recent consultation activity has enabled us to gain an insight into the preferred means of engagement for 
those over 55.  This has been a gap we have been keen to understand better, given the vulnerability profile.  

In undertaking internal and external consultation to provide evidence behind our decision to cease using our 
community messaging system, we inadvertently learnt that DPCM (community messaging system) is a 
system is a preferred means of contact for this age group (along with the other means we are already aware 
of).  DPCM has not been high on our development agenda given challenges internally with navigating the 
system. 

We see opportunities to increase targeted take-up of this system and adapt our messaging to ‘calls for 
action’, now we understand the user profile better. We will also be returning to the system provider to ask for 
work to be done to make it more user friendly.

What are our threats?  How will we manage them?
We continue to mitigate the risk of fewer people seeing our posts on Facebook, following FBs change to the 
algorithm and prioritising profile content over page content.  We are posting instructions on how people can 
still choose to see our posts in their newsfeeds, but a wholesale change is required in our approach if we 
are to maximise on our reach. 

We have not seen a drop in number of print media and a move online, as many other forces have, therefore 
resource to serve print and broadcast agencies, as well as service our own news channels is becoming 
increasingly difficult.  

We are now working to understand Facebook rules around groups attached to pages.  We anticipate that 
this will generate additional demand on Corporate Communications – we are therefore looking across our Tudalen 142



current workload and are engaging with the Continuous Improvement team to help us in identifying capacity 
to better manage and grow our social media channels.

The individual in our Communications & Engagement Co-ordinator post submitted her resignation last week.  
We feel we have learnt a significant amount from this post in the last 12 months and are much better 
informed as a result of the work undertaken.  The decision has been taken to swap this post for that of a 
Digital Media Officer now, so that we can push ahead with our learning in this area and put a suitable work 
plan in place to keep ahead of development online and on social media.

The introduction of GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) at the end of May is a threat to us having 
visually attractive content, as we work to update our image library and gain all necessary permissions for 
use of image.  This piece of work has been prioritised.

Resource challenges and increasing demand upon NPTs pose a threat to the pace at which we can move 
forward with our aims to tailor and improve communication and engagement.  The new communication and 
engagement approach to segment our audiences and only concentrate on methods likely to have to 
greatest effect will, in the long run assist in improved utilisation of resources.  In doing this, we aim to make 
NPTs engagement activity more efficient, but there is a significant investment of time required by Corporate 
Communications.  To help with this, we have employed the services of the Continuous Improvement team 
to help us in identifying opportunities for more efficient ways of working and assist us in freeing some 
capacity to support communication activity and have a CI event scheduled for June 2018 (moved from April 
2018 because of availability of those invited).

Resource implications
Finance – revenue funding, capital 
investment, external funding, 
commissioning, collaboration 
opportunities etc.

Corporate Communications is currently operating beyond capacity 
(carrying high numbers of hours) and are looking at what we can stop 
doing to further support NPTs and meet Chief Officer priorities.   

Assets – estates, facilities, IT etc. None.

Staff - knowledge & skills, capacity, 
capability, training etc.

Corporate Communications is prioritising a piece of work to explore 
further any opportunities for the Force Contact Centre to play a role in a 
customer service aspect of response as Corporate Communications does 
not have the resources to staff the customer contact element of our social 
media channels.

Timescales Ongoing work to drive improvement.

Leadership The Chief Constable’s message to ‘Do the basics brilliantly’ has traction 
now – we must grip this and take it through our work to improve public 
perception.

Partners Partnership working will be key to improving community confidence.  PSB 
relationships is being maximised to achieve this.

Impact considerations
Risk Historic reports (HMIC, IPCC), not of now. PSD issues relating to 

individuals.

Legal Welsh Language Standards. GDPR.
Tudalen 143



Police and Crime Plan None.
Demand The demand of reactive incidents upon scheduled work.

Governance None.

Equality We are working hard to deliver the bilingual service as required of us 
under our obligations to comply with the Welsh Language Standards and 
our organisational commitment to the language. It is a challenge to 
maintain our spontaneity in communication (particularly on social media), 
but is one we are managing on the corporate channels to date (2.5 FTE 
fluent Welsh speaking staff with varying confidence in writing in Welsh 
accurately).  However, a recent rebuked challenge made to the Welsh 
Language Commissioner on the production of English only videos could 
make our ability to work to the timescales currently required of us very 
difficult and mean our senior officers lose their voice in video.  We 
appealed the response to our challenge but this was rejected. We are 
now in the process of scoping acquiring  professional subtitling software 
to try to make the process as efficient and professional as possible whilst 
helping us maintain some degree of spontaneity if possible.

Reputation – confidence and 
satisfaction

Historic reports (HMIC, IPCC), not of now; Large scale incidents not of 
our control (response is within our control).

Environmental and 
sustainability

None.

Media, communication and 
engagement

The demand of reactive incidents upon scheduled work.

Senior officer approval
Name: Signature: Date:

Tudalen 144



Policing Accountability Board outcome report

Date of meeting: 8th May 2018

Author: Irene Davies Jones               
Assistant Director CJD 

Outcome (please tick the outcome  you are reporting on)
Public confidence
Victim satisfaction 
Organisational health and well-being
HMIC
Office of Police Conduct

Inadequate Requires improvement    Good           Outstanding

Terms of Reference have been agreed for the Victim and Witness Group.  The purpose of the Board 
is to maintain strategic oversight of the victim and witness business area and is chaired by the 
Assistant Chief Constable. The Board will :-

• Maintain and seek to improve service delivery to all victims and witnesses
• To ensure that victims and witnesses are at the heart of the Criminal Justice System
• To ensure that the rights of the victims and witnesses are maintained, from report to          

resolution.
• To improve Victim Satisfaction and Public Confidence. 

The Board will agree a Strategic Action Plan to ensure the delivery of a professional and effective 
service across departmental and territorial boundaries, agreeing deliverables, timescales and key 
milestones.  It will provide a mechanism for Board members to report on any local/organisational 
barriers, risks or issues which would impact on service delivery and victim satisfaction. Furthermore, 
it will produce and agree a robust Victim and Witness Communications Strategy.

Work has been undertaken to amalgamate the separate action plans from Victim’s Journey, Victim 
Satisfaction Continuous Improvement Event,  #wecare, VCOP action plan and DA survey into one 
overarching action plan with priorities identified and fed back to the Force Victim and Witness Group.  
(Target Date: 30th June 2018).

A high level of victim satisfaction is a key outcome.  The formal Home Office reporting requirement 
is no longer in place, allowing victim satisfaction performance to be tailored in line with Force 
priorities and the Police and Crime Plan.  Paul Morris is currently preparing a report outlining options 
for future provision of the service for consideration by the Group.

In the meantime, the Victim Satisfaction crime survey for 2018-2019 has been improved, all crime 
categories are now included in the sample to ensure that views are collected from victims of all 
crimes (except serious crime). Vulnerable victims re also included in the crime sample to ensure 
consistency of service delivery. The question set has been amended following discussions with 
stakeholders, and the survey will be produced in a bilingual format to allow easier response collection 
and analysis. An online survey has been designed which could be sent electronically to victims, this 
is in its infancy at the moment.

Victim Satisfaction continues to be prioritised as part of day to day policing and forms part of themes 
around Divisional DMM with clear focus around completion of contracts and updates.  A trial is 
continuing in Carmarthenshire whereby the Telephone Researcher can place a request on the crime 

Rating

Tudalen 145



directly when a victim has asked for an update from the officer in the case after completing a survey.  
This has had some service recovery success, with some officers contacting the victim that very same 
day.  This will be considered for Force-wide roll out.

The domestic abuse victim satisfaction research process has been improved to ensure consistency 
of approach. The screening of victims to ensure suitability for a telephone survey has been reduced 
to attempt to engage with victims from the high risk category. The Constable is undertaking both the 
research beforehand and the survey itself, and is providing service recovery to the victim by offering 
advice and guidance whilst on the telephone. Any necessary follow-up action is also being 
highlighted by the Constable, and the lower level complaints are being dealt with by the CI team and 
PSD.

Analysis is being undertaken of the Crime Survey results, focusing on the information provided by 
the free-text responses.  The analysis includes a shallow audit of the records on CMS & STORM to 
sense-check the responses and to identify patterns that could explain where a respondent is 
dissatisfied with the various elements enquired about.  Initial findings suggest that respondents are 
finding it difficult to accept resolution by ICAT, preferring to see an officer in person. 

 Separating the data in respect of cases dealt with by ICAT will provide a clearer picture in 
respect of any variances in satisfaction levels which will be explored further.  Additionally, 
although records document all the investigative actions undertaken by the officer and the 
updates made to the IP, this information may not be delivered or fed back, resulting in lack 
of understanding and therefore dissatisfaction by the victim.

Goleudy encompasses two teams – Victim Services and Witness Care unit. Having them both 
in one department offers an interwoven/co-ordinated approach for victim and witnesses at 
every stage. Support is provided for all recordable victim based crimes, with the exception of 
Hate Crime, High Risk Domestics and Homicide and crimes against companies.

Since Goleudy was launched on 1 April 2017, 23,644 referrals have been made. 

The top line indicates recordable victim based crimes in that given month; the bottom line 
demonstrates the  number of referrals coming through to Goleudy.  Goleudy referrals are 
mirroring the peaks and troughs of current crime levels. On average the number of cases 
received daily is 66. 

Tudalen 146



In regards to categories of crime types, Violence against the person, Criminal Damage and 
Theft, were in the main, the largest categories of referrals. 

The above diagram highlights the breakdown of the type of support that is provided and 
requested by victims.  

Goleudy ensures that all victims are provided with an effective and holistic, wrap around 
service. It is recognised that victims may need more than one type of support or intervention 
throughout the criminal justice process.

Goleudy staff have all received THRIVES training and incorporate this into the initial risk 
assessments, to ensure that the correct service and advice is being offered, and that service 
provision is not solely based on the crime type.  

From October 2017, Goleudy agreed to manage and support medium risk Domestic Abuse Victims 
as an interim measure.  Two Support Officers have recently been appointed, on a six monthly 
temporary contract.  All officers will hold a generic caseload, this is to ensure that each territorial 
area will have a Support Officer that can effectively manage all case types. A victim may have several 
needs, ie be a victim of theft but later discloses domestic abuse, therefore it is imperative that the 
victim is not passed from one specialist officer to another – a holistic needs-responsive approach is 
taken by Goleudy to ensure an enhanced service to all victims.

The Witness Care Unit (WCU) is currently dealing with 658 live cases and 266 trials. The WCU 
offers victims and witnesses a dedicated single point of contact from the first hearing to the 
conclusion of the case. The Witness Care officers co-ordinate and schedule pre-trail visits 
and special measures.  

Tudalen 147



Au
g-

17
Se

p-
17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17
Ja

n-
18

Fe
b-

18
M

ar
-1

8

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Escalation to 
Inspectors

Escalation to Inspectors

The Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) contract with Gwalia terminated on the 31st March 2018. Goleudy 
Victim and Witness Service are now responsible for managing medium and high risk ASB victims 
from the 1st April 2018. Dyfed Powys Police have reviewed all processes and protocols in regards 
to Anti-Social Behaviour to ensure a more effective and swift response.  Victim and witness support 
officers will be based within stations across the Force area - co-location will promote a more effective 
service to victims, as well as providing officers with a single point of contact for victim queries.  All 
support officers will have a base but will be actively encouraged to attend all stations within their 
divisions on a regular basis.

Since Goleudy Victim and Witness service was launched on the 1st April 2017, the team have 
undergone a considerable amount of change and development. Through partnership working 
with the OPCC office and internal Departments across the force, Goleudy’s referral pathways 
are becoming embedded.

Goleudy have assumed responsibility for medium risk domestic abuse victims and also 
action Fraud.  From 1 April 2018 this has been extended to include anti-social behaviour.  The 
current priority is to fully embed these service provisions.

Whilst Goleudy were honoured and delighted to receive recognition by the Peel Effectiveness 
Report published in March 2018 as best practice for supporting victims, there remains much 
to do if victims are to be truly placed at the heart of the criminal justice system.

Service Recovery

236
264

239

167
175

190

90
74

Au
g-

17
Se

p-
17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17
Ja

n-
18

Fe
b-

18
M

ar
-1

8

0
50

100
150
200
250
300

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire

Powys

Total

Taskings sent to officers for 
more information

In regards to Service Recovery, the team have been manually collating, since April 2017, all cases 
where the victims have not been updated accordingly per VCOP. In order to aid service recovery at 
the earliest opportunity, the team have been providing gentle nudges to the officer in the case to 
contact the victim. Should this not occur within 5 working days (taking into account DMS) the case 
is then escalated and highlighted to an Inspector.   It is pleasing to note the decreases in nudges an 
also that between November 2017 and March 2018 there has been no escalation to an Inspector.

What is not working well? How will we manage this?
Tudalen 148



Following the Victim Satisfaction CI event, it was agreed that victims should be surveyed 4-5 weeks 
after their crime had happened, to aid their recollection of how the police dealt with them. Due to the 
0.5 Telephone Researcher post still remaining vacant, this has not been possible, and victims are 
currently being surveyed 8-9 weeks post-incident. There is no programme or resources in place for 
full analysis of the survey responses by the CI team at this time.

Data collection has been an issue.  The OPCC and Goleudy Victim and Witness service are 
reviewing the current data collected and revising down the key performance indicators from 40 
which are unwieldy to a more meaningful number to ensure that the service is delivering its 
key aims and objectives; that all data is meaningful, informative and able to be analysed to 
dictate future progression. 

What are our opportunities?  How will we exploit them?

Latest User Satisfaction data for the year ending March 2018 
967 victims of burglary, vehicle, violent and hate incident /crimes were surveyed over the 12-month 
period ending March 2018.

Direction of Travel

The graph below focuses on the various aspects of the victim journey and compares satisfaction 
rates of Dyfed-Powys for the year ending March 2018.

Source – Qlik view

The above graph illustrates that the follow up satisfaction rate (light green line) for victims surveyed 
are lower than other aspects of their experience. The ‘kept informed’ rate for March 2018 stands 
at 65%.

The whole experience satisfaction rate for the year ending March 2018, currently stands at 77.9%, 
with some variation seen amongst various crime types, with victims of vehicle offences standing at 

No data 
recorded for 

June and July 17

Tudalen 149



87.3% and victims of violent offences standing at 72.6%. Criminal damage (11 surveys), Robbery (1 
survey) and Theft offence (4 surveys) have been surveyed for the first time in March 18.  

The Continuous Improvement team is currently designing an online survey and are liaising with IS&T 
to explore if a text message survey can be utilised. Correct analysis of the data collected would 
enable the identification of areas of poor service to enable the targeting of improvements.   It will also 
recognise and celebrate outstanding service.

The Force maintains a gifts and hospitality register, the purpose of which is to ensure transparency.  
This often includes expressions of thanks and recognition of good work which is not currently 
captured as evidence of victim satisfaction.  This will be reported on in general terms in future 
updates.

Victim Communication Strategy 

Dyfed Powys Police are currently re-drafting the communications plan in support of the work to 
improve victim satisfaction, with a focus on informing officers and staff in contact with victims of 
crime about what matters to them.  This will be finalised once a decision has been made at the 
next force Performance and Outcomes Board regarding the wider plan to trial improvements.  A 
Tudalen 150



strong message around the basics of good service to victims is included within the Chief Officer 
Group Roadshow slides which began on Monday, 16th April 2018.

What are our threats?  How will we manage them?
The current Telephone Researcher occupies two and a half day post, and the 0.5 has not been 
filled.  The desired dataset will have to be restricted to ensure the Continuous Improvement team 
resources can manage the workload. In order to collect views from vulnerable victims from 
January, the process of screening out certain groups of victims has been greatly reduced; the 
Telephone Researcher reports issues with contacting certain vulnerable victims, including those 
who suffer from alcohol abuse, dementia, etc. The recording of incorrect telephone numbers of 
victims is still causing concern.

The Constable undertaking the Domestic Abuse surveys is not a welsh speaker and there may be 
a delay in identifying a suitable person to undertake the survey.

Victim Engagement Forum ( VEF) 

The VEF was launched in September 2017 with a view of acting as the ‘voice’ of victims of crime 
and anti-social behaviour within Dyfed Powys Police. The VEF will allow opportunity for individuals 
to openly contribute their experience of the Criminal Justice (CJ) Process and to help shape the 
future work of the Local Criminal Justice Board (LCJB), ensuring that the CJ process is as effective 
and efficient as possible. The VEF will also seek the views of members of the public who have 
supported victims throughout the process, to ensure that a fully rounded picture of the CJ process 
can be obtained.

Regretfully, since the launch of the VEF in 2017, there has been little progress with this, largely due 
to a lack of staffing resource to progress this initiative further. However, over the next month, two 
key individuals will be in post within the PCC, who will be tasked to review and progress the VEF. 

Key areas of the above work will be to look at the methodology for obtaining the ‘voice’ of the victim, 
ensuring that this is done via the most appropriate means. This will consider the use of telephone 
contact, e-mail, text messaging services, as well as utilising face to face engagement style events. 
This flexible approach will allow the work of the VEF to be tailored as required to the most appropriate 
means, dependent on the matter for which feedback is being sought.  This work is currently already 
being considered in partnership with the Collaboration and Efficiency Department, looking to utilise 
the Victim Satisfaction contract as an enabler wherever possible.

Resource implications
Finance – revenue funding, capital 
investment, external funding, 
commissioning, collaboration 
opportunities etc.

Assets – estates, facilities, IT etc.

Tudalen 151



Staff - knowledge & skills, capacity, 
capability, training etc.

Ongoing recruitment issues regarding telephone researcher post to 
undertake the Victim Satisfaction survey;
Ongoing permanency issues regarding the Constable conducting 
the DA surveys.

Timescales

Leadership

Partners

Impact considerations
Risk

Legal

Police and Crime Plan

Demand

Governance

Equality

Reputation – confidence and 
satisfaction

Environmental and 
sustainability

Media, communication and 
engagement

Senior officer approval

Name:

Signature:

Tudalen 152



  

POLICING BOARD REPORT 

                            

PURPOSE: Policing Board – Victim and Witness update

Title: Victim and Witness update

Executive Summary:

This report provides key updates in respect of victims and witnesses as commissioned 
by the Victim and Witness Group.

  

Timing: Policing Board – 9th April 2018

Business Area Impact:  Operational Policing/Criminal Justice

ITEM 

Tudalen 153



Introduction

Victim satisfaction is a key outcome of the Police and Crime Delivery Plan.  The 
Victim and Witness Group maintain oversight of the victim and witness business 
area, with the overall aims to:

 Maintain and seek to improve service delivery to all victims and witnesses.
 To ensure that victims and witnesses are at the heart of the criminal justice 

system.
 To ensure that the rights of victims and witnesses are maintained, from report 

to resolution.
 To improve Victim Satisfaction and Public Confidence.

A high level of victim satisfaction is a key outcome.  The formal Home Office 
reporting requirement is no longer in place, allowing victim satisfaction 
performance to be tailored in line with Force priorities and the Police and Crime 
Plan.  Paul Morris is currently preparing a report outlining options for future 
provision of the service for consideration by the Group.

Victims Services, commissioned by the OPCC were brought in-house from 1 April 
2018.  Pre 1st of April, Victim Services were provided by Victim support. Based in 
Police Headquarters, they were remotely managed from Cardiff. There was very 
little interaction with police officers, other departments and external agencies. Staff 
did not have access to force systems and therefore working almost in the blind 
when processing referrals, compromising the quality of the service provided to the 
victims. Goleudy was developed to address a number of these key issues.    

A year into the contract, the below provides an over-view of progress to date.

Tudalen 154



Structure:

Goleudy encompasses two teams, Victim Services and Witness Care Team. 

Goleudy ensures a seamless provision of care for victims and witnesses 
throughout the Criminal Justice process; offering an enhanced service that victims 
are entitled to, providing end to end case management throughout, from report to 
resolution.

Goleudy as it stands comprises:-

Service Manger x 1 -Funded OPCC
Victim and Witness Supervisor x 1 -Funded CJD
Victim Care officer x 3.8 (4 Officers) -Funded OPCC
Victim & Witness Support Officer x 1.8 (3 Officers)  -Funded OPCC
Witness Care Unit x 3.5 (4 officers) -Funded CJD
Volunteers – 5

Additional resources from January 2018:-

Temporary Victim and Witness Support Officer x 2 -Funded by the OPCC

Additional resources from April 2018 (ASB Transfer):-

Victim and Witness Support Officer x1 -Funded by OPCC
Senior Supervisor x1 -Funded by OPCC
Vacancies: 72 Hour void -Funded by OPCC
(Currently 21 hours have been absorbed by current staff as additional hours)

Goleudy have 18 volunteers – 12 of which are newly appointed and have only 
recently undertaken and completed their training.  A further recruitment drive will 
be held in September 2018, with a target set to recruit a further 15 volunteers 
across the force area.

Initial Backlogs:

Goleudy inherited a backlog of 790 cases from Victim Support, some of these 
cases were back dated to February 2017, therefore victims appeared to be waiting 
an approximate two months before having contact from support services. Victim 
Support did offer to ‘manage’ this backlog “quickly”. The Project Team lead 
identified that this would be achieved by Victim Support by reducing  the contact 
methodology ( ie instead of attempting to contact the victims three times over five 
working days, they would contact the victims once/twice before closing the case). 
This was the norm when dealing with ‘pinch periods’, such as staff holidays, peak 
referrals etc.  Given that the team were continuously working with reduced 
resources, this reduced contact methodology almost became normal practice.
  
The above backlog was successfully managed and addressed by June 2018 by 
Goleudy Staff.

Tudalen 155



Issue with Data:

The ‘Victim Support Demand’ paper submitted to the Executive Board in March 
2017, stated that care should be taken when interpreting the breakdown of the 
demand as there are a number of discrepancies in the Victim Support supplied 
data, and subsequently went on to evidence and provide examples of  several 
inaccuracies.

An internal target, created by Goleudy, has been to contact all victims within 
72hours (from receipt of referral).   Should no contact be made, further attempts 
will always be made (5 attempts over 5 days) followed by a letter/or SMS (if 
appropriate) to ensure that all victims are provided with Goleudy’s contact details, 
should they require support in the future.

There are also issues with the Police data.

Goleudy’s internal case management system – Case Hub Tracker (CHT), has been 
under review since April 2017 and despite considerable effort by both Goleudy and 
IS & T, several SPRINT Work Items remain outstanding. Some of these Work Items 
relate to improving the software to ensure that it is an effective and robust case 
management system.  A considerable amount of the SPRINT items were  to enable 
Goleudy to provide sufficient data to the OPCC in relation to the Key Performance 
Indicators. 

Since January 2018, the IID Department, have also been heavily involved in order 
to develop and provide performance data on QlikView (following an unsuccessful 
attempt to abstract data through Kibana to produce performance data).   IID have 
questioned the level of detail that the current KPIs and raised concern that they are 
simply management indicators and not performance indicators. 

Despite Goleudy now having a presence on Qlik View, unfortunately, much of the 
data that has been received to date, has not been informative or indeed 
meaningful.  Moreover, some of the data is contradictory, unable to be interpreted 
effectively, or simply missing (this is due to a combination that there isn’t sufficient 
data to retrieve, as many of the fields being populated had only been recently 
developed and also due to the complexities surrounding capturing the data, IS&T 
were still in the process of developing the system. (It is noteworthy that the CHT 
system has grown from 1- 2 platforms where data can be retrieved, to 40 plus).

Following discussions with the Police and Crime Commissioner, it has been agreed 
that the current KPI’s be reviewed as a matter of urgency to ensure that all have a 
clear aim and purpose for each measure.

REFERRALS:

Tudalen 156



1978

2313 2330
2510

2329
2173

2423
2180 2154 2031 2000 2126

1719
1969 1957 2035

1946
1794

1986
1769

1833
1719 1605

1766

Apr 17 May 17 Jun 2017 Jul 2017 Aug 2017Sep 2017Oct 2017Nov 2017Dec 2017Jan 2018 Feb 2018Mar 2018
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Crimes Goleudy Referrals

DPP crimes and Goleudy referrals

Goleudy referrals are mirroring the current crime levels. On average the number of 
cases received daily is 66. As regards to the above data – checks are currently being 
undertaken by the IID team to ensure that all data is being captured, particularly in 
regards to Action Fraud referrals and Domestic Abuse cases as there appear  to be 
some inaccuracies. Since 15th January 2018, Goleudy have manually recorded that 
they have received 88 referrals from Action Fraud. 

During the first two quarters there were many occasions where referrals were 
received, however were unable to be progressed due to very scarce information. As a 
result of educating and increased communication between OICs and Goleudy staff, 
this has reduced considerably.  Staff are now able to retrieve, view and assess all the 
rich data of the crime that officers have captured. This in turn has enabled the team to 
provide a more tailored approach.  

88.27% of all referrals receive a full needs assessment. The average monthly referrals 
to Support Officers, who case manage serious and sexual victims of crime as well as 
those identified with complex needs, is 29 cases per month.

More insight is needed as which 
contact methodology utilised, 
resulted in successful contact 
being made – such data would 
then inform  the most appropriate 
way initial contact should be 
approached.  IID state that the 
current format of CHT makes 
retrieving such data virtually 
impossible.

4851

4147

2696

7

Telephone 

Text 

Letter

Email 

Tudalen 157



Goleudy have actively moved away from scripted responses on initial contact. It is 
felt that every contact should be tailored and delivered to that particular victim and 
their circumstances. 

2114

955
1272 1199

5540

2214

1014
1413 1331

5972

2181

1003
1273 1304

5761

1679

877
1175 1076

4807

Carmarthenshire Ceridigion Pembrokeshire Powys Total
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

Apr-Jun 17

Jul-Sep 17

Oct-Dec 17

Jan-Mar 18

Referrals by division

Support  officers will be based within stations across the force area. Co-location will 
promote a more effective service to victims, as well as providing officers with a single 
point of contact for victim queries. Currently, Powys and Ceredigion have their own 
dedicated Goleudy Support Officers, by the 16 April, 2018 Pembrokeshire will also 
host two support officers in Haverfordwest. Carmarthenshire will host a Support Officer 
in Ammanford, once this position is filled. (All support officers will have a base but will 
be actively encouraged to attend all stations within their divisions on a regular basis). 

 Since 1st April, 2017 Goleudy has received 25 referrals from Victim Support. In 
contrast, on average, Goleudy are referring 8 cases per month to Victim Support 
(where the victim does not reside within the Dyfed Powys Area . No data is available 
as to how many cases were referred pre-1st April, 2017, however staff have 
questioned the lack of referrals received to date.

Tudalen 158



3856

2013

1595

683

549

493

428
404

151 147 92 76 33

Violence Against the Person

Arson & Criminal Damage

Theft

Burglary  - Residential

Vehicle Offences

Public Order Offences

Sexual Offences

Domestic

Not Recorded

Burglary  - Business and 
Community

Fraud

Miscellaneous Crimes 
Against Society

Other

Referrals by crime type

From October 2017, Goleudy agreed to manage and support medium risk Domestic 
Abuse Victims as an interim measure.  Two Support Officers have recently been 
appointed, on a six monthly temporary contract.  All officers will hold a generic 
caseload, this is to ensure that every division will have a Support Officer that can 
effectively manage all case types. A Victim may have several needs, ie be a victim of 
theft but later discloses Domestic Abuse, therefore it is imperative that the victim is not 
passed from one specialist officer to another – a holistic needs-responsive approach 
is taken by Goleudy to ensure an enhanced service to all victims. 

Self Referrals

Self-referrals are one area that Goleudy wants to improve upon. Although no data has 
been provided to date, over the next year Goleudy is determined to improve public 
awareness of the service.. A robust communications strategy is needed to ensure that 
as a public facing service, the communities across Dyfed Powys force area are fully 
aware of the service provided. Goleudy team will be actively attending many events 
and festivals across the divisions throughout 2018, including the National Urdd 
Eisteddfod and Royal Welsh Show as well as attending  colleges/universities, Health 
Centres, Supermarkets and Libraries. 

Tudalen 159



Support offered

4

533

44
44

307

549

323

210

165

545

13

497

Other
Advocacy
CICA Support
Crime prevention advice
Emotional support face to face 
home visit=sum(
Emotional support outreach
Emotional telephone support
Follow up call
Onward referral
Personal safety and security items
Signposting
Information provision

Support type provided

Currently the Force does not have an accurate method of recording victims of repeat 
offences or those who have been deemed vulnerable. 
Service Recovery

236
264

239

167
175

190

90
74

Au
g-

17
Se

p-
17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17
Ja

n-
18

Fe
b-

18
M

ar
-1

8

0
50

100
150
200
250
300

Carmarthenshire

Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire

Powys

Total

Taskings sent to officers for 
more information

Aug-1
7
Oct-

17

Dec-1
7

Fe
b-18

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Escalation to 
Inspectors

Escalation to Inspectors

Tudalen 160



9
OFFICIAL

In regards to Service Recovery, the team have been manually collating, since 
April 2017, all cases where the victims have not been updated accordingly per 
VCOP. In order to aid service recovery at the earliest opportunity, the team 
have been providing gentle nudges to the OIC, to contact the victim. Should 
this not occur within 5 working days (taking into account DMS) the case is
then escalated and highlighted to Inspector.   As the above data illustrates – 
between November 2017 and March 2018 there has been no escalation to 
Inspector.

Victim Satisfaction feedback re Goleudy

Tudalen 161



10
OFFICIAL

Whilst the feedback is very positive, care needs to be taken in respect of the 
sample size (8.75%).  

Goleudy Exit Questionnaire

Data still awaiting to be collected by IID – it is important to understand what  
victims want from our service – if we can understand what victims value in 
service delivery, with what they find un-helpful within our processes/contact 
methodology/services – we will be a position in the future to monitor and refine 
our service delivery and provision in the future.  

Outcome Star 

ALCOHOL

FINANCE

EMPLOYMENT/EDUCATION

CJS JOURNEY

SUBSTANCE 
MISUSE

ACCOMODATIONMENTAL HEALTH

LIFESTYLES & 
ASSOCIATES

EMOTIONAL

OUTLOOK & 
ATTITUDE

RELATIONSHIPS

1
3
5
7
9

INTIAL STAGE
REVIEW STAGE
EXIT INTERVIEW

Outcome Star

Tudalen 162



11
OFFICIAL

As requested by the OPCC, Goleudy have devised an ‘Outcome star’. The 
Outcome star attempts to plot the journey of the victim whilst they are supported 
by Goleudy and involved in the Criminal Justice System, to identify and explore 
the victim’s needs to ensure that their support plan is both relevant and 
effective. 

The Outcome Star is a tool that will help support and measure change when 
working with victims of crime. It aims to empower victims and encourages 
collaboration and integration for all involved. This tool will help plot the victims 
journey – motivating victims to see change or progress that has been achieved 
within specific areas. It will provide data to demonstrate and evidence the 
impact Goleudy as a service has on victims. The tool will also help to identify 
what is working and what can be improved for the future.   (All data will be 
shared with the Police and Crime Commissioner to ensure that future 
commissioned services are both relevant and targeted specifically for Dyfed 
Powys)  The Outcome star is the key vehicle by which Goleudy officers and 
volunteers will work with victims to support them to meet their individual support 
needs.

The Outcome Star scoring system uses a 10-1 sliding scale,  
1 indicating = Poor/Negative/Complex entrenched issues, 
10 indicating =Excellent/Positive/No issues.  
Goleudy Support Officers will undertake the above at three intervals - Initial 
stage, Review Stage and Exit stage.

Data is not available to date from IID in regards to the above, as CHT has only 
recently been updated with the new template. Feedback received through 
supervision, however illustrates that in the main Victims Mental Health, 
Finance, Relationships and Emotional are the key factors for Support Plans. 

Anti-Social Behaviour

As from the 1st April, 2018 Goleudy Victim and Witness. Goleudy will only be 
managing medium and high ASB cases, and will be solely concentrating on 
providing a victim led service. Goleudy are currently working closely with the 
Crime and Harm Reduction  Unit to ensure that their new updated version of 
MAVIS provides a seamless referral process for victims into Goleudy.

Case Study 

Assault with Injury 
Case Study.docx

Conclusion:

Tudalen 163



12
OFFICIAL

 
This year has been a year of considerable change and development, and that 
through partnership working with the OPCC office and  internal departments, 
Goleudy referral pathways are becoming embedded.

Goleudy is also now providing a stable and supportive working environment for 
all team members. Staff receive on-site management and supervision.  Initially, 
staff that were transferred over from Victim Support demonstrated a limited 
knowledge base and operational experience and were in need of intensive 
support from management. It was clear that there are significant gaps in both 
knowledge and skills. This is being addressed;, a full review of all training has 
been undertaken and all staff have received a variety of training including risk 
assessment, Domestic Abuse and DASH training, Disclosure Safeguarding 
issues and Mental Health training.

During the year Goleudy have taken over responsibility for medium risk 
domestic abuse victims and also action Fraud.  From 1 April 2018 this has been 
extended to include anti-social behaviour.  The current priority is to fully embed 
these service provisions.  Whilst Goleudy were honoured and delighted to 
receive recognition by the Peel Effectiveness Report published in March 2018 
as best practice for supporting victims, we are fully aware that there remains 
much to do if victims are to be truly placed at the heart of the criminal justice 
system.

Irene Davies Jones
Assistant Director Criminal Justice

Tudalen 164



1
OFFICIAL

  

POLICING BOARD REPORT 

                            

PURPOSE: Police Accountability Board – Focus on Protecting Vulnerable People

Title: Records Management and Crime Data Integrity

Executive Summary:

This report provides key updates in respect of the business areas detailed below, 
following queries raised by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC)

 Information Management and Compliance
 Crime Data Integrity and Force Crime Registrar

  

Timing: Policing Board – 27th March 2018

Business Area Impact:  Information Management and Compliance / Force Crime Registrar

ITEM 

Tudalen 165



2
OFFICIAL

1. Information Management and Compliance

1.1 Overview and governance

Governance for the Information Management Business Area moved in 
2017 from Legal and Compliance to Chief Superintendent portfolio 
(Governance and Change).

Since November 2017 T/Chief Superintendent Steve Cockwell has been 
strategic lead and T/Chief Inspector Gary Davies has been performing 
the role of Information Manager. The department is in a period of 
transition with 8 staff members being on temporary contracts and the 
future structure and resourcing of the department yet to be fully 
determined.

The main areas of focus have been: -

 Review of roles within department to align with Authorised 
Professional Practice (APP).

 Continuous Improvement Exercise held to identify waste, 
inefficiencies and duplication of effort.

 Review and updating of all policies within Information 
Management Business Area.

 Preparing for implementation of Data Protection Bill and GDPR
 Implementing Government Security Classification procedures 

and utilisation of TITUS software.
 Addressing action points from Ascentor report, previously 

commissioned.
 Addressing points raised in ICO undertaking and having a robust 

mechanism for decision making on any potential breaches.

1.2 Records Management and PNI

The work relating to Records Management relates to the following areas
 Reviewing and scanning paper records stored at various police 

premises
 Review and consolidation of PNI duplicate and rejected nominals
 Applying RRD (Review, Retention, Deletion) assessment under 

MOPI categories.

Tudalen 166



3
OFFICIAL

The 3rd element cannot be completed until the first 2 elements have been 
finalised.

In terms of scanning there is a plan in place to have digital converted all 
relevant records within a 2 year period.

The issue concerning PNI remains of concern due the high numbers of 
duplicate and rejected nominals that are in system and continue to be 
created. We are at the stage now where almost all auto matching has been 
completed to a level that provides assurance.

At present there are 272,526 nominal that require clerical matching and a 
total of 617,115 rejected nominals in system.

Additional funding has been provided for a further 4 temporary staff to assist 
in this process but timescales cannot be provided at this time due to the 
continued problem of poor data quality.

1.3 Records Management System Group

A Records Management System Group has been set up, which is chaired by 
the ACC and a copy of the terms of reference are included below. 

RMS Terms of 
Reference final version (2).doc

The first meeting was held on Thursday 22nd March 2018.

There are no definitive timescales on a decision on whether to migrate to 
another Record Management System, but the Deputy Chief Constable has 
requested a progress update on the work of the group by the end of May 
2018, prior to the next Chief Officer Visionary seminar.

1.4 ICO Undertaking

The ICO undertaking was signed and agreed by Chief Constable Mark 
Collins on the 12th September 2017, following a number of ICO reported 
breaches and penalties.

A comprehensive response to the undertaking will be submitted on Monday 
26th March 2018 and a further verbal update can be provided at Policing 
Board detailing the significant progress that has been made, which 
predominantly relates to the training that has been provided to all staff.

Tudalen 167



4
OFFICIAL

The OPCC has previously raised a query on completion rates for the ICALT 
packages and these currently stand at 86% for Police Staff and 79% for 
Police Officers. The statistics are being reviewed as persons shown as not 
completing packages include leavers, seconded staff, staff on career break 
and those on long term sick. 

The NCALT package is only a small part of a comprehensive training plan 
that has been implemented with the support of Learning and Development 
Services.

A teleconference has been arranged with the ICO on 3rd April 2018 following 
the submission of all relevant documents in order to check that the ICO are 
satisfied with the information provided.

2. Crime Data Integrity and Force Crime Registrar

2.1 Background

In 2014 the HMIC conducted a Crime Data Integrity Inspection and the 
forces were assessed as only recording 68% of reported crime.

Significant resources were lost from Crime Recording Bureau and the Force 
Crime Registrar under the Public First Programme (2014) and as such only 
limited audit has been progressed since that time.

2.2 TIIA Compliance Audit

A TIIA Compliance Review of Crime Recording in 2018 provided a grading 
of reasonable assurance with the following comments: -

 Dyfed Powys-Police has a detailed Crime Recording, allocation and 
Investigation Policy, which includes the process, in place.

 The Crime Recording, allocation and Investigation Policy needs to be 
made clearer in relation to the process. 

 The audit schedule for 2018/19 needs to be finalised and the 
schedule adhered to. 

 Issues with the data integrity of crime recording were noted.

These recommendations have been progressed and are managed through 
the Strategic Crime Recording User Group (CRUG).

2.3Crime Data Quality Assurance Policy

Tudalen 168



5
OFFICIAL

A Crime Data Quality Assurance Policy has been drafted and is pending 
approval through the Strategic Crime Recording User Group (CRUG). All 
potential entry points for crimes have been mapped and an audit plan has 
been completed pending approval.

The Home Office indicative sample sizes are unrealistic and scoping would 
require a team in excess of 17 staff members within Force Crime Registrar.

Other than the Force Crime Registrar and Deputy there are 2 full time 
members of staff for audit. A further post has been funded for part year in 
2018/2019 budget and the sample size will reflect the staffing levels as well 
as addressing the very high and high priority areas.

CDI QA POLICY 
DRAFT v4 Feb 2018.docx

In addition an Audit and Quality Assurance Framework is being developed 
across all business areas and will commence from April 2018. Crime Data 
Integrity will be a golden thread through all frameworks. This will be key to 
improving Crime Data Integrity throughout the Force.

Crime Data Integrity Champions have also been identified within each BCU 
(4 per BCU) and received training on 19th March 2018. As part of the Spring 
Training Programme all frontline staff received training on Crime Data 
Integrity with relevant scenarios around points of entry explored.

2.4 ICAT evaluation

A copy of the ICAT Evaluation that was conducted by Chief Inspector Craig 
Templeton is attached. The ICAT team have dealt with 16% of total crime 
for the Force at a time when there has been an increase of 16% in volumes.

The evaluation refers to criming at first point of contact, but this is only 
applicable to a percentage of the crimes reported. The limitations of the 
report recognise that the Crime Recording Bureau function was not 
evaluated.

ICAT evaluation - 
Final v4.pdf

The findings of the report have been discussed with C/Supt Vicki Evans and 
it has been agreed to consider the wider functions of ICAT to include the 
CRB function and a need to develop processes further.

2.5 Preparation for CDI Inspection

Tudalen 169



6
OFFICIAL

There have been significant improvements in addressing Crime Data 
Integrity issues, as have been outlined. Whilst there has been approximately 
16% increase in crime with the implementation of ICAT, this is in the context 
of a previous HMIC compliance rate of 68%. If no other improvements were 
made a 16% rise in crime would relate to an increase of compliance to 
approximately 79%.

It is recognised that we may still have a further 15-20% rise in overall crime 
to reach the Crime Data Integrity Standards that are required. From a review 
of other Force Inspections, it appears that anything under 85% is assessed 
as inadequate, under 90% requires improvement.

A recent audit of STORM data from December 2017 to February 2018 
showed a compliance rate of 85%. An audit rate of PROTECT for the same 
period showed a poor compliance rate of only 50% and this has been 
addressed via CID management.

With further rises in crime rates likely, the process for determining what 
crimes are allocated to frontline BCU staff is of particular significance in 
order to manage workloads and to remove bureaucracy where possible.

2.6Conclusion

Whilst CDI issues are being addressed, this is against a background of 
failing to address some of the key issues identified in 2014. The date for the 
2018 Crime Data Integrity Inspection has yet to be announced, but it is likely 
to come too soon before the benefit of all positive changes are realised fully.

Moving forward, true recording at the point of contact will need to be 
implemented to reach the high compliance rates that are achieved by 
Forces Wales who adopt such an approach and have the processes and 
resources to support this.

Steve Cockwell
T/Chief Superintendent

Tudalen 170



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED POWYS
27 GORFFENNAF 2018

                         ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y CADEIRYDD
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Cymeradwyo'r adroddiad a chytuno ar y modd o'i rannu

Y rhesymau: 

Bydd cyhoeddi'r adroddiad yn helpu i godi ymwybyddiaeth y cyhoedd o rôl a gwaith y Panel, 
a'r gobaith yw cynyddu'r gwaith o ymgysylltu â'r cyhoedd.

Awduron yr Adroddiad:

Y Cynghorydd Alun-Lloyd 
Jones (Cadeirydd)

Robert Edgecombe

Swydd:

Hyrwyddwr Perthnasol y 
Panel

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol

Rhif Ffôn

01267 224018

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

rjedgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 171

Eitem Rhif  9



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DYFED POWYS POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

27TH JULY 2018

CHAIRMAN’S ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

At its training day in March 2018 Panel Members agreed to the publication of an Annual 
Report setting out its activities for the past year together with appropriate objectives for the 
forthcoming year. The text of the report was circulated to panel members on the 12th June and 
the attached document reflects the feedback received.

The report also reflects guidance issued by the Centre for Public Scrutiny regarding the 
content of such annual reports.

Individual panel members have volunteered to act as Panel Champions in respect of the 4 
objectives. These are as follows;

Objective Panel Champion

Scrutiny of the Police Precept Cllr Keith Evans
Scrutiny of how the PCC holds the Chief 
Constable to account

Cllr William Powell

Scrutiny of the Police and Crime Plan Professor Ian Roffe
Improving Public awareness of the Police 
and Crime Panel

Cllr Alun Lloyd Jones

It is proposed that the Annual report be distributed as follows;

1. Published on the Panel website and circulated to traditional media outlets that are 
active in the force area;

2. Emailed to all MPs, AMs, MEPs, County Councillors and Town & Community Councils 
in the force area.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 172



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:-

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Host Authority File LS-0511/30 County Hall Carmarthen

Tudalen 173



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Panel
CHAIRMAN’S ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

Tudalen 175



contents

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

chairman’s foreword                                                            1

who we are                                                                            2

our role                                                                                  3

review of the Year                                                                 4

our objectives for 2018-2019                                             6

conclusion                                                                             8

Tudalen 176



chairman’s foreword

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8 1

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

I am delighted to be able to introduce the first
ever Annual Report of the Dyfed-Powys Police
and Crime Panel. The creation of directly elected
Police and Crime Commissioners and their
attendant Police and Crime Panels in 2012
heralded a radical change in how police forces in
England and Wales were governed. 

Whatever views one may have on the merits of
this approach compared to the old Police
Authority system, support for the concept of
Police and Crime Commissioners has slowly
grown over the years, with all main political
parties fielding candidates in the last
Commissioner elections. It is perhaps no co-
incidence that voter turnout in Dyfed-Powys for
those elections was the highest (at 52%) of any
area in England and Wales.

The theory behind the introduction of such
Commissioners was that they, and ultimately
the Police themselves, would become more
directly accountable to the public via the ballot
box, and therefore more responsive. However
placing such power in the hands of an individual
politician for several years potentially brings
with it risks which Police and Crime Panels are
designed to counter act.

As such my colleagues and I are committed to
holding the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Dyfed-Powys to account for the performance of
his statutory functions and supporting him to
deliver to the public the efficient and effective
police force that it deserves.

Tudalen 177



who we are

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 82

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Panel was
formed in 2012 by the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011. It has 14 members
consisting of;

1. 3 County Councillors from Carmarthenshire
2. 3 County Councillors from Ceredigion
3. 3 County Councillors from Pembrokeshire
4. 3 County councillors from Powys
5. 2 Independent co-opted members

All Panel Members are formally appointed by
the Home Office.

Further information regarding the Panel
Members can be found at Appendix 1.

Tudalen 178



our role

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8 3

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

The functions of the Police and Crime Panel are
to;

1. Review the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
     police and crime plan
2. Review the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
     annual draft budget, with the power to veto 
     the level of precept.
3. Deal with certain complaints against the 
     Police and Crime Commissioner or his 
     deputy.
4. Scrutinise decisions and actions taken by the 
     Police and Crime Commissioner
5. Review the appointment or removal of the 
     Chief Constable and the appointment of 
     certain senior staff in the Police and Crime 
     Commissioners office
6. Support the Commissioner in the 
     performance of his statutory functions
7. Make reports or recommendations to the 
     Commissioner
8. Review the Commissioner’s conduct

The statutory functions of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner are;

1. Setting the priorities for Dyfed-Powys Police;
2. Publishing a Police and Crime Plan;

3. Engaging with Communities and representing
     the public’s voice on policing matters;
4. Working closely with community safety and 
     criminal justice partners;
5. Supporting victims and bringing people to 
     justice;
6. Commissioning services to make 
     communities safer and to support the 
     vulnerable;
7. Appointing and, if necessary, dismissing the 
     Chief Constable;
8. Dealing with complaints and disciplinary 
     matters against the Chief Constable;
9. Holding the Chief Constable to account; and
10.  Setting the annual Police budget and 
       precept level

Neither the Panel, nor the Police and Crime
Commissioner has any role in the
management of operational policing by
Dyfed-Powys Police. Operational Policing is
the responsibility of the Chief Constable.

Tudalen 179



review of the year

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 84

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

New membership
Following the Local Government elections in
May 2017, the Panel saw significant changes in
its membership. Seven new members were
appointed and five previous members returned,
two of whom were co-opted members.

Training
All Panel Members received induction/refresher
trainer both in relation to their statutory
responsibilities and the challenges faced by
Dyfed-Powys Police. 

Precept
On the 26th January 2018 the Panel met to
consider the level of precept proposed by the
Police and Crime Commissioner for the
2018/2019 financial year. In preparation for that
meeting Panel Members received a detailed
briefing from the Police and Crime
Commissioner, Chief Constable and other senior
staff regarding;

1. The financial position of the force, including 
     projected income, expenditure and reserves
2. The level of demand faced by the force, 
     particularly in relation to cyber-crime, 
     historical sex abuse investigations and 
     serious and organised crime.
3. Staffing levels, including both for warranted 
     officers (i.e. Police Officers), PCSOs and 
     civilian staff. 

During the course of the Panel Meeting on the
26th January 2018 Panel Members questioned
the Police and Crime Commissioner and his
Chief Financial Officer regarding the financial
data and assumptions relied upon to justify the
proposed precept.

At the conclusion of that process the Panel were
satisfied that the proposed precept represented
value for money and recommended to the
Commissioner that the proposed Precept be
implemented.

Confirmation Hearing
On the 16th February 2018 the Panel met to
consider a request from the Police and Crime
Commissioner that it confirm his proposed
appointment of a new Chief Financial Officer.

The Panel had an opportunity to question the
Police and Crime Commissioner regarding the
process for the proposed appointment and the
preferred candidate regarding her suitability for
the role. Subsequently the Panel recommended
to the Commissioner that his preferred
candidate be appointed.

Questions on notice
During the year Panel Members have
questioned the Commissioner about a wide
range of issues falling within his remit. However
he was specifically asked about the following;

1. The Quality and cost of air support received 
     from the National Police Air Service.
2. The ability of Dyfed-Powys Police to respond 
     to terrorist incidents within the force area.
3. The reduction in the number of vehicles 
     stopped by the force for drink/driving.

The questions put to the Commissioner and his
detailed answers to them can be found in the
minutes of Panel Meetings on its website by
following the link below;
http://www.dppoliceandcrimepanel.wales/

Tudalen 180



C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8 5

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

Other Work
During the year Panel Members also;
1. Scrutinised how the Police and Crime 
     Commissioner holds the Chief Constable to 
     account
2. Scrutinised the work of the Joint Audit 
     Committee that supports the Police and 
     Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable
3. Reviewed all significant decisions taken by 
     the Police and Crime Commissioner and 
     questioned him about them

4. Reviewed all reports issued by Her Majesty’s 
     Inspectorate of Constabulary, Fire and 
     Rescue Services (HMICFRS) of relevance to 
     Dyfed-Powys Police and questioned the 
     Police and Crime Commissioner about them.

Tudalen 181



objectives for 2018-2019

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 86

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

During this municipal year the Panel will aim to perform its key statutory functions as follows;

Scrutiny of the 
proposed police 
precept

Scrutinise how the 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner holds 
the Chief Constable to 
account

Review the end of 
year accounts for 
2017-2018

Receive a briefing 
from the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 
and his Chief Financial 
Officer regarding the 
financial status of 
Dyfed-Powys Police 
and the demands 
upon it.

Hold a hearing to 
consider the 
proposed precept and 
make a 
recommendation to 
the Police and Crime 
Commissioner

Attend and observe 
meetings of the Police 
Accountability Board

Review and scrutinise 
Agendas and Reports 
considered at the 
Police Accountability 
Board

Question the 
Commissioner about 
how he holds the 
Chief Constable to 
Account

To ensure Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s   
finances are being 
properly managed 
and that the people of 
Dyfed-Powys are 
receiving value for 
money from the 
Police Precept

To ensure that the 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner is 
holding the Chief 
Constable to account 
in a thorough and 
robust manner for the 
delivery of the Police 
and Crime Plan and 
the operational 
policing decisions that 
he(the Chief 
Constable) makes.

That any proposed 
increase in the police 
precept for 2019-2020 
is appropriate given 
the circumstances 
facing Dyfed-Powys 
Police at that time

That Dyfed-Powys 
Police has been able 
to operate within its 
allotted budget whilst 
delivering the service 
that the people of 
Dyfed-Powys require.

That there is clear 
evidence the Police 
and Crime 
Commissioner is 
robustly challenging 
the Chief Constable 
where it is 
appropriate to do so.

Panel Function What we will do Our Objectives

How we will 
measure whether 
we have achieved 
our objectives

Tudalen 182



C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8 7

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

Objectives continued;

Scrutinise the impact 
of the Police and 
Crime Plan

Improve public 
awareness of the 
Roles and 
Responsibilities of the 
Police and Crime 
Panel

Receive regular 
reports from the 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner 
regarding the 
implementation of the 
Police and Crime Plan

Receive and note any 
relevant reports from 
HMICFRS/other 
regulators and 
question the Police 
and Crime 
Commissioner 
regarding them

Seek the views of 
other stakeholders 
and the Public 

We will engage 
directly with the 
public and their 
elected 
representatives to 
inform them of our 
work and seek their 
views on Policing and 
Crime in Dyfed-Powys.

To ensure that the 
priorities in the Police 
and Crime plan 
continue to be fit for 
purpose and that their 
implementation is 
achieving the stated 
aims.

To make more people 
aware of what we do 
and why we do it.

There is clear 
evidence the Police 
and Crime Plan 
Priorities are support-
ed by key
Stakeholders and the 
public

There is clear 
evidence that the  
operational perfor-
mance of 
Dyfed-Powys police 
continues to support 
those priorities

There is clear 
evidence that the 
commissioning 
strategies pursued by 
the Commissioner 
continues to support 
those priorities.

That we have engaged 
with more residents 
of Dyfed-Powys than 
before.

Panel Function What we will do Our Objectives

How we will 
measure whether 
we have achieved 
our objectives

Tudalen 183



conclusion

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 88

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

Policing and crime and disorder matters to
everyone. We all have a vested interest in
ensuring that Dyfed-Powys Police is efficient,
effective and responsive to the needs of the
people that it serves. As a former special
constable I understand the unique relationship
that has always existed between the police and
the public. To put it simply, we cannot hope to
live in a society which is safe for our families
without an effective police force. Yet our police
cannot hope to be effective without the
engagement and support of the public which
they serve.

I and my colleagues are fully committed to
doing our part to ensure that the people of
Dyfed-Powys get the police force that they need
and deserve. We firmly believe that with your
engagement and support this is an aim that can
be achieved.

Tudalen 184



appendix 1

C H A I R M A N ’ S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

Members of Dyfed Powys Police and Crime Panel:

CARMARTHENSHIRE

Cllr. ERYL MORGAN

‘Berso’, 29 Capel Isaf
Road, Llanelli SA15 1QD

01554 759115

EMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

CARMARTHENSHIRE

Cllr. JIM JONES

‘Tir Gof’, 9 Heol Hen, Five
Roads, Llanelli SA15 5HJ

01269 860138

TJJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

CEREDIGION

Cllr. ALUN LLOYD JONES

Murmur yr Ystwyth, 14
Maes Isfryn, Llanfarian,
Aberystwyth, Ceredigion
SY23 4UG

01970 623661

alun.lloydjones@ceredigion.gov.uk

CEREDIGION

Cllr. KEITH EVANS

‘Deganwy’, Sunny Hill,
Llandysul SA44 4DT

01559 362258

keith.evans@ceredigion.gov.uk

POWYS

Cllr. DAVID EVANS

Hafan Gymreig, Bryntirion
Lane, Rhayader, Powys
LD6 5LT

01597 810298

cllr.david.evans@powys.gov.uk

POWYS

Cllr. LES GEORGE

‘The Mill’, Pontdolgoch,
Caersws, Powys SY17 5JE

01686 688231

cllr.les.george@powys.gov.uk

CEREDIGION

Cllr. LLOYD EDWARDS

13 Maes Seilo,
Penrhyncoch, Ceredigion
SY23 3FL

07375498571

lloyd.edwards@ceredigion.gov.uk

CARMARTHENSHIRE

Cllr. KEN HOWELL

‘Penlan Fawr’, Penyboyr,
Felindre, Llandysul 
SA44 5JF

01559 370555

KenHowell@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 185



Members of Dyfed Powys Police and Crime Panel (continued):

POWYS

Cllr. WILLIAM POWELL

Middle Genffordd,
Penbont Road, Talybont, 
Brecon LD3 0EH 

07703 112113 

cllr.william.powell@powys.gov.uk 

PEMBROKESHIRE

Cllr. ROBERT SUMMONS

19 West Street,
Rosemarket, Milford
Haven, Pembrokeshire
SA73 1JH

01646 600827

cllr.rob.summons@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

PEMBROKESHIRE

Cllr. STEPHEN JOSEPH

105 Charles Street,
Milford Haven,
Pembrokeshire SA73 2HW

07789 685035

cllr.stephen.joseph@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

CO-OPTED MEMBER

IAN ROFFE

Greenlands, Clarach,
Aberystwyth, Ceredigion,
SY23 3DT

01970 820537

i.roffe@btinternet.com

CO-OPTED MEMBER

HELEN THOMAS

16 Maes Yr Ysgol, Peniel,
Carmarthen, SA32 7BT

01267 235824

Helent072@gmail.com

PEMBROKESHIRE

Cllr. MICHAEL JAMES

‘Bronllwyn’, 7 Grove
Terrace, St Dogmaels 
SA43 3ER

01239 614020

Cllr.mike.james@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

D Y F E D - P O W Y S  P O L I C E  A N D  C R I M E  P A N E L

Tudalen 186



PANEL HEDDLU A THROSEDDU DYFED-POWYS
27 GORFFENNAF 2018

                        STRATEGAETH GYFATHREBU'R PANEL
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

1. Cytuno ar strategaeth gyfathrebu ar gyfer y Panel

2. Treialu'r gweddarlledu yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Panel ar 16 Tachwedd 2018

Y rhesymau: 

Mae Deddf Diwygio'r Heddlu a Chyfrifoldeb Cymdeithasol 2011 yn cynnwys rhwymedigaeth 
gyfreithiol i hyrwyddo gwaith y Panel.

Mae amodau sy'n gysylltiedig â Grant y Swyddfa Gartref sy'n ariannu gwaith y Panel yn ei 
gwneud yn ofynnol i'r Panel sicrhau bod ei weithgareddau'n cael eu gwneud mewn modd 
cost-effeithiol

Awduron yr Adroddiad:

Y Cynghorydd Alun Lloyd-
Jones

Robert Edgecombe

Swydd:

Hyrwyddwr Perthnasol y 
Panel

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol

Rhif Ffôn

01267 224018

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

rjedgeco@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 187

Eitem Rhif  10



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DYFED – POWYS POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

27TH JULY 2018

PANEL COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

Legislation requires Police and Crime Panels to promote their activities with a view to raising 
public awareness and engagement in the work.

Since the creation of the Dyfed-Powys Panel this role has been undertaken by 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Media and Marketing Team which has;

1. Created, maintained and updated the Panel’s website
2. Issued a large number of press releases and engaged with traditional media outlets 

across the force area and the press offices of the other 3 unitary authorities across the 
force area.

The last 12 months has seen a significant increase in public and press interest in the work of 
the Panel. For example;

1. On several occasions members of the public have submitted questions to the Panel to 
be put to the Commissioner.

2. Representatives of local and/or national media have attended at least 2 panel meetings 
and published news stories relating to the work of the Panel both in the local press and 
online.

However the level of public understanding of the specific role of the Panel continues to be 
relatively low. The attached strategy therefore sets out how this might be addressed, both 
through the use of traditional media and online/social media.

Other Panels have found webcasting of their meetings to be a cost-effective means of 
engaging with the press and public and it is therefore suggested that the Panel trial this for its 
next scheduled meeting on the 16th November.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO

Tudalen 188



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

Host Authority File LS-
0511/31

County Hall Carmarthen

Tudalen 189



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	1 PENODI CADEIRYDD AC IS-GADEIRYDD Y PANEL
	4 LLOFNODI YN COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 18 MAI 2018
	6 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT COMISIYNYDD YR HEDDLU A THROSEDDU
	Adroddiad

	7 PENDERFYNIADAU A WNAED GAN Y COMISIYNYDD
	Adroddiad

	8 BWRDD ATEBOLRWYDD YR HEDDLU
	Police Accountability Board Agenda
	Police Accountability Board Minutes - 13th February 2018
	PAB - HMICFRS
	PAB - IPCC
	PAB - Organisational Health & Well-being
	PAB - Police Performance Report
	PAB - Scrutiny Activity Feedback
	PAB - victim confidence
	PAB - Victim Satisfaction
	PAB - Victims services
	PAB- Crime Data Integrity

	9 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y CADEIRYDD
	Adroddiad

	10 STRATEGAETH GYFATHREBU'R PANEL

